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1.  PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited was incorporated in
Hong Kong (hereinafter as the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries
were incorporated in Hong Kong or Shanghai (together with
the Bank hereinafter as the “Group”). The Bank is a licensed
bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of
banking and related financial services. The principal activities
of the Bank’s subsidiaries are shown in Note 26 to the
Financial Statements. The address of the Bank’s registered
office is 151 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a collective term which
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, HKASs and Interpretations) issued
by the HKICPA and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale securities, financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, investment
properties which are carried at fair value and premises which
are carried at fair value or revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the Management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.
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B RAE 125 (K1E3T) s 201261718 =
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Income taxes 1 January 2012 Yes
BEEMBRELNE R (BEFT) BEREMNERNBREED - BT AERBESBR 201147818 &
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting 1 July 2011 No
Standards: Hyperinflation and Fixed Dates
BERMBRELBETR (BET) PRIA: RE - oREEER 201147418 =
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial instruments: Disclosures - Transfer of 1 July 2011 Yes

Financial Assets
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HKAS 12 (Amendment), “Income taxes”. The
standard which was revised in December 2010 is
mandatorily effective for reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2012. Earlier application is
permitted. The Group has considered that the
required treatment under the revised standard better
reflects the tax position of the investment properties
of the Group, and has early adopted the amended
standard retrospectively since the year ended
31 December 2010.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transfer of Financial Assets’. The
amendment introduces new quantitative disclosure
requirements for transfers of financial assets that
are either fully derecognised or derecognised not
in their entirety. The Group will disclose relevant
information in the financial statements when the
Group undertakes transfers of financial assets that
fall within its scope.
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The following standards, amendments and interpretations
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beginning on or after 1 July 2012:
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Applicable for Currently
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Standard/Interpretation Content beginning on/after the Group
BRI ENFE 1% (KEFT) HBBRERNIIT 20125 7H1H =
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 July 2012 Yes
EAGIENFE195(2011) EEEF 2013F1A1H =
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits 1 January 2013 Yes
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HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013 Yes
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Financial Liabilities
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HKFRS 1 (Amendment) First Time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 1 January 2013 No
- Government Loans
BEMBREENETR (BEFT) RIA: BRE - cRAERERMBAEZEH 201351 A1H I
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and 1 January 2013 Yes
Financial Liabilities
BEMBREENETR (BEFT) SRTE: BRE - BFAUBREENEIRNBERH 201561718 =
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Transition to HKFRS 9 1 January 2015 Yes
BRUBRELENFR SBIA 201541718 2
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2015 Yes
ERMBRELNF 0% FRBB]E 2013%1A18 &
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013 Yes
BRUBRELNE R RERH 2013F1A1H &
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013 No
AU BREENE125 Hin b ERERENRE 201351 A1H =
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013 Yes
BERBREENE10 1MKI125 BETH 2013F1A1H =
(&155T)
HKFRS 10, 11 and 12 (Amendment) Transition Guidance 1 January 2013 Yes
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g ﬁEEIJ%zm (%&ﬂ’} 1)
HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 27 (Amendments)  Investment Entities 1 January 2014 No
é%ﬁﬂ%i&%@iﬂu 135 NTEHE 2013%1A18 =
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013 Yes
EBMBRELNRREL0% BRBANEERR 2 HIBRAR 201351 A1H &
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine 1 January 2013 No
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

2.1
(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards, amendments and interpretations
issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
in 2012 (Cont’d)

HKAS 1 (Revised), ‘Presentation of Financial
Statements’. The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised)
require companies preparing financial statements in
accordance with HKFRSs to group together items
within other comprehensive income (OCI) that may
be reclassified to the profit or loss section of the
income statement. The amendments also reaffirm
existing requirements that items in OCl and profit or
loss should be presented as either a single statement
or two consecutive statements. The adoption of this
revised standard will affect the presentation of the
Group's statement of comprehensive income.

HKAS 19 (2011), 'Employee Benefits’. The revised
standard mainly amends the part related to
accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations
and plan assets, and related presentation and
disclosure. The amendments do not have impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

HKAS 27 (2011), ‘Separate Financial Statements’.
Please refer to the below on HKFRS 10, ‘Consolidated
Financial Statements’.

HKAS 28 (2011), ‘Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures'. Please refer to the below on HKFRS 11,
‘Joint Arrangements’.

HKAS 32 (Amendment), ‘Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities’. The amendment addresses
inconsistencies in current practice when applying
the offsetting criteria and clarifies the meaning of
‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off’;
and the application of offsetting criteria to some
gross settlement systems (such as central clearing
house systems) that may be considered equivalent to
net settlement. The Group is considering the financial
impact of the amendment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations
issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
in 2012 (Cont’d)

. HKFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities’. The amendments require new disclosures
to include information that will enable users of
an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the
effect or potential effect of netting arrangements,
including rights of set-off associated with the entity’s
recognised financial assets and recognised financial
liabilities, on the entity’s financial position. The
adoption of this amended standard will affect the
disclosure of the Group’s financial statements.

. HKFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transition to HKFRS 9'. The
amendments provide relief from the requirement to
restate comparative financial statements which was
originally available only to entities that chose to apply
HKFRS 9 prior to 2012. Instead, additional transition
disclosures will be required to help users to better
understand the effect of initial application of the
standard.

. HKFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’. The first part of
HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and will
replace those parts of HKAS 39 relating to the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
In November 2010, a further pronouncement
was published to address financial liabilities and
derecognition. Key features are as follows:

(i) Classification and Measurement

Financial assets are required to be classified into one of the
following measurement categories: (1) those to be measured
subsequently at fair value or (2) those to be measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Classification is to be made
on transition, and subsequently on initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the instrument.

A financial instrument is subsequently measured at amortised
cost only if it is a debt instrument, and the objective of the
entity’s business model is to hold the asset to collect the
contractual cash flows, and the asset’s contractual cash
flows represent only unleveraged payments of principal and
interest. All other debt instruments are to be measured at
fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations
issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
in 2012 (Cont’d)

(i) Classification and Measurement (Cont’d)

All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at
fair value. Equity instruments that are held for trading will
be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For all other
equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made
at initial recognition to recognise unrealised and realised
fair value gains and losses through other comprehensive
income rather than income statement. Once elected to be
recognised through other comprehensive income, there
will be no reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
income statement. Dividends are to be presented in income
statement as long as they represent a return on investment.

(i) Financial Liabilities and Derecognition

Except for the two substantial changes described below, the
classification and measurement requirements of financial
liabilities have been basically carried forward with minimal
amendments from HKAS 39. For the derecognition principles,
they are consistent with that of HKAS 39.

The requirements related to the fair value option for financial
liabilities were changed to address own credit risk. It requires
the amount of change in fair value attributable to changes
in the credit risk of the financial liabilities be presented in
other comprehensive income. The remaining amount of the
total gain or loss is included in income statement. If this
requirement creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss, then the whole fair value change is
presented in income statement. The determination of
whether there will be a mismatch will need to be made at
initial recognition of individual liabilities and will not be re-
assessed. Amounts presented in other comprehensive income
are not subsequently reclassified to income statement but
may be transferred within equity.

The standard eliminates the exception from fair value
measurement contained in HKAS 39 for derivative liabilities
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of an
unquoted equity instrument.

The mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 is 1 January 2015
with earlier adoption permitted. New transitional disclosures
are required instead of comparative restatement. The Group
is considering the financial impact of the standard and the
timing of its application.

158 B4 4045 m NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT 43§ L7



BAFE R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

2.1
(b)

48

FTEEHHEREE )

mEEXE (&)
B8 5 KRB H| LR KRB WA LB 2012F
EHTIRA R ~ 65T Rt FE (47

EBUBHRELEBFE10R [REVBRE] - RERE
[ERBLEMAT R ZLEEMBREE  BANE
HWELERFEI0MNIBAERAZ EEY T IZESIES
REMAZZHS - WEH AT TG R R
SMES| o ZERITNER T BB GEHERIE 275 (K18
D) [#RE MBI M ERE | PATAEEHEH A FR15
SIREFIHK(SIO)-Int 12 [&6F —BHHRENEE] - 5|
BT ERFE27 (KR R TN BERAESRS
S ERIZE275RQ011) [ BYFBEHRER] > LIEA
BIBBYMERERME - ERRILEHE HH LR
KEIREHESIEHRE -

EAVBRELENFENRAELH] - BEHBR
EHEAFNRETENBERESEELTHENERIR
LEME: AEEERGELE - S EEEBN—T&
BELRE  UEZLTHNSHEEHEEREAERF
HEERERT ZERNEAEBLTEREIRIEE
rEEDE | PHBREAXRESEE] HER - &
AHREENRE  AAUMEBEERNSHE  —ReE
BERMEER - R AELERAEBNHESE
BRENFEEREERAREN - GECERRBRES
SEHHERIE28E [MA AR E | AR ARE
WEZEEBSTERE285R02011) [BEAR LA
BRERE| - &EME  ZENBRIEHEELE
V&5 EK B A GHKSIO)-Int 13 [AEHHIE —
AEENIIEEEMERAINRE - EREBSHEL
2857201 N)1E + EM T A FIALLAIE Gt 7L
HEAERE -

#17% %% 4645 = NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT 3§

2.

2.1
(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards, amendments and interpretations
issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
in 2012 (Cont’d)

HKFRS 10, ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’. HKFRS
10 builds on existing principles by identifying the
concept of control as the determining factor when
considering whether an entity should be included
within the consolidated financial statements of the
parent company. The standard provides additional
guidance to assist in the determination of control
where this is difficult to assess. It also replaces
all of the guidance on control and consolidation
stipulated in HKAS 27 (Revised), ‘Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements’ and HK(SIC)-Int
12, 'Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities’. The
remainder of HKAS 27 (Revised) is renamed HKAS 27
(2011), 'Separate Financial Statements’ as a standard
dealing solely with separate financial statements
without changing the existing guidance for separate
financial statements.

HKFRS 11, “Joint Arrangements’. Changes in the
definitions stipulated in HKFRS 11 have reduced the
types of joint arrangements to two: joint operations
and joint ventures. A joint operation is a joint
arrangement that gives parties to the arrangement
direct rights to the assets and obligations for the
liabilities. The ‘jointly controlled assets’ classification
in HKAS 31, ‘Interests in Joint Ventures’, has been
merged into joint operations, as both types of
arrangements generally result in the same accounting
outcome. A joint venture, in contrast, gives the
parties rights to the net assets or outcome of the
arrangement. Joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method in accordance with HKAS 28,
‘Investments in Associates’ which is renamed as
HKAS 28 (2011), ‘Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures'. The standard is amended to include
the requirements of joint ventures accounting
and to merge with the requirements of HK(SIC)-
Int 13, "Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-Monetary
Contributions by Venturers'. After the application of
HKAS 28 (2011), entities can no longer account for
an interest in a joint venture using the proportionate
consolidation method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretations
issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
in 2012 (Cont’d)

. HKFRS 12, ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’.
The standard sets out the required disclosures for
entities reporting under the two new standards,
HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 11, and the revised standard
HKAS 28 (2011). The existing guidance and disclosure
requirements for separate financial statements
stipulated in HKAS 27 (Revised) are unchanged.
HKFRS 12, requires entities to disclose information
that helps financial statements readers to evaluate
the nature, risks and financial effects associated with
the entity’s interests in subsidiaries, associates, joint
arrangements and unconsolidated structured entities.

The above HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (2011)
and HKAS 28 (2011) issued in June 2011 are a group of five
new standards that address the scope of reporting entity
and will supersede HKAS 27 (Revised), HKAS 28, HKAS 31,
HK(SIC)-Int 12 and HK(SIC)-Int 13. Earlier application of these
standards are permitted but only when they are applied at
the same time. The adoption of these standards does not
have a material impact on the Group's financial statements.

. HKFRS 10, 11 and 12 (Amendment), on transition
guidance. The amendments provide additional
transition relief to HKFRSs 10, 11 and 12, limiting
the requirement to provide adjusted comparative
information to only the preceding comparative
period. The adoption of this amendment will not
materially affect the disclosure of the Group's
financial statements.

o HKFRS 13, ‘Fair Value Measurement’. The new
standard which was issued in June 2011 replaces
the fair value measurement guidance contained in
individual HKFRSs by providing a revised definition
of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use
across HKFRSs. The requirements do not extend the
use of fair value accounting, but provide guidance
on how it should be applied when its use is already
required or permitted by other standards within
HKFRSs. The Group will apply HKFRS 13 prospectively
from 1 January 2013.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(c) Improvements to HKFRS

‘Improvements to HKFRS’ contains numerous amendments to
HKFRS which the HKICPA considers not urgent but necessary.
It comprises amendments that result in accounting changes
for presentation, recognition or measurement purpose as
well as terminology or editorial amendments related to a
variety of individual HKFRS. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
No material changes to accounting policies are expected as
a result of these amendments.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Bank and all of its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities)
over which the Group controls the composition of the Board
of Directors, controls more than half of the voting power,
holds more than half of the issued capital or by any other
means that entitle the Group to govern the financial and
operating policies of the entities. The existence and effect
of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable
or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

For combination with a company under common control, the
merger accounting method will be applied. The principle of
merger accounting is a way to combine companies under
common control as though the business of the acquiree
had always been carried out by the acquirer. The Group’s
consolidated financial statements represent the consolidated
results, consolidated cash flows and consolidated financial
position of the Group as if any such combination had
occurred from the date when the Bank and the acquiree first
came under common control (i.e. no fair value adjustment
on the date of combination is required). The difference
between the consideration and carrying amount at the
time of combination is recognised in equity. The effects
of all transactions between the Group and the acquiree,
whether occurring before or after the combination, are
eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements
of the Group. Comparative amounts are presented as if the
acquiree had been combined at the end of the previous
reporting period. The transaction costs for the combination
will be expensed in the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)
Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated;
unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the assets transferred.
Where necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Bank on the
basis of dividends received and receivable. Dividend income
from subsidiaries is recognised in the income statement
when the right to receive payment is established.

2.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Management, which is the chief operating decision maker
of the Group, that allocates resources and assesses the
performance of operating segments. Income and expenses
directly associated with each segment are included in
determining operating segment performance.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Bank's functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of foreign currency transactions using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting
period are recognised directly in the income statement,
except when deferred in other comprehensive income as
qualifying net investment hedges.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair
value through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of
the securities and other changes in the carrying amount of
the securities. Translation differences related to changes in
the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement,
and other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
equities held at fair value through profit or loss, are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified
as available-for-sale are included in other comprehensive
income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from Hong Kong
dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

o assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate
at the end of the reporting period;

o income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates; and

. all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
the currency translation reserve in equity through
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign entity is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income statement, as part
of the gain or loss on sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained from
quoted market prices in active markets, including recent
market transactions, and through the use of valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
options pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are
carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities
when fair value is negative.

The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial
recognition is the transaction price (i.e., the fair value of the
consideration given or received).

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments
are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes
in their fair value are recognised immediately in the income
statement unless they are designated as hedges and are
effective hedging instruments, then they are subject to
measurement under the hedge accounting requirements.

2.6 Hedge accounting

The Group documents at inception the relationship between
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at the hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values or cash flows of hedged items. These criteria should
be met before a hedge can be qualified to be accounted for
under hedge accounting.

Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging
instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.
Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to income statement
upon disposal of the foreign operation as part of the gain
or loss on disposal.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.7 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.8 Interest income and expense and fee and
commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all financial assets and financial liabilities using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (e.g. prepayment options or incentives
relating to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes fees, premiums
or discounts and basis points paid or received between
parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination
fees and costs which represent an integral part of the
effective yield.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised on the written down value
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Subsequent unwinding of the discount allowance is
recognised as interest income.

Fee and commission income and expenses that are not
an integral part of the effective yield are recognised
on an accrual basis ratably over the period when the
related service is provided, such as administrative fee,
asset management fee and custody services fee. Loan
syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the related
syndication arrangement has been completed and the Group
has retained no part of the loan package for itself or has
retained a part at the same effective interest rate as that of
other participants.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.9 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following
four categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity securities
and available-for-sale financial assets. The Management
determines the classification of investments at initial
recognition. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets are held. All financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value. Except for financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss, all transaction
costs of financial assets are included in their amortised costs.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held
for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit
or loss at inception.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or is
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking is classified
as held-for-trading. Derivatives are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective hedges.

A financial asset, other than one held for trading, will be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss, if it meets one of the criteria set out below, and is
so designated by the Management:

o eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as
‘an accounting mismatch’) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial assets or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

o applies to a group of financial assets, financial
liabilities or both that is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided
internally on that basis to the key Management; or

o relates to financial assets containing one or more
embedded derivative that significantly modifies the
cash flow resulting from those financial assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (Cont'd)

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with
transaction costs taken directly to the income statement,
and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such
assets (excluding the interest component) are reported in
net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss. The interest
component is reported as part of interest income.

(2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market, including placements with and advances
to banks and other financial institutions, investment debt
securities without an active market and loans and advances
to customers. They arise when the Group provides money,
goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of
trading the receivable. They are initially recorded at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method less allowances for impairment losses.

(3) Held-to-maturity

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded
in active markets, with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Group’s Management has both
the positive intention and the ability to hold to maturity.
Where the Group sold held-to-maturity assets (i) other than
due to an isolated event beyond the Group’s control, non-
recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated
by the Group, such as a significant deterioration in the
issuer’s creditworthiness, significant change in statutory or
regulatory requirement or (i) other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would
be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale. They are
initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less
allowances for impairment losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)
(4) Available-for-sale

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that
are either designated as such or are not classified in any of
the other categories. They are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time but may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange
rates or equity prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until
the financial asset is derecognised or impaired at which
time the accumulated gain or loss previously recognised
in equity should be transferred to the income statement.
However, interest income which includes the amortisation
of premium and discount is calculated using the effective
interest method and is recognised in the income statement.
Dividends on equity instruments classified as available-for-
sale are recognised in other operating income when the
Group's right to receive payment is established.

The treatment of translation differences on available-for-sale
securities is dealt with in Note 2.4.

2.10 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following
categories: trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss, deposits and other
liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception
and recognised initially at fair value.

(1) Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is
incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the
short term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedges. It is measured
at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement.

158 B4 4045 m NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT 43§ 57



BAFE R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

2. FESHHERE #»)

2.10 %Eﬂﬁf’a &
2) 2%(2‘#2@ Lt A B E &

ERAERRIBRHAETRUATFERECHABREZERE
B NEURTERZ —BEFZERAE - RERAERL
Bl

. ALUERRBABRDRETRAEEAESRABEZE
B EREREHER  MOBRT -8k
RER (WS [SFTEEE]) X

\—HEREE SRAE IAMEFRANE
ERERKBRALTHBELNREBREEIIRER
15 ERRERAFEASERKEE - Wikl
§ZMERMITANEMREREREFL AR

ﬁﬁ
%
ﬁﬁ

WW§Dﬁ
%ﬁ@mg

. HEeEs—[@xZEREATEeRTANERE &R
ELME*XHEETMEQF&EIE;TEZ%QV#ﬁ%ﬁﬁ'ﬁﬂ
/ﬁmh?f‘iéﬁ?;

o

WAEBUNRFEZEHABRENERMBBEBARFEIIE -
AR HEREMES 2 WaRERERNKEERA -

(3) FHRAMARE

RESBEAZINABIURATEZ T ABRNERAE
o Bl R R B B B AR AR - IR 5B
B2 FRRFNEBEOEBENZRE (NF) - RRERFSEZRH
ATEU Z= EEI:PEEWUD

2 11 /\jF;F{%l:In,J
MHRERBHEZERZAERENEEARERETA AR
BEBAZEONEBENERMBETEREER  FRBEA
B MEE ZBRNEEMNR -

58  #1if @44t = NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT £

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.10 Financial liabilities (Cont'd)

(2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss

A financial liability can be designated at fair value through
profit or loss if it is so designated at inception. A financial
liability is so designated if it meets one of the following
criteria:

. eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or
recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to as
‘an accounting mismatch’) that would otherwise arise
from measuring the financial liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

o applies to a group of financial assets, financial
liabilities or both that is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided
internally on that basis to the key Management; or

o relates to financial liabilities containing one or more
embedded derivative that significantly modifies the
cash flow resulting from those financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value and any gains and losses from
changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

(3) Deposits and other liabilities

Deposits and other liabilities, other than those classified as
trading liabilities or designated at fair value through profit
or loss are carried at amortised cost. Any difference (if
available) between proceeds net of transaction costs and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over
the period using the effective interest method.

2.11 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a
contract between the holder and the debtor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.11 Financial guarantee contracts (Cont'd)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised as financial
liabilities and reported under “Other accounts and provisions”
in the financial statements at fair value on the date the
guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group's liabilities under such guarantees are measured at
the higher of (i) the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets” and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, accumulated amortisation recognised over the
life of the guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any changes
in the liability relating to financial guarantees are taken to
the income statement.

2.12 Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
securities are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and
receivables (except investment securities without an active
market) are recognised when cash is advanced to the
borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or where the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. When the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the Group either continues to recognise
the transferred financial asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement if control remains or derecognise it if there is
no retained control.

Trading liabilities and financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised on the trade
date. Deposits that are not trading liabilities are recognised
when money is received from customers, other liabilities are
recognised when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities
are derecognised from the balance sheet when and only
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation
to repurchase at a pre-determined price on a specified future
date under a repurchase agreement are referred to as Repos.
Securities and bills purchased from a counterparty with an
obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a pre-determined
price on a specified future date under a resale agreement
are referred to as Reverse repos.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.12 Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments (Cont'd)

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as due
to banks, placements from banks and other financial
institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash
received from the counterparty. Financial assets given as
collateral for repurchase agreements are not derecognised
and are recorded as investment securities or financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss. Reverse repos or securities
borrowing are initially recorded in the balance sheet as cash
and due from banks or placements with banks and other
financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount
of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets received
as collateral under reverse repurchase agreements are not
recognised on the balance sheet. The difference between
sale and repurchase price is recognised as interest income
or interest expense over the life of the agreements using the
effective interest method.

2.13 Determination of fair value of financial
instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are quoted in active markets are based on current bid
prices and current ask prices respectively. If the market for
financial assets and financial liabilities is not active (such as
unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by using
valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option
pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly
used by market participants.

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about the following probable loss events:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payment;

www.ncb.com.hk



2. FESHHERE #»)

214 TREERME (4)

(i) FEREFRAZHBRHEBEZEBELERRR K
SEETERAE—RERTHRAALTEEZEE
feRfF

(iv) ERABRERESETEMUEER

v) AV BR#EEZEMEE ARG HRIERE
AR EERERBIAT 3

(vi) FIRBNEHMBETEX -REEMASMELEZARE
HAREMEBBBRVBABEIEE 2 TG - #RE
BT REERERZASNZERNSREE - BF
BAE

. A 2 RN ZEFARE THEE 5 o

. HZAREEZRIE AR 2B MR
HAZBEARM ©

(1) HEBBEASEHEE
AEEEAHERCHREANSREERTFAERENTE
BIRETEAIFHE - MRAEEREHRETEBBERAET
ERFENEREEFERERN  ARBEHEERLME
HeBETEANSREERNHASINENEREECRE
AFBUEERRFEBNESREEMARN S - ETASBER
1l o EMEARMEATRE TSI B B R BERRRER XD
BE  THMAAAARENMGHERE -

www.nch.com.hk

B FE R MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

(i) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic
or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(v) the disappearance of an active market or
downgrading below investment grade level for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the
group, including:

° adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

. national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the
group.

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment together with all
other financial assets that are not individually significant or
for which impairment has not yet been identified. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity securities has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred), discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-
maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the
cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for
obtaining and selling the collateral.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar and
relevant credit risk characteristics. Those characteristics are
relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups
of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to
pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of
the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the
group and historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical
loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable
data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the period on which the historical loss experience
is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the
historical period that do not exist currently.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the
related allowance for impairment losses. Such loans are
written off after all the necessary procedures have been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
decrease the amount of impairment losses in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for
impairment losses decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss
to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised
in the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial
difference in the terms are no longer considered to be past
due but are treated as new loans.

(2) Assets classified as available-for-sale

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the accumulated losses, measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost or amortised cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from equity and recognised in
the income statement. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered in determining whether the assets are impaired.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the income statement,
the impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed
through the income statement. With respect to equity
instruments, further fair value changes are recognised in the
reserve for fair value change of available-for-sale securities
through other comprehensive income, impairment losses are
not reversed through the income statement.

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Potential indications of impairment
may include significant adverse changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment in which the assets
operate or whether there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in value below their cost.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries,
associates and non-financial assets (Cont'd)

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

In the Bank’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary is also required upon receiving
dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
that entity in the Bank’s balance sheet exceeds the carrying
amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its
consolidated balance sheet.

2.16 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by
the companies in the Group, are classified as investment
properties. Properties leased out within Group companies are
classified as investment properties in individual companies’
financial statements and as premises in consolidated financial
statements. Land held under operating lease is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The operating lease
is accounted for as if it is a finance lease.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value assessed
by professional valuers on the basis of open market value. If
information of open market value is not available, alternative
valuation methods are used such as recent prices on less
active markets or discounted cash flow projections. These
valuations are performed in accordance with valuation
standards on properties published by The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.16 Investment properties (Cont'd)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is
stated at cost less impairment and is included in the carrying
amount of investment properties. Once the item begins to
generate economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value.
All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the
income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as premises, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of premises becomes an investment property because
its use has changed, any difference resulting between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a
revaluation of premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in
the income statement up to the amount previously debited.

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises
are shown at fair value based on periodic, at least annual,
valuations by external independent valuers less subsequent
accumulated depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation
at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated
to the revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening
periods, the directors review the carrying amount of
premises, by reference to the open market value of similar
properties, and adjustments are made when there has been
a material change.

All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the
acquisition and installation of the items.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount
or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The item is stated at cost
until it begins to generate economic benefits, then the item
is subsequently measured according to the measurement
basis of its respective assets class. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of
premises are credited to the premises revaluation reserve
through other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same individual asset are
charged against premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income; all other decreases are expensed in
the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited
to the income statement up to the amount previously
debited, and then to the premises revaluation reserve. Upon
disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is released and transferred from the premises revaluation
reserve to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to
write down the cost or revalued amount of such assets over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

. Properties Over the life of government
land leases
. Plant and equipment 2-15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, as at the end of each reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and
external sources of information are considered to determine
whether there is any indication that properties, plant and
equipment, are impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement except where the asset
is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does not
exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which
case it is treated as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through
the premises revaluation reserve or income statement as
appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount, relevant taxes and expenses.
These are recognised in the income statement.

2.18 Leases
(1) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. The total payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease
period has expired, any payment required to be made to
the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in
the period in which termination takes place. Rental income
from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

(2) Finance leases

Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Government land leases in Hong Kong are classified
as finance leases as the present value of the minimum lease
payments (ie, transaction price) of the land amounted to
substantially all of the fair value of the land as if it were
freehold.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.18 Leases (Cont'd)
(2) Finance leases (Cont’d)

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities.
Investment properties acquired under finance leases are
carried at their fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the
present value of the lease payments is recognised as a
receivable. Lease income is recognised over the term of the
lease using net investment method, which reflects a constant
periodic rate of return.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with original
maturity less than three months from the date of acquisition,
including cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, short-term bills and notes classified as
investment securities.

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made.

2.21 Employee benefits
(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF
schemes that are available to the Group’s employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries
for the ORSO schemes and in accordance with the MPF
rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme
costs are charged to the income statement as incurred
and represent contributions payable by the Group to the
schemes. Contributions made by the Group that are forfeited
by those employees who leave the ORSO scheme prior to the
full vesting of their entitlement to the contributions are used
by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions or to
meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-
administered funds separate from those of the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.21 Employee benefits (Cont'd)
(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for unused annual leave and
the amount of sick leave expected to be paid as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special
approved annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if
the current period’s entitlement is not used in full. Except for
unexpired annual leaves, they do not entitle employees to a
cash payment for unused entitlement on leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities
for bonus plans that are expected to be settled longer than
twelve months will be recognised using discounted cash flow
method if the amounts are significant.

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
other comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable
tax law enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the
reporting period in each jurisdiction where the Bank and
the subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income, is
recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in
which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance
sheet liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes (Cont'd)

The principal temporary differences arise from asset
impairment provisions, depreciation of premises and
equipment, revaluation of certain assets including available-
for-sale securities and premises, and tax losses carried
forward. However, the deferred income tax is not recognised
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all
taxable temporary differences and deferred income tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income
statement except for deferred income tax relating to fair
value re-measurement of available-for-sale securities and
revaluation of premises which are charged or credited
to other comprehensive income, in which case the
deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in
the income statement together with the realisation of the
deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from
investment property is determined based on the presumption
that the revaluation amount of such investment property will
be recovered through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.

2.23 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of
their fair value less costs to sell and the amortised cost of
the related outstanding loans on the date of repossession,
and the related loans and advances together with the related
impairment allowances are derecognised from the balance
sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are measured at
the lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and
are reported as ‘non-current assets held for sale’ included
in ‘Other assets’.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary
capacities, that result in its holding or managing assets on
behalf of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These
assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are excluded
from these financial statements, as they are not assets of
the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but
is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When the inflow is virtually
certain, it will be recognised as an asset.

2.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is
considered to be related to the Group if that party controls,
jointly controls or has significant influence over the Group;
is a member of the same financial reporting group, such as
parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries; is an associate
or a joint venture of the Group or parent reporting group;
is a key management personnel of the Group or parents,
or where the Group and the party are subject to common
control. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Areas susceptible to changes in essential estimates and
judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, are set out below. The effect of changes to either
the key assumptions or other estimation uncertainties will be
presented below if it is practicable to determine. It is possible
that actual results may require material adjustments to the
estimates referred to below.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.1 Impairment allowances on loans and
advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment
at least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether
an impairment loss should be recorded in the income
statement, the Group makes judgements as to whether there
is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio
of loans and advances before the decrease can be identified
with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may
include observable data indicating that there has been an
adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a
group (e.g. payment delinquency or default), or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the
group. The Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly.

Carrying amounts of loans and advances as at 31 December
2012 are shown in Note 23 to the Financial Statements.

3.2 Impairment of held-to-maturity and
available-for-sale securities

The Group reviews its held-to-maturity and available-for-
sale investment portfolios to assess impairment at least
on a quarterly basis. In determining whether any of these
investments is impaired, risk characteristics and performance
such as external credit rating, market price etc will be
assessed. The Group makes estimates on the default rate
and loss severity of each investment with reference to market
performance of the portfolios, current payment status of
the issuers or performance of the underlying assets, or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
collateralised assets. The methodology and assumptions used
for impairment assessments are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of investment in securities as at

31 December 2012 are shown in Note 25 to the Financial
Statements.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.3 Fair values of derivative financial
instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are
not quoted in active markets are determined by using
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
discounted cash flows analysis and models with built-in
functions available in externally acquired financial analysis
or risk management systems widely used by the industry. To
the extent practical, the models only use observable data.

Carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments as at
31 December 2012 are shown in Note 22 to the Financial
Statements.

3.4 Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in classifying
certain non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-
maturity securities. This classification requires significant
Management judgement to evaluate the Group’s intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group
fails to hold these investments to maturity other than for
specific circumstances defined in HKAS 39, such as selling
an insignificant amount, selling close to maturity or due to
significant credit deterioration of such investments, it will be
required to reclassify the entire portfolio of financial assets
as available-for-sale securities. The investments would then
be measured at fair value and not amortised cost.

Carrying amounts of held-to-maturity securities as at
31 December 2012 are shown in Note 25 to the Financial
Statements.

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of
engaging in a variety of business activities. The principal
financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including currency
risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group's exposures to these risks, as well
as its objectives, risk management governance structure,
policies and procedures for managing and the methods used
to measure these risks.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is
designed to cover all businesses and ensure various risks are
properly managed and controlled in the course of conducting
business. The Group has a sound risk management
organisational structure with a comprehensive set of policies
and procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control
various risks that may arise. These risk management policies
and procedures are regularly reviewed and modified to
reflect changes in markets and business strategies.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of
shareholders, is the highest decision-making authority of
the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of the
Risk Management Committee (“RMC"), has the primary
responsibility for formulating risk management strategies and
ensuring that the Group has an effective risk management
system to implement these strategies.

The RMC, a standing committee established by the Board of
Directors, is responsible for overseeing the Group's various
types of risks, reviewing and approving high-level risk-related
policies and overseeing their implementation, reviewing and
approving significant or high risk exposures or transactions.
The RMC would refer any specific transaction to the Board if
it is deemed so significant that Board approval is desirable.
The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in
overseeing the internal control system.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk
management responsibilities. Business units act as the first
line of defence while risk management units, which are
independent from the business units, are responsible for
the day-to-day management of different kinds of risks.
Risk management units have the primary responsibilities for
drafting, reviewing and updating various risk management
policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control
systems, including establishment of an organisation structure
that sets clear lines of authority and responsibility for
monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient independence
of the control functions from the business areas, as well as
adequate segregation of duties throughout the organisation
which helps to promote an appropriate internal control
environment.

Pursuant to a risk-based approach, the Auditing Department
conducts independent reviews on areas including principal
risks, regulatory compliance, adequacy and effectiveness of
risk policies and internal control systems.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Product development

To ensure effective risk assessment and monitoring, the
Group developed a comprehensive product development
and management framework which clearly defines the roles
and responsibilities of all related units, and the proper risk
assessment procedures for the product development process.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the
Board and the Management, the respective product
management units are responsible for formulating business
and product development plans, and the division of strategic
development shall ensure the plans are aligned with the
Group's overall strategies. Divisions that are responsible for
risk management, legal, compliance and finance etc. are
accountable for risk assessment and review.

Apart from product development, the respective business
units shall work closely with relevant risk evaluating
division to identify and assess all the related risks. Risk
evaluating division shall conduct independent review on risk
management procedures and assessment results. Products
can only be launched after the risk management procedures
are fulfilled and endorsed by all risk evaluating divisions.

In order to be prudent in offering treasury products to
our clients, all treasury products, regardless brand new or
modified, require approval from the Management or the
special committee before launching.

4.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty
will be unable to or unwilling to meet its contractual
obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book and
banking book, on- and off-balance sheet exposures of
a bank. It arises principally from lending, trade finance,
treasury businesses and covers inter-bank transactions,
foreign exchange and derivative transactions as well as
investments in bonds and securities.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk
management policies and procedures, and appropriate credit
risk limits to manage and control credit risk that may arise.
These policies, procedures and credit risk limits are regularly
reviewed and modified to cope with changes in risk, market
conditions and business strategies.

The Group's organisation structure establishes a clear set of
authority and responsibility for monitoring compliance with
policies, procedures and limits.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
Credit risk management framework (Cont’d)

The Credit and Loans Management Committee (“CLMC"), a
management committee authorised by the Chief Executive
("CE"), is responsible for the implementation of the credit
risk management strategies as well as the approval of credit
policies. It also monitors various aspects of the Group’s
loan portfolio such as asset quality, risk concentration
etc. Various units of the Group have their respective
credit risk management responsibilities. Business units act
as the first line of defense. They are obliged to make
thorough assessment on every credit application and are
fully responsible for monitoring credit performance and
punctual repayments. The business activities conducted
should also comply with the credit policies and procedures.
The risk management units, which are independent
from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-
day management of credit risks and have the primary
responsibilities for providing an independent due diligence
through identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling
credit risk, as well as drafting, reviewing and updating
credit risk management policies and procedures. They report
directly to the CLMC, CE and RMC. The subsidiary sets up
independent risk monitoring teams to monitor credit risk,
and submit management information and reports to the
Bank on a regular basis.

The Board of Directors is the ultimate source of credit
authority. The Board of Directors delegates credit approval
authority to the CE. Based on management needs, the CE
can further delegate to the subordinates within the limit
authorised by the Board of Directors. The Group sets the
limits of credit approval authority according to business
nature, internal rating, the level of transaction risk and the
extent of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group
has been continuously revisiting its credit strategies and
conducting rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

Credit risk measurement and control (Cont’d)

Loans and advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted
according to level of risk associated with the customer,
counterparty or transaction. All credit applications are
subject to thorough risk assessment and proper approval.
In general, most of the credit applications will be reviewed
and assessed by independent officer(s) of risk management
unit(s) before approval, with exceptions given to certain
designated products which satisfy certain conditions. These
designated loans will be (randomly) reviewed by designated
unit(s) which is(are) independent from the front line business
units after funding being drawn. Obligor ratings (in terms
of PD) and facility ratings (in terms of LGD) are assigned
to credit applications for non-retail exposure to support
credit approval. Retail internal rating systems are deployed
in risk assessment of retail credit transactions, including
small business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans,
personal loans. Loan grades, obligor and facility ratings as
well as loss estimates (if applicable) are used to support
credit approval.

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss
estimates (if applicable) to support credit monitoring, analysis
and reporting. For non-retail exposures, more frequent
rating review and closer monitoring are required for riskier
customers. For retail exposures, monthly updated internal
ratings and loss estimates are used for credit monitoring on
a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is required for
obligors being identified under high-risk pools.

The Group has established credit master scale for internal
rating purpose, which is in compliance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance on
internal rating structure, and can be mapped to Standard &
Poor’s external ratings.

Regular credit management information reports and ad hoc
reports are provided to the Management, RMC and Board
of Directors to facilitate their continuous monitoring of
credit risk.

The Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry,
geography, customer and counterparty risk. The Group
monitors changes to counterparties credit risk, quality of the
credit portfolio and risk concentrations, and reports regularly
to the Management.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

Credit risk measurement and control (Cont’d)

Loans and advances (Cont’d)

The Group continues to adopt loan grading criteria which
divide credit assets into 5 categories with reference to
HKMA's guidelines.

"Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in
meeting its repayment obligations and full repayment of
interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is
experiencing difficulties which may threaten the Group's
position. Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could
occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays
a definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is
improbable and the Group expects to sustain a loss of
principal and/or interest, taking into account the net
realisable value of the collateral.

"Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible
after all collection options (such as the realisation of
collateral or the institution of legal proceedings) have been
exhausted.

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities and securitisation assets,
the obligor ratings or external credit ratings, assessment of
the underlying assets and credit limits setting on customer/
security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk
associated with the investment. For derivatives, the Group
sets customer limits to manage the credit risk involved
and follows the same approval and control processes as
loans and advances. On-going monitoring and stop-loss
procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange
transactions with counterparties and also from derivatives
in any situation where a payment in cash, securities or
equities is made in the expectation of a corresponding
receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits
are established for each counterparty to cover all settlement
risk arising from the Group'’s transactions on any single day.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

Collateral held as security and other credit
enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been
documented in the credit risk management and policies
and procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and
insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a regular basis,
though the frequency and the method used varies with the
type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the
underlying credit. The Group has established a mechanism
to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis.
Collateral is insured with the Group as the beneficiary.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess
the guarantor’s financial condition, credit history and ability
to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group did not hold
any collateral permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence
of default by the borrower.

(A) Credit exposures

The maximum exposure is a worst case scenario of credit
risk exposure to the Group without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements. For on-balance
sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals
their carrying amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount
that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees
are called upon. For loan commitment and other credit
related liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
full amount of the committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit
enhancements and their financial effect to the different
classes of the Group's financial assets are as follows.

Balances and placements with banks and other financial
institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties. Collateral is generally
not sought on these assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(A) Credit exposures (Cont’d)

Derivative financial instruments

The International Swaps and Derivatives Association Master
Agreement is the preferred agreement for documenting
derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual
framework within which dealing activities across a full range
of OTC products are conducted, and contractually bind both
parties to apply close-out netting across all outstanding
transactions covered by an agreement if either party defaults
or another pre-agreed termination event occurs.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and
commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 79.
Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and
commitments are collateralised to the extent considered
appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk
assessment of individual exposures. The collateral coverage
of advances to customers is analysed on pages 92 to 95.
The components and nature of contingent liabilities and
commitments are disclosed in Note 38. Regarding the
commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without
prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity to
withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality
of a borrower deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and
commitments, 15.79% (2011: 25.11%) is covered by
collateral as at 31 December 2012.

(B) Gross advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before loan impairment
allowances are summarised by product type as follows:

rEE
The Group
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BEFER Advances to customers
A Personal
— R85 - Mortgages 17,143,632 17,151,357
— HAt - Others 4,858,417 3,711,930
NS Corporate
—EEEXK — Commercial loans 103,158,279 93,541,765
—E5mE — Trade finance 5,992,781 5,439,177
131,153,109 119,844,229
E5E% Trade bills 8,069,618 13,318,487
RITREMESREEER Advances to banks and other financial institutions - 544,256
4Bzt Total 139,222,727 133,706,972
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4. SRIERERE (&) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 FERRE (&) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEHREMAEE (Z) (B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
ARIRAT
The Bank
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEEXR Advances to customers
@A Personal
— &5 - Mortgages 11,326,989 12,790,281
— HAth - Others 4,324,775 3,527,842
NC] Corporate
—EEEX — Commercial loans 64,479,702 62,983,938
—B5mE — Trade finance 4,931,864 4,933,880
85,063,330 84,235,941
ZHER Trade bills 5,504,118 10,819,714
RIT R HM S pMEE R Advances to banks and other financial institutions = 544,256
st Total 90,567,448 95,599,911
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Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as
overdue when the principal or interest is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular instalments
are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past
due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are
classified as overdue either when a demand for repayment
has been served on the borrower but repayment has not
been made in accordance with the instruction or when the
advances have remained continuously outside the approved
limit that was advised to the borrower.

Advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred and that loss
event(s) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the advances that can be reliably estimated.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
advances has been incurred, the amount of loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows generated by
the advances. Objective evidence that advances are impaired
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about the loss events.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

- Significant financial difficulty incurred by the
borrower;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payment;

- For economic or legal reasons related to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, the Group has granted
to the borrower a concession that it would not
otherwise consider;

- Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or
undergo other financial reorganisation; or

- Other observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from such advances.

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired

Advances that were neither overdue nor impaired are
analysed by internal credit grades as follows:

AEE
The Group
2012
EEBE RSB AT
i Special Substandard st
Pass mention or below Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFE® Advances to customers
EA Personal
— &5 - Mortgages 16,895,662 23,523 2,066 16,921,251
— EAh - Others 4,792,158 8,453 1,607 4,802,218
NG Corporate
—EEER — Commercial loans 100,427,042 2,145,488 72 102,572,602
—EFmE — Trade finance 5,686,815 240,980 - 5,927,795
127,801,677 2,418,444 3,745 130,223,866
E521E Trade bills 8,069,618 - - 8,069,618
RITREMER#EEEZ  Advances to banks and
other financial institutions - - - -
4=t Total 135,871,295 2,418,444 3,745 138,293,484
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4. SRIERERE (&) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 FERRE (&) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEHREMAEE (Z) (B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(a) IR E R EIE R (& (a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired (Cont’d)
REE
The Group
2011
BE@E KA AT
Atk Special  Substandard “ast
Pass mention or below Total
BT T BT T BT T BEET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFE Advances to customers
[EPN Personal
— %18 - Mortgages 16,930,079 2,668 4,213 16,936,960
— EAh — Others 3,690,063 879 655 3,691,597
A Corporate
—EEER — Commercial loans 92,528,432 780,456 21,801 93,330,689
—EFmE — Trade finance 5,375,545 20,585 - 5,396,130
118,524,119 804,588 26,669 119,355,376
5 ER Trade bills 13,231,930 86,557 - 13,318,487
RITREMERMEEZ  Advances to banks and
other financial institutions 544,256 - - 544,256
FEE Total 132,300,305 891,145 26,669 133,218,119
AERAT
The Bank
2012
FE@EE RARB AT
et Special Substandard Mt
Pass mention or below Total
BT T BT T BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
BEFEX Advances to customers
A Personal
— &5 - Mortgages 11,230,412 2,421 1,300 11,234,133
— Hfth - Others 4,282,075 8,453 1,607 4,292,135
NS Corporate
—AEER — Commercial loans 62,857,999 1,321,210 72 64,179,281
—E5E — Trade finance 4,693,834 198,501 - 4,892,335
83,064,320 1,530,585 2,979 84,597,884
E5E1 Trade bills 5,504,118 - - 5,504,118
RITREMESRIEBEER  Advances to banks and
other financial institutions - - - -
@t Total 88,568,438 1,530,585 2,979 90,102,002
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired (Cont’d)

RIRIT
The Bank
2011
BE@E IRER S AT

Atk Special  Substandard 4ast

Pass mention or below Total

BT T BT T BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFER Advances to customers

EPN Personal
— %15 - Mortgages 12,651,801 1,703 2,973 12,656,477
— HAtb - Others 3,506,020 879 655 3,507,554
NS Corporate

—BEEX — Commercial loans 62,686,906 133,993 21,801 62,842,700

—E5/E — Trade finance 4,900,016 18,035 - 4,918,051

83,744,743 154,610 25,429 83,924,782

E5=1 Trade bills 10,733,157 86,557 - 10,819,714
IRITREMSBEIEE  Advances to banks and

other financial institutions 544,256 - - 544,256

FEE Total 95,022,156 241,167 25,429 95,288,752

EERX2HEMER  EZRERREHTRLERRE

BR - ZERIAR/ XA ZATHER

R ERFIIR -
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The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in
impairment loss where the advances are fully collateralised.
While such advances are of “substandard” or lower grades,
they are regarded as not being impaired and have been
included in the above tables.

www.ncb.com.hk



B FE R MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. LEEERERE (& 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 FERR (&) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) BEFREMEE (&) (B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(b)  BEIKBEBERE (b)  Advances overdue but not impaired

W R REE R OTOT The gross amount of advances overdue but not impaired is

analysed as follows:

rEE
The Group
2012
AHRRE YRR
3f@A{E 6f8 A {8
FHiR6EA TEBIF
B#3MEA Overdue for Overdue
HLT  six months for one pnf
Overdue for or less year EBR1F
three but over or less Overdue
months three but over for over @gt
or less months  six months one year Total
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
EFEER Advances to customers
[EPN Personal
— &1 - Mortgages 199,852 4,227 - 191 204,270
— Hft - Others 51,452 - - - 51,452
NG Corporate
—HEERN - Commercial loans 199,491 6,371 1 205,865
-BH8E — Trade finance 3,404 - = 3,404
st Total 454,199 10,598 2 192 464,991
A&E
The Group
2011
A EEIB
3EAE 6fE A8
TiEiEefE A THB1F
#H3MEA Overdue for Overdue
0T six months for one Pk
Overdue for or less year BB1E
three but over or less Overdue
months three but over for over Fey
or less months  six months one year Total
BT T BET T BT BT BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEER Advances to customers
A Personal
— 1715 - Mortgages 203,980 1,452 - 210 205,642
— Hit - Others 12,565 1,305 - - 13,870
yNS] Corporate
-~ HEER - Commercial loans 124,832 - 64 1 124,897
- Bo5nE — Trade finance 11,581 10 - - 11,591
Bst Total 352,958 2,767 64 211 356,000

www.nch.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SRIERERE (&) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 fFERR (&) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) EESRAEMEEE (&) (B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(b) BHIR A EEE () (b) Advances overdue but not impaired (Cont’d)
AT
The Bank
2012
BERA BB
3fEAE 6f8 A8
THiB6MEA FREBI1E
BHA3@A Overdue for Overdue
HLT  six months for one g
Overdue for or less year BB1F
three but over or less Overdue
months three but over for over Mgt
or less months  six months one year Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFEX Advances to customers
EPN Personal
— k18 - Mortgages 92,624 232 = - 92,856
—Hfth - Others 31,863 - - = 31,863
yNS] Corporate
- HEER - Commercial loans 197,791 5,408 - 203,201
-B5E — Trade finance 3,404 - - 3,404
#Et Total 325,682 5,640 2 - 331,324
ARAT
The Bank
2011
kil jakifeepc)
3(EAME 6fE A
THiB6lE A THIB1F
BE3EA  Overdue for Overdue
AT six months for one B
Overdue for or less year BR1EF
three but over or less Overdue
months three but over for over Fey
or less months six months one year Total
BETT BETT AT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEER Advances to customers
EA Personal
— &1 - Mortgages 133,301 503 - - 133,804
— Hit - Others 12,565 1,305 - - 13,870
NG Corporate
- EEER — Commercial loans 124,833 - 64 - 124,897
- Bo5nE — Trade finance 11,422 10 - - 11,432
st Total 282,121 1,818 64 - 284,003
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4., EEREREE &)

41 FERB (&)

(B) HEMREMKE (#)

(c)  BEEN

EEBIBAIBEERRERBRDOMIT :

B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(c) Impaired advances

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed

by product type as follows:

AEE
The Group
2012 2011
EHEHE EREmE
BER Market HWER Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BT T BT T BT BEFIT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFE® Advances to customers
fEA Personal
— &5 - Mortgages 18,111 19,217 8,755 4,564
— HAth — Others 4,747 5,586 6,463 5,350
NC]! Corporate
—EEEX — Commercial loans 379,812 157,993 86,179 -
—B5mE — Trade finance 61,582 83,399 31,456 65,851
=t Total 464,252 266,195 132,853 75,765
RBEBETIEEZER Loan impairment allowances made
BB in respect of such advances 220,593 87,615
RERAT
The Bank
2012 2011
BEHmME EHRME
HWER Market BER Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BET T BET T BT T BET T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFEXR Advances to customers
[EPN Personal
— &5 - Mortgages = - - -
— Hfth - Others 777 = 6,418 4,972
NS Corporate
—HEEX — Commercial loans 97,220 76,219 16,341 -
—E5/E — Trade finance 36,125 17,017 4,397 -
4Bzt Total 134,122 93,236 27,156 4,972
MEBERIELZER Loan impairment allowances made
AR in respect of such advances 58,444 11,652

EFREERBCRBECEREMER ERRER -

www.ncb.com.hk

The loan impairment allowances were made after taking
into account the value of collateral in respect of impaired

advances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4, SREARERE &)
4.1 FERRE (&)
(B) AEEZREMMEE (&)
©  REEH (&)

M2012F12A318 M2011F12A31H - REE KR AEITE
EEREBEZESEBEMBIAEMSBEBEER -

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(c) Impaired advances (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, there were no impaired
trade bills and advances to banks and other financial
institutions.

AEME
The Group
2012 2011
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HELMBEFREBEENEPERZ Current market value of collateral held against
ERmhE the covered portion of such advances to customers 266,195 75,765
LB EAREECEFER Covered portion of such advances to customers 177,725 35,646
R BB REECEFER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 286,527 97,207
AERT
The Bank
2012 2011
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEMBEEFRBENTPERZ Current market value of collateral held against
ERmE the covered portion of such advances to customers 93,236 4,972
LB EHAREECEFER Covered portion of such advances to customers 51,233 3,977
LB B REBECERPER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 82,889 23,179

FEDRIREZEFERITAOT :

Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed
as follows:

AEME
The Group
2012 2011
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEDBNRECEFERERE Gross classified or impaired advances to customers 483,659 165,966
BRESEIREBEIEFER Gross classified or impaired advances to customers
HRREFPERL & as a percentage of gross advances to customers 0.37% 0.14%
HABERIEMER TG 2 EFORMELEE  Individually assessed loan impairment allowances
made in respect of such advances 220,593 87,615
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4., EEREREE &)

4.1 FERR (&)

(B) HEHFRAMEKRE ()

()  REEN (%)

B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(c) Impaired advances (Cont’d)

AERT
The Bank

2012 2011

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

BESHESREZEFERERE Gross classified or impaired advances to customers 147,240 57,870
BEFHDBEIRBEIEFER Gross classified or impaired advances to customers

HRRPERL R as a percentage of gross advances to customers 0.17% 0.07%

MABEEEBIFHE 2 EFREEE  Individually assessed loan impairment allowances
made in respect of such advances 58,444 11,652

FE D BEUREZ TP EFRTIR GRITEGD) BT (RITE
(BT KA ANEBRBRELBASENFEEDEN R

B TRERTER] BB

ek B E B FEHE RBEE R

(d)  BHEAE3EAZEH

Classified or impaired advances to customers follow the
definitions set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the
Banking Ordinance and represent advances which are either
classified as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the
Group's classification of loan quality, or individually assessed
to be impaired.

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months

BAERASE A c EREES T The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three
months is analysed as follows:
rEE
The Group
2012 2011
HEFER HEFER
HWEAOL BEAOLE
% of gross % of gross
£% advances to %%  advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEERa%E Gross advances to customers
Eﬁ,ﬁﬂ which have been overdue for:
— BiE3E AR — six months or less but over
TiBimE6fE A three months 37,443 0.03% 11,900 0.01%
— fBiEefE 1A — one year or less but over
TEBiB1F six months 101,388 0.08% 5,490 0.00%
— fBB1E — over one year 125,587 0.09% 88,155 0.08%
B HAER A 31E A Advances overdue for over
ZER three months 264,418 0.20% 105,545 0.09%
bz BRIE Individually assessed loan
&R E 2 B impairment allowances made
B2 in respect of such advances 121,444 84,606

www.ncb.com.hk
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B R R PYRE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, SRIERERE (&) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 EERKB (&) 4.1  Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEHREMEEE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(d) B E3EH B (& (d) Advances overdue for more than three months (Cont’'d)
RERAT
The Bank
2012 2011
EEFER HEFER
wEAOL BWEBDLL
% of gross % of gross
£%8 advances to ©%  advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BET T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
EFER@E - Gross advances to customers
[ which have been overdue for:
— HiE3E AR — six months or less but over
A6 fE A three months 23,086 0.03% 7,048 0.01%
— HiEeE AR - one year or less but over
TiBiE1F six months 9,707 0.01% 5,490 0.01%
— BiB1F — over one year 25,591 0.03% 9,308 0.01%
A HAERE3E A Advances overdue for over
ZER three months 58,384 0.07% 21,846 0.03%
gt BERE Individually assessed loan
(EGIEREwd =& impairment allowances made
BB in respect of such advances 21,359 8,643
rEE
The Group
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
H LM EERRBEENEPERZ Current market value of collateral held against
EIRmmE the covered portion of such advances to customers 611,086 23,582
LB EHRREECEFER Covered portion of such advances to customers 150,371 11,416
LR EERRBECEFER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 114,047 94,129
ARERAT
The Bank
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
HEABERREENEPERZ Current market value of collateral held against
EiRmmE the covered portion of such advances to customers 430,151 3,722
i BEEREECEFPFER Covered portion of such advances to customers 20,753 1,818
FIR BB REECEFPER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 37,631 20,028
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4. SEIERERE (@)

4.1 FERR (&)

(B) ABEHRAMKE (&)

(d)  BEBBEMEHZEH (&
BHERSREERNERRIEREATREPETH
Egﬁé@ﬁ%&&%%$~ﬁAﬁ%ﬁETWE%E%

2012412 A31B &2011F12A31H » REE R ARITE
EEBE3MAZESEBRMBTREMSBBEER -

B FE R MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months (Cont’'d)
Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is
principally represented by charges over business assets such

as commercial and residential premises for corporate loans
and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, there were no trade
bills and advances to banks and other financial institutions
overdue for more than three months for the Group and the
Bank.

(e) ARELHE (e) Rescheduled advances
rEE
The Group
2012 2011
EEFER HEFER
WEHDL BEAOLL
% of gross % of gross
£% advances to &%  advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BET T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
CERARFERFHE Rescheduled advances to
(BHEBER customers net of amounts
[ E3EA 2 included in “Advances overdue
Bk #15) for more than three months” 11,039 0.01% 20,514 0.02%
ARERAT
The Bank
2012 2011
EEEER HEFER
HWEHDLE wEHDLL
% of gross % of gross
£%8 advances to %%  advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BET T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
CERARFERFHE Rescheduled advances to
(BIREBER customers net of amounts
[EHABE3IEA 2 included in “Advances overdue
Bk Em) for more than three months” 11,039 0.01% 20,514 0.02%

R2012F12A31B M2011F12A31H » REE KR AEITE
EEEHZRITREMESREEER -

www.nch.com.hk

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, there were no
rescheduled advances to banks and other financial
institutions for the Group and the Bank.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SEIERER @

4.1 FERRE (&)

(B) HEEMRAMESE (&)

(e)  HEEMHEF ()

REREZR Ty %ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬂzl%ﬁﬁﬁ £ N HR I8 SR L

EH ENEREENECER B ENTE R KS
j‘fﬁkﬁﬂmiﬁ%ﬁtﬂﬂlﬁ A B S Ft%ﬁﬁ_ﬂﬂlﬁ 8
/T/\ A

) EFPENETE
(i) BN B2 EFPERE

*ETFE%‘/%VWWMM&FEA&E%Z%%’E&“*EZ
FEREBEIHOT

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(e) Rescheduled advances (Cont’d)

Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been
restructured or renegotiated because of deterioration in
the financial position of the borrower or of the inability
of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule.
Rescheduled advances, which have been overdue for more
than three months under the revised repayment terms,
are included in “Advances overdue for more than three
months”.

(f) Concentration of advances to customers
(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

The information concerning gross advances to customers has
been analysed into loans used inside or outside Hong Kong
by industry sectors of the borrowers as follows:

iy
The Group
2012
Py T ﬁﬂﬁ@ ﬁéﬁ@
SEHM ZER ZER
% Covered AEERE REE
ZEEH by BELE Individually ~ Collectively
B8 Ccollateral HHE assessed  assessed
Gross orother  Classified @E*  impairment impairment
advances security orimpaired  Overdue* allowances allowances
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERERZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IEcmE Industrial, commercial and financial
- MEER - Property development 1,779,675 43.52% - - - 7,646
- MERE - Property investment 12,173,523 83.05% 6,534 152,920 - 142,096
-cRE - Financial concerns 1,626,879 62.05% - - - 19,981
-RELL - Stockbrokers 17,427 13.88% - - - 274
- HERTER - Wholesale and retail trade 12,832,343 47.65% 48,097 60,639 19,815 103,771
- BEE - Manufacturing 3,735,230 40.35% 20,906 41,113 8,983 42,651
- BHLEHIE - Transport and transport equipment 5,271,838 14.44% 1,027 312 217 59,638
— fRRIEE - Recreational activities 66,779 - = = - 690
- AR - Information technology 2,290,103 1.45% 2,164 2,164 599 6,225
- £f - Others 8,408,000 50.38% 19,713 43,616 2,319 44,934
EA Individuals
~-BEBEEBHEHE . - Loans for the purchase of flats
MARELEEE in Home Ownership Scheme,
HEREEELE Private Sector Participation Scheme
FERFIER and Tenants Purchase Scheme 703,350 100.00% 3,015 17,512 - 378
-BRAMEENEL - Loans for purchase of other
- residential properties 10,623,638 99.97% 1,725 75,344 - 4,263
- ift - Others 3,006,246 70.51% 2,526 9,517 788 1,572
EEBFERCER AR Total loans for use in Hong Kong 62,535,031 60.75% 105,707 403,137 32,721 434,119
BHRE Trade finance 5,992,781 34.60% 61,582 62,454 42,165 54,299
EBERMIMERZER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 62,625,297 35.95% 316,370 443,749 145,707 481,031
XFPERBE Gross advances to customers 131,153,109 47.72% 483,659 909,340 220,593 969,449
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B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, TREREEE &) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 EERKB (&) 4.1  Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEHREMEEE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
() EEEHENT (&) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) RITEP B EPERERE (18) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
T5E
The Group
2011
BEAREER BRI FT A Haih
ZBEAL 2B ZE®
% Covered WEER WEER
5P by BENE Individually ~ Collectively
EneE collateral ERAE assessed assessed
Gross orother  Classified #@E*  impairment  impairment
advances security  or impaired Overdue*  allowances  allowances
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBERAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TEeHE Industrial, commercial and financial
-NEERE — Property development 2,738,332 58.71% - - - 8,510
—MERE — Property investment 10,942,261 79.38% - 45,685 - 110,811
- SEE - Financial concerns 3,005,772 35.70% - - - 8,392
-REER - Stockbrokers 3,241 100.00% - - = 12
- HERTEX ~ Wholesale and retail trade 18,064,963 61.52% 8,032 48,960 2,492 109,024
—BEE - Manufacturing 4,412,357 38.10% 9,409 14,854 2,214 39,747
- ERRERLE - Transport and transport equipment 3,542,563 10.55% - 2,466 - 18,360
SSEE] — Recreational activities 70,162 - - - - 194
- BB - Information technology 1,091,930 2.48% 2,173 2,173 552 3215
—Hfth - Others 5,427,639 62.95% 977 30,140 725 39,451
A Individuals
~BEELEHEE . - Loans for the purchase of flats
MARELZREE in Home Ownership Scheme,
HEREEELRE Private Sector Participation Scheme
SEETZER and Tenants Purchase Scheme 861,024 100.00% 4,618 29,248 - 577
~BEEMETMEY - Loans for purchase of other
B3 residential properties 11,929,257 99.99% 2,422 104,556 - 4,932
—Eft - Others 2,477,768 83.41% 2,625 10,544 825 2,084
EERFRZER LR Total loans for use in Hong Kong 64,567,269 66.35% 30,256 288,626 6,808 345,309
BH5HE Trade finance 5,439,177 33.02% 31,456 39,972 2,971 44,663
EBERIMER ZER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 49,837,783 35.50% 104,254 150,518 77,836 315,160
RFEMER Gross advances to customers 119,844,229 52.01% 165,966 479,116 87,615 705,132

www.ncb.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4, TREREE &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 FERRE (&) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEHREMAEE (Z) (B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(f) BE B ERE () (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) MTES B RPEHBE (58) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
ARAT
The Bank
2012
EREAE @EIJ#{*E sae#ia
e 2ER 2ER
% Covered HEEE HEEE
by ~HER Individually ~ Collectively
EXEE  ollateral R E assessed  assessed
Gross or other Classified @H*  impairment impairment
advances security orimpaired  Overdue* allowances allowances
BB BT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBERAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IEsE Industrial, commercial and financial
- MEER - Property development 1,779,675 43.52% - - - 7,646
-NERE - Property investment 12,173,523 83.05% 6,534 152,920 - 142,096
-RE - Financial concerns 1,626,879 62.05% - - - 19,981
-RELER - Stockbrokers 17,427 13.88% - - - 274
-HELTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 12,832,343 47.65% 48,097 60,639 19,815 103,771
- Qg% - Manufacturing 3,735,230 40.35% 20,906 41,113 8,983 42,651
- BHLEHIE - Transport and transport equipment 5,233,212 14.55% 1,027 312 217 59,319
—KEED - Recreational activities 66,779 - = = - 690
— BB — Information technology 2,290,103 1.45% 2,164 2,164 599 6,225
—Hfth - Others 8,408,000 50.38% 19,713 43,616 2,319 44,934
A Individuals
-HEEEBHEHE - - Loans for the purchase of flats
IARELEEE in Home Ownership Scheme,
HERHEELAR Private Sector Participation Scheme
HERFZER and Tenants Purchase Scheme 703,350 100.00% 3,015 17,512 = 378
-BEAMEENEL — Loans for purchase of other
=5 residential properties 10,623,638 99.97% 1,725 75,344 - 4,263
- Hft - Others 3,006,246 70.51% 2,526 9,517 788 1,572
EEBER SR LR Total loans for use in Hong Kong 62,496,405 60.79% 105,707 403,137 32,721 433,800
BHRE Trade finance 4,931,864 35.22% 36,125 36,997 25,723 45,616
EEBUIMERZER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 17,635,061 17.38% 5,408 5,408 - 111,767
RFENEE Gross advances to customers 85,063,330 50.31% 147,240 445,542 58,444 591,183
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SRIERERE (&) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 EERKB (&) 4.1  Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEHREMEEE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
() EEEHENT (&) () Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) RITEP B EPERERE (18) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
KFAT
The Bank
2011
BAREE ERIEEE HATME
ZEAK ZER ZER
% Covered HEEE REEE
5P by BENE Individually  Collectively
s collateral FRE assessed assessed
Gross orother  Classified #@E* impairment  impairment
advances security  or impaired Overdue*  allowances  allowances
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBERAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THeRE Industrial, commercial and financial
S EL - Property development 2,738,332 58.71% - - - 8,510
- MERE — Property investment 10,942,261 79.38% - 45,685 - 110,811
] - Financial concerns 3,005,772 35.70% - - - 8,392
-RELR - Stockbrokers 3,241 100.00% - - - 12
- HERTEX - Wholesale and retail trade 18,064,963 61.52% 8,032 43,960 2,492 109,024
—BEE - Manufacturing 4,412,357 38.10% 9,409 14,854 2,214 39,747
- BHRERZRE - Transport and transport equipment 3,500,262 10.68% - 2,466 - 17,653
— KEES - Recreational activities 70,162 - - - - 194
-Gt — Information technology 1,091,930 2.48% 2,173 2,173 552 3,215
- Eft - Others 5,193,609 61.28% 977 30,140 725 35,544
A Individuals
-BEREEHEAZ - - Loans for the purchase of flats
LAREZREE in Home Ownership Scheme,
HERAEEAR Private Sector Participation Scheme
HERFIER and Tenants Purchase Scheme 861,024 100.00% 4,618 29,248 - 577
-BEHEMEENEL — Loans for purchase of other
L residential properties 11,929,257 99.99% 2,422 104,556 - 4,932
- Hft - Others 2,477,768 83.41% 2,625 10,544 825 2,084
GEEBERERBE Total loans for use in Hong Kong 64,290,938 66.27% 30,256 288,626 6,808 340,695
B58E Trade finance 4,933,880 34.58% 4,397 15,829 2,971 36,250
ERBIMERZER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 15,011,123 20.17% 23,217 43 1,873 51,506
KPEF®EE Gross advances to customers 84,235,941 56.20% 57,870 304,498 11,652 428,451
* FPRBIBHBEZER  BEEASIFEEBERMNAMEE  AYERE *  Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when

B e
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the principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4, <THREREE (@)

41 FERB (&)

(B) HEMREMKE (#)
) EFPENESE (&)
(i) BITED R BPESER (&)

RS R BB FRBERER - REFMESED BRE

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)

The amount of new impairment allowances charged to the

BHMT income statement, and classified or impaired loans written
off during the year are shown below:
r5E
The Group
2012 2011
M ESE Wi E SR
RREER FREEN
FiRAEERE Classified ~ #IR(EEE Classified
New or impaired New or impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BETT BETT AT ABETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERGERAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
IEemE Industrial, commercial and financial
- MEER — Property development - - - _
- MERE ~ Property investment 29,103 99 10,625 118
o - Financial concerns 11,267 - 766 -
- RELL ~ Stockbrokers 257 - 6 -
—HBERTEE — Wholesale and retail trade 22,910 4,337 42,298 877
— Bl - Manufacturing 11,775 1,766 13,487 4,979
- BB NEHRE - Transport and transport equipment 41,032 - 7,098 -
— REEE — Recreational activities 485 - 42 _
— BRI — Information technology 3,045 - 233 -
— Hit: - Others 11,112 605 8,763 13
A Individuals
-REREEERE ~ Loans for the purchase of flats
IARBELEER in Home Ownership Scheme,
HERAEEAR Private Sector Participation Scheme
FEBFZER and Tenants Purchase Scheme - - - -
- BEHEMEEDE ~ Loans for purchase of other
ZEH residential properties = = 673 -
—Htth - Others = = 885 -
EEBERzETEE Total loans for use in Hong Kong 130,986 6,807 84,876 5,987
ZH5RE Trade finance 53,548 2,649 12,896 4,819
EEBAIMER 2 B Loans for use outside Hong Kong 231,122 378 87,728 22,891
RFEEHES Gross advances to customers 415,656 9,834 185,500 33,697
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4, <THREREE (@)

41 FERB (&)

(B) HEMREMKE (#)

B FE R MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) HXEESEHRE (£) () Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) MTES I RPEHBEEE (&) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
BT
The Bank
2012 2011
M ELH WEHREN SR
HREER SREER
FREEEE Classified  #Tei{E%ER Classified
New or impaired New or impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BETT BETT BB AETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERERAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THEsmsE Industrial, commercial and financial
- MERR - Property development - - - _
—MERE — Property investment 29,103 99 10,625 118
- SRE - Financial concerns 11,267 = 766 -
- BRELL ~ Stockbrokers 257 - 6 -
- HERTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 22,910 4,337 42,298 877
—BEx - Manufacturing 11,775 1,766 13,487 4,979
— BB B RE — Transport and transport equipment 40,950 - 6,999 -
— KEES ~ Recreational activities 485 - 42 -
— BIRHE ~ Information technology 3,045 - 233 -
— Hfth - Others 11,112 605 8,215 13
A Individuals
-REREEEEE ~ Loans for the purchase of flats
MARBELEER in Home Ownership Scheme,
FERHEEAE Private Sector Participation Scheme
HEIBFCER and Tenants Purchase Scheme - - - _
-BEEMEENE - Loans for purchase of other
ZEWN residential properties = = 673 -
—Hfty - Others = = 885 -
EEBERZETEHR Total loans for use in Hong Kong 130,904 6,807 84,229 5,987
EHRE Trade finance 35,630 2,649 11,716 4,819
EEBUIMEBZER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 58,653 - 1,940 _
XEFERBE Gross advances to customers 225,187 9,456 97,885 10,806

www.nch.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. ERERERE &)

41 FERB (&)

(B) AAEEHRAMMEE (E)

()  EFEHENE (E)

(i) IHMBRESEIEEERAE
THBREFPERHEBEESNERET YU F 2 E
o WEBREBREBEZ - —RNEs  BOEPERZE
RAFEEREETSTE JeRRERER ARES o

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers

The following geographical analysis of advances to customers
is based on the location of the counterparties, after taking
into account the transfer of risk. In general, such transfer of
risk takes place if the advances to customers are guaranteed
by a party in a country which is different from that of the
customer.

EEEHMEE Gross advances to customers
REE
The Group
2012 2011
BETT BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
N Hong Kong 67,584,057 65,296,349
HR B A s Mainland China 58,393,561 48,409,389
HAh Others 5,175,491 6,138,491
131,153,109 119,844,229
ARERAT
The Bank
2012 2011
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 63,543,928 60,491,684
B A Mainland China 17,048,232 18,394,496
HAh Others 4,471,170 5,349,761
85,063,330 84,235,941
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4, SREARERE &)

4.1 FERRE (&)

(B) AEEZREMMEE (&)

)  EFEHERE (&)

(i) HHERESEIEFPEREE (F)

EFERAE ()
BREFERRBFEASTAIENREESE

B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont’d)

Gross advances to customers (Cont'd)

Collectively assessed loan impairment allowances in
respect of the gross advances to customers

REME
The Group
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE Hong Kong 480,016 374,974
AR A D Mainland China 430,812 283,920
Hh Others 58,621 46,238
969,449 705,132
RERIT
The Bank
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Hong Kong 429,488 323,930
R 3D Mainland China 130,398 83,186
HAb Others 31,297 21,335
591,183 428,451
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4., STEREE (&) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 EE&RKE (8 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) AHEFRAEMEEE (&) (B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
) BE B ERE () (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(ii) BRI Ay EFERMAEE (B) (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
BEES Overdue advances
REE
The Group
2012 2011
BEFT  ENT
HK$'000 HK$'000
N Hong Kong 472,042 365,467
9 it Mainland China 433,690 102,176
HAl Others 3,608 11,473
909,340 479,116
ARERAT
The Bank
2012 2011
BETT  EETR
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 405,112 291,507
B A it Mainland China 40,430 12,387
HAh Others - 604
445,542 304,498
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4.
4.1
(B)
)

cRERER (&)
EERR (&)
BEHRAMEE (7)
EEEHESE ()

(iy IRBERESEZFFPERERE (B)

BMER (&)

L8 0 B KA 1B B AT Ad 2 ERORE £

B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont’d)

Overdue advances (Cont'd)

Individually assessed loan impairment allowances in
respect of the overdue advances

AEE
The Group
2012 2011
BET T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 93,005 60,027
A B At Mainland China 123,297 24,757
HAh Others = 89
216,302 84,873
AERAT
The Bank
2012 2011
BET T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 35,992 6,682
B A Mainland China 18,161 2,139
HAith Others - 89
54,153 8,910

www.ncb.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4, SREARERE &)

4.1 FERRE (&)

(B) AEEZREMMEE (&)

)  EFEHERE (&)

(i) HHERESEIEFPEREE (F)

BMER (&)
BEAREREASTEZERREER

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont’d)

Overdue advances (Cont'd)

Collectively assessed loan impairment allowances in
respect of the overdue advances

rEE
The Group
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BE Hong Kong 3,916 5,343
B A Mainland China 1,690 542
HAh, Others 11 48
5,617 5,933
KRBT
The Bank
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BE Hong Kong 3,713 5,025
R A A Mainland China 496 156
Hh Others - 2
4,209 5,183
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SREAKESE o) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 EE&RKE (8 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) AHEFRAEMEEE (&) (B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
) BE B ERE () (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(ii) BRI Ay EFERMAEE (B) (ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
BESBERRESER Classified or impaired advances
REE
The Group
2012 2011
BEFT  ENT
HK$'000 HK$'000
S Hong Kong 180,495 107,560
R B A3 Mainland China 303,164 52,448
HAl Others - 5,958
483,659 165,966
ARERAT
The Bank
2012 2011
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
N Hong Kong 120,531 46,292
R A 4B, Mainland China 26,709 5,621
HAl Others - 5,957
147,240 57,870
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4, SREARERE &)

4.1 FERRE (&)

(B) AEEZREMMEE (&)

)  EFEHERE (&)

(i) HHERESEIEFPEREE (F)

BESEIREER (F)
AR E 2 SR E B RKEE B R 2 B EERE

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont’d)

Classified or impaired advances (Cont'd)

Individually assessed loan impairment allowances in
respect of the classified or impaired advances

AEE
The Group
2012 2011
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BE Hong Kong 95,512 60,896
AR Mainland China 125,081 24,757
Htb Others = 1,962
220,593 87,615
AERAT
The Bank
2012 2011
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 38,498 7,552
R A it Mainland China 19,946 2,138
HAh, Others = 1,962
58,444 11,652
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4.1
(B)
)
(ii)

cRERER (&)

EERR (&)

BEHRAMEE (7)
EEEHESE ()

BB ENSE EPERGE (B)

BESEIREER (F)

BREESBERREERFEASTEZERREER

B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont’d)

Classified or impaired advances (Cont'd)

Collectively assessed loan impairment allowances in
respect of the classified or impaired advances

REME
The Group
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
e Hong Kong 193 362
AR A D Mainland China 392 214
585 576
RERIT
The Bank
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 108 81
108 81
Q) KEIEE (C)  Repossessed assets

RER > REERARITEBE KR 1768 W & 2 # i X
BYRIANBRENEE - RUEE REREESANT -

During the year, the Group and the Bank obtained assets by
taking possession of collateral held as security. The nature
and carrying value of such assets held as at 31 December

are summarised as follows:

AEBRARIT
The Group and the Bank

2012
BT T
HK$°000

2011
BT
HK$'000

TEME
FEmE

Industrial properties
Residential properties

4,644
12,198

16,842

www.ncb.com.hk

#1971 % 4. 4% m NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT #8105



BAFE R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, <THREREE (@)
41 FERB (&)
(C) KEIEE (&)

REEEANEITHR2012F12A31BEEHNWRREIE ZE 2 HE
5B #24,229,0007T (20114 : & #2,530,0007T) K&K
21,581,000 (20114F : &) - EREAEE L AEITHRA
HIEAREEESEHENYE (NBRAEEFRIEES
FERR HIRIREE S XNES) M8 ERANGEFETTEHEE0
1R ©

BROEENERENIIFER  AREFRBERATI
SRR

- HBLEER

- BREREE—HHEEN

- LA ER

(D)  EIRITREMEBEENGZEFRFH

TERAERTREMSREENIERERDBESRETHR
12 A3 BIR-F g 2 FE R D AT ©

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(C) Repossessed assets (Cont'd)

The estimated market value of repossessed assets held by the
Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2012 amounted to
HK$24,229,000 (2011: HK$2,530,000) and HK$21,581,000
(2011: Nil) respectively. They comprise properties in respect
of which the Group and the Bank have acquired access or
control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions
by the proprietors concerned) for release in full or in part of
the obligations of the borrowers.

When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into
cash, the Group may consider the following alternatives:

- adjusting the selling prices
- selling the loans together with the assets
- arranging loan restructuring

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

The following tables present an analysis of balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions that
are neither overdue nor impaired as at 31 December by
rating agency designation.

~EH
The Group
2012
A3LLTR

AaaZA3 Lower TR st
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

PR ERTT Central banks
BITREME REE Banks and other financial institutions

13,139,030 - - 13,139,030
24,276,860 12,304,614 7,725,531 44,307,005

37,415,890 12,304,614 7,725,531 57,446,035

REE
The Group
2011
A3LAT
AaaZA3 Lower TR @t
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT T BT T BT TT BEETTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AR RERTT Central banks
RIT R H A mikrs Banks and other financial institutions

10,554,122 - - 10,554,122
25,055,790 5,512,998 25,450,185 56,018,973

35,609,912 5,512,998 25,450,185 66,573,095
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B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

4., SREAKESE o) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 EE&RKE (8 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(D) ERITREMSFHEENZRTZE () (D)  Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions (Cont’d)
AERT
The Bank
2012
A3BLF
AaaZA3 Lower |ITR wat
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total

BT T BT T BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FRRERTT Central banks 35,306 = = 35,306
SRIT M E A& mh s Banks and other financial institutions ~ 16,135,722 5,524,320 1,259,564 22,919,606

16,171,028 5,524,320 1,259,564 22,954,912

ARIRIT
The Bank
2011
A3

AaaZEA3 Lower AR 5T
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BT T BEETIT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
A sR 1T Central banks 517,779 - - 517,779

RITREME mgE Banks and other financial institutions 16,827,133 2,369,543 9,123,777 28,320,453
17,344,912 2,369,543 9,123,777 28,838,232

R2012F12A31H K2011F 1284318 » AEEBE RARIRITE As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, there were no overdue
R B E 2 R1T R E A S RSB A R AT K - or impaired balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions for the Group and the Bank.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. cEERERE @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
41 EERKB (&) 4.1  Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(E) (EHF#EF (E)  Debt securities

TREBABEITHIROM 2 EBEAFREE - EEETHRD
BT AIEmETANRRE -

The following tables present an analysis of the carrying value
of debt securities by issue rating. In the absence of such issue

ratings, the ratings designated for the issuers are reported.

PN |
The Group
2012
A3LLF
Aa1ZAa3 A1EA3 Lower BT @it
Aaa Aaflto Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AEEEES Available-for-sale securities 649,815 20,427,584 12,120,299 205,282 4,901,735 38,304,715
HEZIHBAES Held-to-maturity securities - 884,701 585,679 896 250 1,471,526
G E Loans and receivables = = 199,891 = 957,371 1,157,262
NFEEZEA Financial assets at fair value
BaleREE through profit or loss 621 4,271,737 581,712 271,090 - 5,125,160
st Total 650,436 25,584,022 13,487,581 477,268 5,859,356 46,058,663
AEE
The Group
2011
AT
Aa1EAa3 ATEA3 Lower ETR #ar
Aaa  Aal to Aa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BETT BT BT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AEEEES Available-for-sale securities 622,547 17,806,293 5,338,923 202,942 2,741,381 26,712,086
BEZIHAES Held-to-maturity securities - 1,082,794 465,957 1,699 250 1,550,700
BN Loans and receivables - - 1,875,919 - - 1,875,919
NFEEEA Financial assets at fair value
BaleREE through profit or loss 500 1,108,780 869,415 267,066 - 2,245,761
st Total 623,047 19,997,867 8,550,214 471,707 2,741,631 32,384,466
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41 FERB (&)
(E)  fEfss% (&)

B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(E) Debt securities (Cont’d)

AT
The Bank
2012
A3BLF
Aa1ZAa3 A1ZA3 Lower £ @t
Aaa Aaf to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BETR BETT BETR BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A EES Available-for-sale securities 649,815 15,972,027 12,120,299 205,282 3,151,827 32,099,250
HERIHEES Held-to-maturity securities - - 585,679 896 250 586,825
BRI Loans and receivables - - 199,891 - 957,371 1,157,262
NFEEEIA Financial assets at fair value
BRceBAE through profit or loss 621 4,271,737 581,712 271,090 - 5,125,160
ot Total 650,436 20,243,764 13,487,581 477,268 4,109,448 38,968,497
AT
The Bank
2011
A3BAT
AalZEAa3 AEA3 Lower R Bt
Aaa  Aal to Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BB BB BB BB BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A EES Available-for-sale securities 622,547 14,619,883 5,338,923 202,942 2,741,381 23,525,676
HERIHEES Held-to-maturity securities - 102,631 465,957 1,699 250 570,537
ER RN Loans and receivables - - 1,875,919 - - 1,875,919
NFEEEIA Financial assets at fair value
BacepiE through profit or loss 500 1,108,780 869,415 267,066 - 2,245,761
e Total 623,047 15,831,294 8,550,214 471,707 2,741,631 28,217,893
2012 12A318 AEBRERAETHEE S & As at 31 December 2012, the Group's and the Bank’s

& 55 R B & ¥E & B #6895,0000T (20114F « B #E
27,080,0007T) * (A AL B R AEITHRFERFEH0.01%

(201148 © 0.08%) }0.01% (20114 : 0.10%) °

www.ncb.com.hk

exposure to MBS/ABS amounted to HK$895,000 (2011:
HK$27,080,000), representing 0.01% (2011: 0.08%) of the
total debt securities of the Group and 0.01% (2011: 0.10%)
of the total debt securities of the Bank.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4, <THREREE (@)
41 FERB (&)
(E)  ER#EF (B)

AEENARITR2012F12A318%2011412A318 )8
EBRMSREZEHEES -

4.2 TWEER

MISERRIERESBTISER (B5ER,FIX - EX K
EEH  BRER) KBHEBEENINE R MR
ERAEHRAES T AT A RN EEERANIBL - KEME
KEEEAOTSREBRLE - TREREW S FE -

mZERRERBR  REREAKENRRFELENESEXGE
RER  KETSNRBREEHEMEEEETER  BY
EEECEBTARELNTSEAR REESEKIER
R e

RRITIRRERERELRRBEEMSEAR  EFSURKE
BTHERERZES SRERENTSAMBALEN -

KARRTTSRBARARERBRMRERITER - #R
EEAER T IZREREGESERRINRBRKEZA - &
BEREBHL SRHBLEMNAEREBCRENRBRRIEEL
TEE AFHAMERERIERRS  aHABEERRE
B FARAEEERS  MERBRABINERREZE
B BEEgANmSREREBEATER - LEMEART
RRERESMBE

AEBBREMSARBEZELRE - BRER - 52 - BRI
EHImSERER - TERBREFMRELFZETRNERE
IHIE%E - WORE - BRI NRGEED T (REEE)
F - IBRARESIREGEEFTZE S SOERAR - 25l
HEREREZES AEABEEZESASREREM]
e B BB EHZ B T IS R R 1515 A IR R 50 B A F R
ES
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(E) Debt securities (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, there were no overdue
or impaired debt securities for the Group and the Bank.

4.2 Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of losses arising from adverse
movements in the value of foreign exchange, commodity,
interest rate and equity positions held by the Group due to
the volatility of financial market price (debt security price/
interest rate, foreign exchange rate, equity price, commodity
price). The Group adopts a robust market risk appetite to
achieve a balance between risk and return.

The Group’s objective in managing market risk is to secure
healthy growth of the treasury business, by effective
management of potential market risk in the Group's
business, according to the Group’s overall risk appetite
and strategy of treasury business on the basis of a well
established risk management regime and related measures.

In accordance with the Bank’s corporate governance
principles in respect of risk management, the Board of
Directors and RMC, senior management and functional
units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage
the Bank’s market risk. The risk management units are
responsible for assisting senior management to monitor the
market risk profile and compliance of management policies
and limits of the Bank to ensure that overall and individual
market risks are within the acceptable level. Independent
units are assigned to monitor the risk exposure against risk
limits on a daily basis, together with profit and loss reports
submitted to the Management on a regular basis, while limit
excesses should be reported at once when they occur. The
subsidiary sets up independent risk monitoring teams to
monitor daily market risk and limit compliance, and submit
management information and reports to the Bank on a
regular basis.

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to
identify, measure, monitor and control market risk. Major
risk indicators and limits established include but are not
limited to VAR, Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing
and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point Value), etc. To meet
management requirements, major risk indicators and limits
are classified into four levels, and approved by RMC, the
Asset and Liability Management Committee or senior
management respectively. Treasury business units are
required to conduct their business within approved market
risk indicators and limits.

www.ncb.com.hk
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(A)  EBE

rEERRRREEE-—RTEER  TEHERRERE
BENEREEERE AEERAL—WAKRETEE
m ERESEEE  NAEENTISRIEARE  HE
99% B Z/KFE T R1KHEH R EE R ARTHRRE -
A R A B A SR TR R B R AT -

TRHMREE KT SRBRFRNRERE -

B FE R MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)

(A) VAR

The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general
market risk to RMC and senior management on a periodic
basis. The Group adopts a uniformed VAR calculation model,
using historical simulation approach and 2-year historical
data, to calculate the VAR of the Group over 1-day holding
period with 99% confidence level, and sets up the VAR limit
of the Group.

The following table sets out the VAR for all general market
risk exposure' of the Group.

F145 M12A31B 25REHE 2FES58E 2FTH8E

At  Minimum for Maximum for  Average for

Year 31 December the year the year the year

BEFR  EMTR  EETR  BETR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2HMBEBZEKRE VAR for all market risk 2012 2,095 1,188 2,814 2,232
fE K@ e 2 Bl E VAR for foreign exchange risk 2012 2,007 1,150 2,774 2,171
FxRER 2 BRE VAR for interest risk 2012 256 148 534 251

Q0RFAEERTHERBEBARZER SHREMNFATFY
U #5247 %750,0007T °

R

1 T SN 4 BB

2 TR IESNE £ I O BB R W A -

3 R {ER2012F BA KB ER IR - HULRH2011EN L RET -

www.nch.com.hk

In 2012, the average daily revenue? of the Group earned
from market risk-related trading activities was HK$750,000.

Notes:
1 Structural FX positions have been excluded.
2 Revenues from structural FX positions and back-to-back transactions

have been excluded.

3 VAR was formally applied by the Group in 2012. There are no

comparative disclosures in 2011.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd)
4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(A) VAR (Cont'd)

Although VAR is a valuable guide to risk, it should always be
viewed in the context of its limitations. For example:

- the use of historical data as a proxy for estimating
future events may not encompass all potential events,
particularly those which are extreme in nature;

- the use of a one-day holding period assumes that
all positions can be liquidated or hedged in one day.
This may not fully reflect the market risk arising at
times of severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding
period may be insufficient to liquidate or hedge all
positions fully;

- the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does
not take into account losses that might occur beyond
this level of confidence; and

- VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures
outstanding at the close of business and therefore
does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress
test indicators and limits to assess and manage the market
risk uncovered by VAR. The stress testing programme of
the market risk includes sensitivity testing on changes in
risk factors with various degrees of severity, as well as
scenario analysis on historical events including the 1997
Asian Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.

(B) Currency risk

The Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in major
currencies, particularly the HK dollar, the US dollar and
Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of the Group
is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and
VAR limit) are used to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover,
the Group seeks to minimise the gap between assets and
liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts
(e.g. FX swap) are usually used to manage FX risk associated
with foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities.

www.ncb.com.hk



4. THERERE &

42 THERE (8)

(B) HMEERB (&)

TREM T AERRARTRIZA3IE ZHMNEE RERK
A FRUFABTREGEINREERAE  WIREM

DR

B FE R MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(B) Currency risk (Cont’d)
The tables below summarise the Group’s and the Bank's
exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk as at 31
December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities

at carrying amounts in HK dollars equivalent, categorised by
the original currency.

158
The Group
2012
AE i3
N n BT BE  Japanese Pound A @it
Renminbi ~ US Dollars  HK Dollars Euro Yen Sterling Others Total
AeTn  AMTn  A¥TR  B%Tn  BMTn AETn AMTn B¥TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
ERRERERET R Cash and balances with banks and other
SHERNAS financial institutions 30,049216 1,858,532 6814663 428490 106430 613309 917,680 40,788,320
ERORAMERER Placements with banks and other financial
—Et-ERRIEL institutions maturing between one and
THER twelve months 14,226,915 2,272,850 809,179 - - - - 17,308,944
MTER AR Financial assets at fair value through
PREE profit or loss - T8N 4212358 - - - 79,981 5,125,160
fTEEBIA Derivative financial instruments 113,918 3910 646,749 - = - = 764,577
ERREMEFE Advances and other accounts 41284919 31387484 64596843 377,712 84,599 12,113 289,015 138,032,685
EHRE Investment in securities
- AEHEES - Available-for-sale securities 9,199,442  7,715820 12,651,215 785,618 1,468,167 15128  6,525471 38,360,861
-RAZYHEES - Held-to-maturity securities 884,701 464783 1,146 - - - 120936 1471526
- ERRENH - Loans and receivables 1,157,262 - - - - - - 1,157,262
RENE Investment properties 47413 - 979670 - = = - 1,027,083
ERE NG Properties, plant and equipment 763,834 4276 5,456,385 - - - - 6,204,995
HEWEE (BEETHELE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 238,635 223,760 1,024,881 6 2,554 4 2,185 1,492,025
EEfE Total assets 97,966,255 44,704,196 97,253,589 1,591,826 1,661,750 640,554 7,935,268 251,753,438
&% Liabilities
RIREMmSRERS Deposits and balances from banks and
FRRES other financial institutions 12,185,592 7,171,977 785,576 21,639 15,116 7,868 74303 20,262,071
ATERE AR Financial liabilities at fair value through
-V profit or loss - - 4975073 - - - - 4975073
fEERMIA Derivative financial instruments 82,206 115,283 262,098 - - - - 459,607
RFEH Deposits from customers 66,697,901 31,214,436 77,772,653 2,083,241 153,534 741,624 6,870,328 185,533,717
HAFERERE (21 Other accounts and provisions (including
ERTERELHEAR) current and deferred tax liabilities) 7314706 892457 2,511,139 48,414 84,561 1723 56,749 10,909,749
AELE Total liabilities 86,280,425 39,394,153 86,306,539 2,153,294 253,211 751215 7,001,380 222,140,217
BERRRETIE Net on-balance sheet position 11,685,830 5310043 10,947,050  (561468) 1408539  (110,661) 933,888 29,613,221
FONEEEEETIE Off-balance sheet net notional position* (4,489,727) (3,248,672) 9,701,784 567,903  (1,406,739) 114,453 (846,095) 392,907
FRBERRE Contingent liabilities and commitments 36,717,979 25800962 24,774429 645012 120,838 - 9,875 88,069,095

www.nch.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4, TREREEE &) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 TWERE (&) 4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(B) IMNE R (4E) (B) Currency risk (Cont’d)
A%E
The Group
201
RE £
AEE ey BT BE  Japanese Pound it @t
Renminbi  US Dollars  HK Dollars Euro Yen Sterling Others Total
EETr  BETr AT RETr A¥Tn BETn BYfr ARt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
gE Assets
EEREREHBTRAM Cash and balances with banks and other
SHEBENESR financial institutions 31,755,587 3875707 6247430 1,137,543 134,900 100,390 74,776 43,994,333
ESARAtEEER Placements with banks and other financia
—ETZEAREEZEHER  institutions maturing between one and
twelve months 20433570 1495263 1,240,747 - - - - 23,169,580
NPEEHAERL Financial assets at fair value through
SHEE profit or loss - 766259 1403148 - - - 76,354 2,245,761
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments 65,299 6,001 745,103 - - - - 816,403
SHRAMES Advances and other accounts 26,609,960 40,465,402 64,321,827 272,602 297,283 - 887,151 132,914,225
FHRE Investment in securities
-AfnEES - Available-for-sale securities 6,381,679  6,33935 11,184,833 511,059 - 93,761 2,245297 26,755,985
~-BRZHIHRES - Held-to-maturity securities 930,163 121506 104580 225,695 - - 118666 1,550,700
- BRREUH - Loans and receivables - - - 1875919 - - - 1875919
hENE Investment properties 45,688 - 802,260 - . - - 847,948
UERE NG Properties, plant and equipment 463,161 1065 4,119,185 - - - - 4583411
EWEE (BERERBEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 165,459 57198 649,071 - 1316 1 4146 877,191
BEAE Total assets 86,960,566 53,127,847 90,818,184 4,022,818 433,499 194,152 4,074,390 239,631,456
8f Liabilities
FIREMEEKE, Deposits and balances from banks and
FHRER other financial institutions 10,925,158 16,001,440 861,463 132 211,516 2,619 63,960 28,066,288
NFERIEAERYZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
SHER profit or loss - - 1,077,89% - - - - 1,077,8%
fTE4RIA Derivative financial instruments 55,771 165,291 451,556 - - - - 672,618
LASEE Deposits from customers 64,244,114 27,651,490 72,832,671 4,007,694 143,143 1,100,153 4,490,203 174,469,468
HtEERER (B Other accounts and provisions (including
ERHAREREREAR) current and deferred tax liabilities) 5,188,863 681,887 3,073,162 87,09% 114,537 2,046 61399 9,208,990
L Total liabilities 80,413,906 44,500,108  78,29,748 4,094,922 469196 1,104,818 4,615,562 213,495,260
BEBERATEE Net on-balance sheet position 6,546,660 8,627,739 12,521,436 (12,104)  (35697)  (910,666)  (541,172) 26,136,196
FIVEERBSETHE Off-balance sheet net notional position* (2216,05)  (7515,536) 8,491,862 74,164 36,636 911,189 533472 315735
SRBERAE Contingent liabilities and commitments 19,225,118 29,009,786 19,190,225 386,957 255,138 2,14 2,182 68,072,147
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4, SREREE & 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
42 WERE (&) 4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(B) IMNE R (4E) (B) Currency risk (Cont’d)
TR
The Bank
2012
AE it
N n B BE  Japanese Pound A @it
Renminbi ~ US Dollars  HK Dollars Euro Yen Sterling Others Total
BT BETn  B¥Tn AETn B¥Tn A¥Tn AETn B¥Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
EHEREREHBIRE Cash and balances with banks and other
PHERNAS financial institutions 12525861 975691 6,337,008 359,911 64572 586,813 908,852 21,758,708
ERTRENSBEE Placements with banks and other financial
—E+-ERRIIEL institutions maturing between one and
EEFH twelve months - 770243 809,179 - - - - 1579422
ATER AR Financial assets at fair value through
PREE profit or loss - T8N 4212358 - - - 79,981 5,125,160
fTEEBIA Derivative financial instruments - 2,954 646,749 - = - = 649,703
SRRAMEE Advances and other accounts 3219627 23,639,146 62,322,872 354192 80,856 12,113 289,015 89,917,821
FHRE Investrment in securities
- AL EES - Available-for-sale securities 2,993,977  7,715820 12,651,215 785,618 1,468,167 15128 6,525471 32,155,396
-REZIHBERS - Held-to-maturity securities - 464783 1,146 - - - 120936 586,825
- SR REN - Loans and receivables 1,157,262 - - - - - - 1,157,202
HERES Investment in subsidiaries 3,030,038 - 5,141,029 = = = - 8171,067
RENE Investment properties - - 979670 - - = - 979,670
VESEDER Properties, plant and equipment - 4,276 5,456,385 = - = - 5,461,161
HnEE (RERLHEEE)  Other assets (indluding deferred tax assets) 48,219 844 1,017,063 6 9 4 2185 1,068,330
EEAT Total assets 2,974,984 34346538 99635174 1499727 1613604 614,058 7926440 168,610,525
af Liabilities
RIREMERERS Deposits and balances from banks and
ERRES other financial institutions 439,855 2,859,023 142,677 14,040 15,109 12,757 90370 4,173,831
DTER (AR Financial liabilities at fair value through
SHBE profit or loss - - 4975073 = - - - 4975073
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - 114327 262,098 - - - - 376425
EPEH Deposits from customers 17594501 26,480,371 74571116 1919414 138846 70923 6,765,029 128,178,500
EmEEREE (BF Other accounts and provisions (including
ERTERELHEAR) current and deferred tax liabilities) 29806 465418 2,471,178 24,283 23,802 1723 55510 3,071,720
afEaE Total liabilities 18,064,162 29,919,139 83,022,142 1,957,731 171,151 723,703 6,910,909 140,775,549
BERERETIE Net on-balance sheet position 4910822 442739 16,613,032  (458,010) 1435847  (109,645) 1,015,531 27,834,976
FIEEERRTHE" Off-balance sheet net notional position* (1,852,324)  (2,480,964) 6,508,735 464,424  (1434,003) 114,453  (927.414) 392,907
FRBERAE Contingent liabilities and commitments 57,113 7,033,803 24414935 145,028 37,858 - 9875 31,698,612

www.nch.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SRIERERE (&) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 TWERE (&) 4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(B) INEE S (FE) (B) Currency risk (Cont’d)
S 6
The Bank
2011
AE it
AEE ey BT BE  Japanese Pound it @t
Renminbi ~ USDollars  HK Dollars Euro Yen Sterling Others Total
BT AT ABTn A%Tn  BEfr B%Trn BETn BT
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
gE Assets
EBRE REREIREM Cash and balances with banks and other
SRERENGS financial institutions 16060990 3511622 5580458 921,022 49,662 7715 740,409 26,941,578
ERTRED S BEE Placements with banks and other financial
—EtEARHIEZ institutions maturing between one and
THER twelve months 1390503 869,953 - - - - - 2,260,456
NPEEEAERL Financial assets at fair value through
SHEE profit or loss - 766259 1,403,148 - - - 76,354 2,45761
fTEeRIA Derivative financial instruments - 4,045 745,103 - - - - 749,148
EAREMmEE Advances and other accounts 2,153,962 29,897,707 61,883,399 266,528 71,061 - 887,151 95,159,808
FHERE Investment in Securities
- HHEES - Available-for-sale securities 3195260 633935 11184833 511,059 - 93761 2245297 23569575
-BERNERES - Held-to-maturity securities - 12159 104580 225,695 - - 118666 570537
- BN - Loans and receivables - - - 1875919 - - - 1875919
HEQEER Investment in subsidiaries 81,653 - 5,141,009 - - - - 520268
VI Investment properties - - 802,260 - - - - 802,260
ERE - E Properties, plant and equipment - 1065 4,119,185 - - - - 4,120,250
EMEE (BERERBEE)  Other assets (incuding deferred tax assets) 4,469 78 644,95 - 14 1 2720 652,940
BELE Total assets 2,886,846 41,512,385 91608947 3800423 120737 170,977 4,070,599 164,170914
a Liabilities
FREMEBEES Deposits and balances from banks and
FRRis other financial institutions 1072459 7473671 816,345 21,097 5,099 7,028 80,93 9,476,635
NFERIVG AR Financial liabilities at fair value through
2BAE profit or loss - - 107789 - - - - 107789
fTEeMIA Derivative financial instruments - 163,076 45155 - - - - 61463
CASEE Deposits from customers 19,822,327 25355859 70,080,020 3822538 122,799 1,072,828 4,471,031 124,747,402
HARERERE (B4 Other accounts and provisions (including
EAHEREEREAR) current and deferred tax liabiliies) 1892 397751 3,022,001 28,657 2853 1,577 59316 3,539,816
EfE4E Total liabilities 20896678 33390357 75447908 3872290 156430 1081433 4,611,283 139,456,381
BEBERETAE Net on-balance sheet position 1990168 8,122,028 16,161,039 (71869  (35693)  (910,45)  (540,684) 24,714,533
FIEEREETHE Off-balance sheet net notional position* (1873,761)  (7,135,668) 7,769,703 74,164 36,63 911,189 533472 315735
ABERAE Contingent liabilities and commitments 120827 16531470 18749,692 262,351 39,428 2741 333 35,706,842
* RINEEBBBETFEEINETESR T ANEZESDEEFE - S * Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the net notional

ETESRTATEARREASE 2 EXEHEKR

116

#1:$ 7% 441 = NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT Ei

amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments, which
are principally used to reduce the Group’s and the Bank’s exposure

to currency movements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(B) Currency risk (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis to foreign exchange risk exposure
(Non Structural)

At 31 December 2012, the majority of the net positions of
the Group and the Bank were denominated in US dollar and
Renminbi, therefore the Group and the Bank do not expose
to significant foreign exchange risk other than US dollar and
Renminbi. If US dollar exchange rate had changed by 1%,
with other variables held constant, profit after tax for the
year of the Group and the Bank would have been changed by
HK$13,238,000 (2011: HK$6,821,000) and HK$13,184,000
(2011: HK$6,782,000) respectively. If Renminbi exchange
rate had changed by 1%, with other variables held constant,
profit after tax for the year of the Group and the Bank would
have been changed by HK$1,351,000 (2011: HK$884,000)
and HK$307,000 (2011: HK$244,000) respectively.

(C) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and
economic value arising from adverse movements in interest
rate and term structure of the bank’s asset and liability
positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are
mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk from
structural positions are:

- Repricing risk — mismatches in the maturity or
repricing periods of assets and liabilities that may
affect net interest income;

- Basis risk — different pricing basis for different
transactions so that the yield on assets and cost of
liabilities may change by different amounts within the
same repricing period;

- Yield curve risk — non-parallel shifts in the yield curve
that may have an adverse impact on net interest
income or economic value;

- Option risk — exercise of the options embedded
in assets, liabilities or off-balance sheet items that
can cause a change in the cashflows of assets and
liabilities.

The Group's risk management framework also applies to
interest rate risk management. ALCO exercises its oversight
of interest rate risk in accordance with “Banking Book
Interest Rate Risk Management Policy” approved by RMC.
FMD is responsible for interest rate risk management. With
the cooperation of the Treasury Division, FMD assists the
ALCO to manage day-to-day interest rate risk positions.

15§ %% 44 m NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT #8117
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits
to identify, measure, monitor and control interest rate
risk. The indicators and limits include, but are not limited
to, re-pricing gap limits, basis risk, duration, price value of
a basis point (PVBP), net interest income sensitivity ratio,
economic value sensitivity ratio, etc. The indicators and
limits are classified into three levels, which are approved
by RMC, ALCO and Treasury Management Sub-committee
(“TMC") respectively. Risk-taking business units are required
to conduct their business within the boundary of the interest
rate risk limits. Before launching a new product or business
in the banking book, relevant departments are required
to go through a risk assessment process, which includes
assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration
of the adequacy of current risk monitoring mechanism. Any
material impact on interest rate risk noted during the risk
assessment process will be submitted to RMC for approval.

Net interest income sensitivity ratio (NIl) and economic
value sensitivity ratio (EV) assess the impact of interest rate
movement on the Group’s net interest income and capital
base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk indicators.
The former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on
net interest income as a percentage to projected net interest
income for the year. The latter assesses the impact of interest
rate movement on economic value (i.e. the present value of
cash-flows of assets, liabilities and off-balance-sheet items
discounted using market interest rate) as a percentage to
the latest capital base. Limits are set by RMC on these two
indicators to monitor and control the Group’s banking book
interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analysis and stress test to assess the
banking book interest rate risk the Group would face under
adverse circumstances. Scenario analysis and stress test are
also devised to assess the impact on net interest income and
economic value arising from the optionality of demand and
savings deposits and the prepayment of mortgage loans.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

Sensitivity analysis to market risk exposure of banking book
of the Group

The Group is principally exposed to HKD, USD and RMB in
terms of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2012, if HKD,
USD and RMB market interest rates had been 100 basis

FERBEWMAREENSZENT points higher with other variables held constant, the impacts
on net interest income over the next twelve months and on
reserves for the Group and the Bank would have been as
follows:

R12B31BEAR12EAFAERANEE R2ARHREENEE
Impact on net interest income over the next Impact on reserves
twelve months at 31 December at 31 December
rEE REAT rEE REAT
The Group The Bank The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
BT A%t EMTr B%Tr BMTn BT B¥Tn A%t
HEES Scenarios HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 ~HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000
BTZSHETTLEH100E%  Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
HK dollar yield curves 210,914 173,383 177,966 153,181  (55,265) (37,656)  (55,265) (37,656)
FLEERGTTEH100EE  Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
US dollar yield curves (23,706)  (55,874) ~ (22,928) (52,696) (170,405) (128,679) (170,405) (128,679)
ARBZE @S EH100EE  Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
Renminbi yield curves (225) 68429 (25985 7,232 (238,843) (125726) (76,116) (62,236)

BILRETNRMNZEB201F LI - BN THERARK
BNZETHRNEREE - RS AREEEFREEEH

BB Em SN X (B EHRBERD S AEEFER
Do EERADREENTIHERAIHEEEFREAARER
ABRIE N o

=1

ARERIOENER  FATRRROESR  FERRE
ERETBY - ELERRERRRER FAARA ST
ZEBE AL R A — B AFIE ST BB - ERIES
M ERBERRS ERNRRSBER  BRETIERRN
B AR R RV L -
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The increase in positive earnings impact of HKD and USD
compared to 2011 is reduced by the fall in RMB. Reserves
would have been reduced because of the expected reduction
in valuation of available-for-sale portfolio due to the above
simulated market rates movement. The reduction of reserves
is larger compared with 2011 because the size and duration
of available-for-sale portfolio is increased.

To construct stressful scenarios, severe assumptions are
made, including parallel movement of interest rates. In the
absence of actions that would be taken to mitigate the
impact of interest rates shock, all positions are assumed
to run to maturity and reprice or mature simultaneously
within a given time band. As the risk is complicated by
having optionality embedded in certain products, behavioural
assumptions are made to reflect more accurately the interest
rate risk exposures.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.2
(9]

Market Risk (Cont'd)
Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The tables below summarise the Group’s and the Bank's
exposure to interest rate risk as at 31 December. Included in
the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity

dates.
rEE
The Group
2012
AR T8
Upto -—Z2=fF =Z+=fiA -ER%  AEHNLE Non-interest @t
1month 1-3months 3-12months  1-5years Over 5 years bearing Total
BETr BT B¥Tn  B¥Tn  A%Tn B¥Tn BETx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
EE Assets
EFBREREMATREM  Cash and balances with banks and
SRERNER other financial institutions 39,612,508 - - - - 1175812 40,788,320
ERTRE M SREE Placements with banks and other financial
—Et-EARIIEHZ institutions maturing between one and
EAEN twelve months - 7994913 9,314,031 - - - 17,308,944
NEERABRLZ Financial assets at fair value through
tHEE profit or loss 299,495 1,853,803 2,460,306 511,556 - - 5125160
ITESRTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 764,577 764,577
BRREMEE Advances and other accounts 86,735,570 22,603,759 26,508,400 2,169,049 15,907 - 138,032,685
EERE Investment in securities
- TEHERS - Available-for-sale securities 3,710,026 9,752,899 9,738,231 12,168,070 2,935,489 56,146 38,360,861
- BERIEAES - Held-to-maturity securities 593,661 312,381 - 565,484 - - 1411526
- B RENH - Loans and receivables - 292,075 865,187 - - - 1,157,262
RENE Investment properties - - - - - 1,027,083 1,027,083
% &MRRE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 624995 6,224,995
EEE (REETHBEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) - - - - - 1,492,025 1,492,025
BEEE Total assets 130,951,260 42,809,830 48,886,155 15,414,159 2,951,396 10,740,638 251,753,438
o Liabilities
BOREMSREREZ Deposits and balances from banks and
FRREs other financial institutions 6,943,862 4,961,018 7,014,546 - - 1,342,645 20,262,071
INREEL PN Tavd Financial liabilites at fair value through
PRER profit or loss 1,419,971 2,092,893 1,462,209 = = - 4,975,073
fTERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 459,607 459,607
XFEH Deposits from customers 106,761,023 30,258,216 34,853,172 5,637,173 37,894 7,986,239 185,533,717
EHEEREE (BfF Other accounts and provisions (including
ENRERELHEER) current and deferred tax liabilities) 1913225 1,710,360 3,349,599 24,653 1 3911911 10,909,749
aEaE Total liabilities 117,038,081 39,022,487 46,679,526 5,661,826 37,895 13,700,402 222,140,217
HEgRERD Interest sensitivity gap 13913179 3,787,343 2,206,629 9,752,333 2,913,501  (2,959,764) 29,613,221
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4, SRIERERE (&) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.2 WiERR (&) 4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(C) FIZEfE () (9] Interest rate risk (Cont’d)
T£E
The Group
2011
—fEAnK T4 8
Upto —2=ff ZE+-fF  —ZREF  RENL  Non-interest @it
Tmonth  1-3months 3-12 months 1-5 years  Qver 5 years bearing Total
AETT  A%TT BT B%Tr B¥Tn ABTr A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
BERERERET LA Cashand balances with banks and other
SRERNER financial institutions 41,830,459 - - - - 2163874 43,994,333
ERTREM SRR Placements with banks and other financial
—ETZEARIIEZ institutions maturing between one and
THER twelve months - 9635651 13,533,929 - - - 23,169,580
NEERABRL Financial assets at fair value through
SHEE profit or loss 99,989 1,011,057 373,002 513,813 247,900 - 245761
iTEemIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 816,403 816,403
ERREMEE Advances and other accounts 74,162,458 27424388 25002509 6,324,626 244 - 132,914,225
BHERE Investment in securities
- I HEES - Avallable-for-sale securities 6,444,004 7053021 5138085 6277450 1,799,526 43,899 26,755,985
-HERIHRER - Held-to-maturity securities 247,729 241,049 503,474 558,448 - - 1,550,700
- BRI RN - Loans and receivables 1,875,919 - - - - - 1875919
RENE Investment properties - - - - - 847,948 847,948
% &MRRE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 4583411 4583411
EEE (REETHBEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) - - - - - 877,191 877,191
EELE Total assets 124,660,558 45,365,166 44,550,999 13,674,337 2,047,670 9,332,726 239,631,456
U Liabilities
BOREMSREREZ Deposits and balances from banks and
ERREs other financial institutions 12,962,586 4,011,804 10,741,870 - - 350,028 28,066,288
RTEEEAERZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
SHAE profit or loss 299,981 389,850 388,065 - - - 1,077,8%
fTERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 672,618 672,618
EPRER Deposits from customers 96775799  33370,694 29,479,124 7,432,118 162,148 7,249,585 174,469,468
EHEERER (B Other accounts and provisions (including
ENRERELHEER) current and deferred tax labilities) 1,190,610 1,001,353 2,848,635 - - 4168392 9,208,990
aEaE Total liabilities 111,228,976 38,773,701 43,457,694 7432118 162,148 12,440,623 213,495,260
HEgEERD Interest sensitvty gap 13431582 6591465 1093305 6242219 1885522  (3,107,897) 26,136,196

www.ncb.com.hk
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

KR
The Bank
2012
—f8AR T8
Upto -2=fiF =Z+=ffA -ZEF  EFHNL Non-interest @it
1month 1-3 months 3-12months  1-5years Over 5 years bearing Total
BETr BT B¥Tn  B¥Tn  A%Tn B¥Tn BETx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
EE Assets
EFBREREMATREM  Cash and balances with banks and
SRERNER other financial institutions 20,850,907 - - - - 907,801 21,758,708
ERTRE M SREE Placements with banks and other financial
—Et-EARIIH institutions maturing between one and
EAEN twelve months - 1,407,081 172,341 - - - 15719422
NEERGABRL Financial assets at fair value through
tREE profit or loss 299,495 1,853,803 2,460,306 511,556 - - 5125160
ITESRTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 649,703 649,703
BRREMEE Advances and other accounts 70,446,666 12,860,187 5,093,960 1,517,008 = - 89,917,821
EHRE Investment in securities
- IfHHEES - Avallable-for-sale securities 3,710,026 9,559,545 8,953,155 7,597,728 2,278,796 56,146 32,155,396
- BERIEAES - Held-to-maturity securities 465,889 120,936 - - - - 586,825
- B RENH - Loans and receivables - 292,075 865,187 - - - 1,157,262
WEBARES Investment in subsidiaries - - - - - 8,171,067 8,171,067
RENZ Investment properties - - - - - 979670 979,670
ERENE ] Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 5461161 5,461,161
EMEE (BEETHEEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) - - - - - 1,068,330 1,068,330
BESE Total assets 95,772,983 26,093,627 17,544,949 9,626,292 2,278,796 17,293,878 168,610,525
U Liabilities
BIRAt SRR Deposits and balances of banks and
FRR&sH other financial institutions 1,699,668 142,039 955,453 - - 1376671 4,173,831
RYEEEARRZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
SRAE profit or loss 1419971 2,092,893 1,462,209 - - - 4,975,073
fTHe®TIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 376,425 376,425
ZPBR Deposits from customers 83,903,734 20,027,417 16,189,231 67,327 - 17,990,791 128,178,500
EfEERER (A Other accounts and provisions (including
ERNRERELHEAR) current and deferred tax liabilities) 463,446 - - - - 2608274 3,071,720
aE4E Total liabilities 87,486,819 22,262,349 18,606,893 67,327 - 12,352,161 140,775,549
MEGEERD Interest sensitivity gap 8,286,164 3,831,278  (1,061,944) 9,558,965 2,278,796 4,941,717 27,834,976
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)

(C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

AT
The Bank
2011
—fEAnK T4 8
Upto —2=fF =Z2T=fA —ERE  RENLE Nondinterest @it
Tmonth  1-3months  3-12 months 1-5 years  Qver 5 years bearing Total
AETL  A%TT BT A%t B¥Tn A%Tr A%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
BERERERET AL  Cashand balances with banks and
SRERNER other financial institutions 25,004,720 - - - - 1,936,858 26,941,578
ERTREM SRR Placements with banks and other financial
—ETZEARIIEZ institutions maturing between one and
EAEN twelve months - 1077538 1,182,918 - - - 2,260,456
NEERGABRL Financial assets at fair value through
SHEE profit or loss 99,989 1,011,057 373,002 513,813 247,900 - 2,245,761
ITEemIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 749,148 749,148
ERREMEE Advances and other accounts 60,144,581 15,846,689 13,324,206 5,844,308 2% - 95,159,808
BHERE Investment in securities
- TEHERS - Available-for-sale securities 6,115,223 6,793,083 4216309 5,094,513 1,306,548 43,899 23,569,575
-REZEEARS - Held-to-maturity securities 247,729 118,665 204,143 - - - 570537
- BRI RN - Loans and receivables 1,875,919 - - - - - 1875919
N Investment in subsidiaries - - - - - 5222682 522268
RENZ Investment properties - - - - - 802260 802,260
ER NG Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 4120250 4,120,250
EEE (BEEEHBEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) - - - - - 652,940 652,940
EENE Total assets 93,488,161 24,847,032 19,300,578 11,452,634 1,554,472 13,528,037 164,170,914
U Liabilities
BIRAt SRR Deposits and balances of banks and
ks other financial institutions 5198920 1,560,854 2,319,384 - - 397477 9476635
RYEEEARRZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
SHER profit or loss 299,981 389,850 388,065 - - - 1,077,896
fTEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 614,632 614,632
REHEH Deposits from customers 78,059,357 22,290,177 13,015,412 4,127,957 - 7,254,499 124,747 402
EmEERER (85 Other accounts and provisions (including
ERNRERELHESR) current and deferred tax liabilities) 480,379 - - - - 3059437 3539816
aE4E Total liabilities 84,038,637 24,240,881 15,722,861 4,127,957 - 11,326,045 139,456,381
MEGEERD Interest sensitivity gap 9449524 606,151 3577717 7324677 1554472 2201992 24,714,533

REBRKNRITRZSERNOMER BRI AEAX -
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Interest rate risk exposure of trading book of the Group and
the Bank is insignificant.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient
funds to grow assets or pay the due obligations, and
need to bear an unacceptable loss. The Group follows the
sound liquidity risk appetite, to provide stable, reliable and
adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under
normal circumstances or stressed scenarios; and survive
with net positive cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios,
without requesting HKMA to act as the lender of last resort.

The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to
effectively manage the liquidity of on-balance sheet and
off-balance sheet items with reasonable cost based on
the liquidity risk appetite to achieve sound operation and
sustainable profitability. Customer deposits are the Group's
primary source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient
source of funds are in place, the Group actively attracts new
deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains supplementary
funding from interbank market. According to different term
maturities and the results of funding needs estimated from
stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure
(including loans, bonds investment, interbank placement,
etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets in support of normal
business needs and ensure its ability to raise enough funds
at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in case of
emergency. The Group is committed to diversify the source of
funds and the use of funds to avoid excessive concentration
of assets and liabilities and prevent triggering liquidity
risk due to the break of funding strand when problem
occurred in one concentrated funding source. The Group has
established intragroup liquidity risk management guideline
to manage the liquidity funding within the Group, to restrict
the reliance of funding on each other. The Group also pays
attention to manage liquidity risk created by off-balance
sheet activities, such as loan commitments and derivatives.
The Group has overall liquidity risk management strategy to
cover the liquidity management of foreign currency assets
and liabilities, collaterals, intra-day liquidity, intra-group
liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks, etc., and
has formulated corresponding contingency plan.

RMC, a standing committee established by the Board of
Directors, is the decision making authority of liquidity risk
management, and assumes the ultimate responsibility of
liquidity risk management. As authorised by RMC, ALCO
exercises its oversight of liquidity risk and ensures the
daily operations of the Group are in accordance with risk
appetite and policies as set by RMC. Financial Management
Division of Finance Department is responsible for overseeing
the Group’s liquidity risk. It cooperates with the Treasury
Division to assist the ALCO to perform liquidity management
functions according to their specific responsibilities.

www.ncb.com.hk
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3  Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators
and limits to identify, measure, monitor and control liquidity
risk on daily basis. Such indicators and limits include, but
are not limited to liquidity ratio and loan-to-deposit ratio.
The Group applies cash flow analysis to assess the Group’s
liquidity condition under normal conditions and also performs
liquidity stress test (including institution specific and market
wide crisis) at least on monthly basis to assess the Group's
capability to withstand various severe liquidity crises. Also,
Assets and Liabilities Management System is developed to
provide data and generate regular management reports for
facilitating the liquidity risk management duties.

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy
Manual LM-2 “Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity
Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in 2011, the Group
is in the process of enhancing various controls, including
the behavior model and assumptions of existing cash flow
analysis and stress test to enhance the Group’s cash flow
analysis under both normal and stressed conditions, and
maintaining an asset buffer portfolio. In liquidity stress
test, a new combined scenario which is a combination of
institution specific and market wide crisis is being set up
to assess the Group’s capability to withstand a more severe
liquidity crisis. The asset buffer portfolio will include high
quality marketable securities to ensure funding needs even
under stressed scenarios. The contingency funding plan is
being established which will set out the conditions to trigger
the plan based on stress test results and early warning
indicators, the action plans and relevant procedures and
responsibility of various departments.

15§ %% 44 = NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT #8125
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(A)  FEESHE

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

The Group's liquidity risk management also covers new
product or business development. Before launching a new
product or business, the relevant departments are required
to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the
assessment of underlying liquidity risk and consideration of
the adequacy of the current risk management mechanism.
Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk
assessment process will be reported to RMC for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk
management policies. The principal banking subsidiary
develops its own liquidity management policies according
to its own characteristics, assumes its own liquidity
risk management responsibility, executes its daily risk
management processes independently, and reports to the
Group’s Management on a regular basis.

(A) Liquidity ratio

2012 2011

FHRBESHEE Average liquidity ratio

44.46% 39.37%

FHRBDESLEXRUARITEAGAFORDES LT
HEFHESE -

3Zx

MBE G LR RRE CGRITRIGH) RN RIAFEZEE (A
REREEERER) :TE -
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The average liquidity ratio is calculated as the simple average
of each calendar month’s average liquidity ratio of the Bank
for the year.

The liquidity ratio is computed on the solo basis (the Hong

Kong offices only) and is in accordance with the Fourth
Schedule to the Banking Ordinance.

www.ncb.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B) Maturity analysis

Tables below analyse assets and liabilities of the Group and
the Bank as at 31 December into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date.

i8]
The Group
2012
P8 -BAR -Z=fR =Et-fiA -ZIf  IENE
On Upto 13 312 155 Over5 7FEEAH &3t
demand 1 month months months years years  Indefinite Total
AeTn ANt AETR  B%Tn  BETn  AETn BETRn B¥TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&E Assets
BEESRENEAREL  Cashand balances with banks and other
SRBENES financial institutions 17,089,375 23,698,945 - - - - - 40,788,320
ERORERSREE Placements with banks and other financial
“ETZEAREEZ institutions maturing between one and
THER twelve months - - 7994913 9,314,031 - - - 17,308,944
NTER(E AR Financial assets at fair value through
SHEE profit or loss - - - - - - - -
- ot EHES - debt securities held for trading
-Ef - others - 299495 1773822 2,198,420 621 - - 4272,358
- REBNATES - debt securities designated at fair value
NBEZ BHES through profit or loss
-Ef - others - - - 3M867 510,935 - - 852,802
EERIA Derivative financial instruments 501,902 103,271 56,300 100,792 2312 - - 764,577
ERREMEE Advances and other accounts
-ZFER - advances to customers 6,188,032 5,665,625 11,888,615 35699,386 45,325,555 24,916,629 279,225 129,963,067
-85%5 - trade bills 4,749 1925544 4,576,361 1,562,964 - - - 8,069,618
EHRE Investment in securities
- ARNE BRES - debt securities held for available-for-sale
- HEL - certificates of deposit held - 400,657 40,564 4,003,596 1,125,146 - - 5,569,963
- it - others - 1,595,169  5577,764 7310513 15315817 2,935,489 - 32,734,752
-BERIBBZERES - debt securities held for held-to-maturity
-BEGRE - certificates of deposit held - 4p4T8 = = = = - 464783
-£ft - others - 121,173 312,631 - 566,379 - - 1,006,783
- ERRENEZERES - debt securities held for loans and
receivables - - 292,075 865,187 - - - 1,157,262
-RhES - equity securities - - - - - - 56,146 56,146
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 1,027,083 1,027,083
ERENER: Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 624995 6,224,995
AEE (BEREHBEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 379,851 1,043,080 10,792 25,907 29,765 - 2630 1,492,025
EEfE Total assets 24,163,909 35324302 32,523,837 61,422,663 62,876,530 27,852,118 7,590,079 251,753,438
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BAFE R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. TREREE &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 REELSERE (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B) FIRIA T (&) (B) Maturity analysis (Cont’d)
158
The Group
2012
P8 -fAk -Z=f8f ZEt-@R -ZIf  BENL
On Upto 13 312 15 Over5 7FEEAH @it
demand 1 month months months years years  Indefinite Total
ESTn  BMTr ¥t RBTn BMTn E¥Tn BMTn BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
af Liabilities
RIREMERERS Deposits and balances from banks and
Fahis other financial institutions 1801973 6,484,534 4,961,018 7,014,546 - - - 20,262,071
RPEEHAERZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
SHAR profit or loss
-Et - others - 1419971 2,092,893 1,462,209 - - - 4975073
fiEeMIA Derivative financial instruments 205,008 12,057 3399 100712 107,834 - - 459,607
EFER Deposits from customers 67,183,813  45339,114 30,153,082 35241,829 7,577,978 37,901 - 185,533,717
EMEEREE (BF Other accounts and provisions (including
ERREREEREEE) current and deferred tax liabilities) 2,703,673 1,903,000 1,890,679 3,594,797 811,449 6,151 - 10,909,749
afEaE Total liahilities 71,894,467 55,158,676 39,131,668 47,414,093 8,497,261 44,052 - 222,140,217
e EardN Net liquidity gap (47,730,558) (19,834,374) (6,607,831) 14,008,570 54,379,269 27,808,066 7,590,079 29,613,221
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B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. TREREE &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 RBELER (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B) FIEIH T () (B) Maturity analysis (Cont'd)
K£8
The Group
2011
g -BEAR -Z=@A ZEt-ER -EZRf  RENE
On Upto 13 31 15 Over5  TEERE @z
demand 1 month months months years years  Indefinite Total
EETr  BETr AT RETr AETn BETn BETr Rt
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
gE Assets
EFRERERFETREM  Cashand balances with banks and
SRERENGS other financial institutions 27,545,031 16,449,302 - - - - - 43994333
ERETRANSRHER Placements with banks and other financia
—EtZEARIEZ institutions maturing between one and
THER twelve months - - 9635651 13,533,929 - - - 23,169,580
DTER(ABRL Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss
- RHtERES - debt securities held for trading
- Hth - others - 99,989 635,789 373,002 500 - - 1,109,280
-~ REANATERMAA - debt securities designated at fair value
e BHES through profit or loss
- &t - others - - - 293869 594712 247900 - 1136481
fEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 587,300 11,605 32,901 116,818 67779 - - 816,403
EHRAMER Advances and other accounts
-XFEH - advances to customers 2,846,884 6935770 11,001,742 35,122,628 38924531 24,124,709 95218 119,051,482
-25%5 - trade bills 15 1617566 4995685 6,705,121 - - - 13318487
~BOREMSBEBET - advances to banks and other financial
institutions - - - 544,256 - - - 544,256
FARE Investment in securities
- HHE ERES - debt securities held for available-for-sale
-RELRNE - certificates of deposit held - - 26999 1275 968,039 - - 1,350,789
-Ef - others - 5275152 3685012 6247984 8353623 1,799,526 - 25361297
-AEZHEBZERES - debt securities held for held-to-maturity
-BEIRRE - certificates of deposit held - 2056% - - - - - 205,695
- - others - - 122,383 503,474 697,199 1,949 - 1,325,005
-EPRERGZEBESR - debt securities held for loans and
receivables - 1875919 - - - - - 1875919
-RhEF - equity securities - - - - - - 43,899 43,899
RENZ Investment properties - - - - - - 7948 847,948
0% BIREE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 4583411 4583411
AWEE (REEEHELE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 157936 638,654 9,348 21823 40,899 - 2531 877,191
EEEE Total assets 31,137,266 33,129,652 30,388,505 63,581,660 49,647,282 26,174,084  5573,007 239,631,456
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B R R PYRE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. LEEERERE (& 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 RBELEK (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B) FIRIA T (&) (B) Maturity analysis (Cont’d)
A5E
The Group
2011
78 @AM -2=fR =E+-fiA —£n%  IfE
On Upto 13 31 15 Over5  TEERE @z
demand 1 month months months years years  Indefinite Total
EETr  BETr AT RETr AETn BETn BETr Rt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
a Liabilities
FREEBEEL Deposits and balances from banks and
FRRes other financial institutions 740877 12571737 4005861 10,747,813 - - - 28,066,288
MFER AR Financial liabilities at fair value through
RBRE profit or loss
- - others - 299,981 389,850 388,065 - - - 1,077,8%
TESBIE Derivative financial instruments 247,907 59,349 28,939 122,358 166,556 47,509 - 672,618
PR Deposits from customers 56,822,738 44,447,805 32,384,158 31577957 9,074,613 162,197 - 174,469,468
HARERERE (24 Other accounts and provisions (including
ENTERELRERE)  curent and deferred tax libilties) 3209830 826097 1190525 3397758 584,780 - - 9,20899
aReE Total liabilities 61,021,352 58204969 37999333 46233951 9,825,949 209,706 - 213,495,260
RBESHA Net liquidity gap (29,884,086) (25075317)  (7,610,828) 17,347,709 39,821,333 25,964,378 5,573,007 26,136,196
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B FE R MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, SREREE & 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 FREELRRE (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B) FIRIA T (&) (B) Maturity analysis (Cont’d)
KT
The Bank
2012
08 -BAR -Z=@ER =Zt=fA -ERf  EIENE
On Upto 13 312 15 Over5 7FEEAH gt
demand 1 month months months years years  Indefinite Total
AT B¥Tn  A¥Tn BETn BETn B¥Tn BETn B¥Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
BEEARAHGTRAMN  Cash and balances with banks and
PEHERNAS other financial institutions 13445491 8313217 - - - - - 21,758,708
ERTREMEREE Placements with banks and other financial
—Et-fRREL institutions maturing between one and
TEFER twelve months - - 1407081 17234 - - - 15719422
ATERIT AR Financial assets at fair value through
SRAE profit or loss
- XAt EHES - debt securities held for trading
-Hf - others - 299495 1773822 2,198,420 621 - - 4212,358
- REANATER L - debt securities designated at fair value
HAER BEER through profit or loss
-Ef - others - - - 31867 510935 - - 852,802
TEERIE Derivative financial instruments 501,902 82,359 39,413 26,029 - - - 649,703
ERREMER Advances and other accounts
-RPER - advances to customers 6,141,226 4,193,107 7413310 13,744,696 35790,554 17,026,644 104,166 84,413,703
-87%58 - trade bills 577 1214552 3,421,208 867,781 - - - 5,504,118
BHRE Investment in securities
- EEEY ERES ~ debt securities held for available-for-sale
-RELRE -~ certificates of deposit held - 400,657 40,564 4,003,596 1,125,146 - - 5,569,963
-£fe - others - 1,595,169 5384410 6,525,438 10,745474 2,278,796 - 26,529,287
-FEEIEAZEBES - debt securties held for held-to-maturity
-BEIETE - certificates of deposit held - g4 - - - - - 464783
-t - others - - 1186 - 896 - - 122082
- ERRENGCERES - debt securities held for loans and
receivables - - 292,075 865,187 - - - 1,157,262
- RhEH - equity securities - - - - - - 56,146 56,146
MEBLRER Investment in subsidiaries = = = = = - 8171067 8,171,067
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 979,670 979,670
ERE BT Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 5461161 5,461,161
EEE (AEEEREEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 38,893 1,026,350 1 1,538 995 - 533 1,068,330
EElE Total assets 20,128,089 17,589,649 19,893,090 28,746,893 48,174,621 19,305,440 14,772,743 168,610,525
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BAFE R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, LEREBREE &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 REIEELRKE (B 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B) FIEFH 5T (42) (B) Maturity analysis (Cont’d)
R
The Bank
2012
P8  -BAR -Z=fA =Et=fif -21f BN
On Upto 13 312 15 Over5 7FEEAH @it
demand 1 month months months years years  Indefinite Total
E¥Tn  BETn A%t BMTn  BMTn E¥Tn BMTn AW
HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000
af Liabilities
BIRASREE Deposits and balances from banks and
Fak&s other financial institutions 1,865,120 1,211,219 142,039 955,453 - - S AVER £
NEERGARRY Financial liabilities at fair value through
LRARE profit or loss
-Eft - others - 1419971 2,092,893 1,462,209 - - - 4975073
TELRIE Derivative financial instruments 205,008 5,812 23,158 36,924 105,523 - - 376,425
EPER Deposits from customers 56,526,767 35,084,235 19,922,283 16,577,888 67,327 - - 128,178,500
HRERER (B4 Other accounts and provisions (including
ERHERELTIEAR) current and deferred tax liabilities) 1,536,694 573,405 73,848 118,513 769,260 - - 307,720
2REE Total liabilities 60,133,589 38,294,642 22,254,221 19,150,987 942,110 - - 140,775,549
RBESRA Net liquidity gap (40,005,500) (20,704,993) (2,361,131) 9595906 47,232,511 19,305,440 14,772,743 27,834,976
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B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SRIERERE (&) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 RBELER (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B) FIRIA T (&) (B) Maturity analysis (Cont’d)
iSO
The Bank
2011
0% -BAR -EZfA ZEt-BA -ERE  RENE
On Upto 13 31 15 Over5  TEERE @z
demand 1 month months months years years  Indefinite Total
BT AT ABTn A%Tr  BETr  B%Trn B¥Tn BT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
gE Assets
EFBRERERSEIR Cash and balances with banks and
e usEnEs other financial institutions 18,077,434 8,864,144 - - - - - 26941578
ERORERSREE Placements with banks and other financial
—EtZEARIEZ institutions maturing between one and
EHEH twelve months - - 1077538 1182918 - - - 2260456
DFER(ABRS Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss
- RotERES - debt securities held for trading
-Ef - others - 99,989 635,789 373,002 500 - - 1,109,280
-~ REANATERMAA - debt securities designated at fair value
e BHES through profit or loss
-Hf - others - - - 293869 594712 247,900 - 1,136,481
fEEMIA Derivative financial instruments 587,300 10,024 24474 59,571 67779 - - 749,148
ERREMEE Advances and other accounts
-XPER - advances to customers 2773293 5124773 7,602,353 19,107,228 31,357,088 17,760,370 70732 83,795,837
-25%% - trade bill 15 934383 4034017 5,851,200 - - - 10,819,715
-RiTREREBEE - advances to banks and other financial
&3 institutions - - - 544,56 - - - 5M42%
BHRE Investment in securities
- ARNE B ES - debt securities held for available-for-sale
-RELRNE - certficates of deposit held - - 26999 1275 968,039 - - 1,350,789
-2t - others - 4946370 3425073 5326208 7,170,688 1,306,548 - 2,174,887
-HEZHEBZERES - debt securities held for held-to-maturity
-BERRE - certificates of deposit held - 2056% - - - - - 205,695
-Efp - others - - - 203893 139,000 1949 - 380
- ERRERFZERES - debt securities held for loans and receivables - 1875919 - - - - - 1875919
-RiAES - equity securities - - - - - - 43,899 43,899
HBAAER Investment in subsidiaries - - - . - - 520268 522268
REWE Investment properties - - - - - - 802,260 802,260
g BURRE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 4120250 4,120,250
HUEE (BEETHEEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 16500 633492 64 1822 656 - 406 652,940
EEfE Total assets 21454642 22,714,789 17,069,302 33,056,723 40,298,462 19,316,767 10,260,229 164,170,914
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4, <THREREE (@)
43 REBESERE (8)
(B) FEAS (&)

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B) Maturity analysis (Cont’d)

:S:: 751
The Bank
2011
8 @AM -2=fR =E+-fiA —£n%  IfE
On Upto 13 31 15 Over5  TEERE @z
demand 1 month months months years years  Indefinite Total
BT BETr AT RETr A%t BETn BEfr Rt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
8f Liabilities
FIRAtEREEL Deposits and balances from banks and
FRREs other financial institutions 791478 4804919 1560854 2,319,384 - - - 9476635
NFERI AR Financial liabilities at fair value through
RBRE profit or loss
- - others - 299,981 389,850 388,065 - - - 1,077,8%
TESBIE Derivative financial instruments 247,907 56,281 21,420 74,959 166,556 47509 - 614,632
EFER Deposits from customers 48881014 35405806 21303641 15028987 4,127,954 - - 124,747,402
HARERERE (24 Other accounts and provisions (including
ERHBEREENERE)  curentand deferred tax liabiities) 2377749 304390 8427 1978% 574,39 - - 3539816
BE4E Total liabilities 52,298,148 40,871,377 23,361,192 18,009,251 4,868,904 47,509 - 139,456,381
TBESHA Net liquidity gap (30,843,506) (18,156,588)  (6,291,890) 15,047,472 35429,558 19,269,258 10,260,229 24,714,533

BB E A EIRR GRITE (W) R AN Z BB EX M
el AEBERARTBEBIEAZEE  HINERRES
EFHRA M EE - YRR TARERXOREEZE
E - RAZEETERBHZBORGFERY o HiREH
ZEODEBRBERABREAR - EREEZEELEER
hAERE  AEZERAE A [ THERR] - LilFIRZE
ECMBEMAEES (1E) -

BRHSRIBAHEBER 2O MR R/TE (RITE (WE) R
) 2 HBGRXMWEDN - ERBETRRUEESEFE
EFHA -
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The above maturity classifications have been prepared in
accordance with relevant provisions under the Banking
(Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets such as
advances and debt securities which have been overdue
for not more than one month as “On demand”. In the
case of an asset that is repayable by different payments or
instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually
overdue is reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that
is not due is reported according to the residual maturity
unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case
the amount is reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are
stated after deduction of provisions, if any.

The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to
maturity is disclosed in order to comply with relevant
provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The
disclosure does not imply that the securities will be held to
maturity.
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4, <THREREE (@)
43 HEBELEAM (5)
(C) BANIHEZFITFBBESHAH

(a) FUTETAZEZR

TEREG T AREBEARRITI2A3BZETETR BB

FrEWEHPAGIRZBLT °

B FE R MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

4,
4.3
(9]

(a)

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities

Non-derivative cash flows

and the Bank as at 31 December for non-derivative financial
liabilities by remaining contractual maturities.

s o]
The Group
2012
-z =z
—EAR =f8R T=f8A —ERf RENE
Upto1 13 3-12 15 Over 5 st
month months months years years Total
BB BB BB BB BB BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
tRER Financial liabilities
ROREMSREEL Deposits and balances from banks and
=0T other financial institutions 8,294,893 4,992,085 7,086,541 - - 20,373,519
APEEEABREZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
SHERE profit or loss 1,420,000 2,093,000 1,462,500 - - 4,975,500
RPER Deposits from customers 112,549,463 30,259,278 35,805,901 8,603,246 52,637 187,270,525
AnemeE Other financial liabilities 4,517,866 1,809,154 3,377,424 33,300 6,150 9,743,894
SRAEAE Total financial liabilities 126,782,222 39,153,517 47,732,366 8,636,546 58,787 222,363,438
T5E
The Group
2011
-z -z
—f@AA =fEA +=f@A —E1f BENE
Upto 1 13 3-12 1-5 Over 5 st
month months months years years Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
LRER Financial liabilities
RITRAMSREE Deposits and balances from banks and
TR other financial institutions 13,327,549 4,047,157 10,936,950 - - 28,311,656
AFEEHAERZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
E==U profit or loss 300,000 390,000 388,500 - - 1,078,500
BPEH Deposits from customers 101,301,509 32,500,206 32,062,308 10,011,925 220,582 176,096,530
e pas Other financial liabilities 3,940,581 1,110,630 3,163,290 1,289 - 8215790
SRARAE Total financial liabilities 118,869,639 38,047,993 46,551,048 10,013,214 220,582 213,702,476
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BAFE R MY RE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4, SREREE @) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3 REIEELRKE (B 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(C) BAHEEIH 2 K ITEE SR () (C)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities (Cont’d)
(a)  HPTHETAZHZ T () (a)  Non-derivative cash flows (Cont’d)
KRAT
The Bank
2012
-z =z
—fE8AR =)z +=f8A —Z1F ik: 3
Upto1 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 @zt
month months months years years Total
BB BB BB BB BB BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SHER Financial liabilities
RITRAMSREE L Deposits and balances from banks and
EE 0TS other financial institutions 3,076,929 142,692 958,674 - - 4,178,295
AFEREABRZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
SHas profit or loss 1,420,000 2,093,000 1,462,500 - - 4,975,500
ZPER Deposits from customers 91,624,727 19,968,167 16,743,656 69,304 - 128,405,854
Hihepak Other financial liabilities 2,109,594 - - - - 2,109,594
SREBLE Total financial liabilities 98,231,250 22,203,859 19,164,830 69,304 - 139,669,243
KERIT
The Bank
2011
-z =z
—fEAR = T8 A —E8f BENE
Upto1 1-3 3-12 1-5 QOver 5 @t
month months months years years Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BEFT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRER Financial liabilities
ROREMSREEL Deposits and balances from banks and
FRkEs other financial institutions 5,598,595 1,563,851 2,348,856 - - 9,511,302
RTEEFABRZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
tRak profit or loss 300,000 390,000 388,500 - - 1,078,500
ZFER Deposits from customers 84,305,748 21,358,351 15,175,688 4,250,852 - 125,090,639
Ethemak Other financial liabilities 2,681,632 - - - - 2,681,632
SREELEE Total financial liabilities 92,885,975 23,312,202 17,913,044 4,250,852 - 138,362,073
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4, <THREREE (@)
43 HEBELEAM (5)
(C) BAWIHAZFIFEBS R ()

b)) PETAZEZR

(i) BRREEEEZTETA
AEBZIWFRELEFE 2 TET AR

- EXRELK  INEFREK TR 2EBEL

- MEGH : xR

) BEBARAL mmiEH X

- BiERAK R B E BRI & A8
=8 -

TRREAEBRARITRFHEEEFEZNTESHBTARNI2
A3EMEHRDH - AieRNEE AR - HAREANIHA
MRIBHR DR - RARBEAFER/FEBZNETAZE
BRRITRBLIR

B FE R MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities (Cont’d)

(b) Derivative cash flows

(i) Derivatives settled on a net basis

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a net basis
include:

- Exchange rate contracts: FX margin, non-deliverable
currency forwards;

- Interest rate contracts: interest rate swaps,

- Commodity contracts: bullion margin contracts,
commodity swaps; and

- Equity contracts: exchange traded equity options and
equity linked swaps.

The tables below analyse the Group’s and the Bank’s
derivative financial instruments as at 31 December that will
be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
tables are the net contractual undiscounted cash flows of
derivatives with net negative fair value.

A5H
The Group
2012
- =2
—fE8AR =f8A +=f8A it ik: 30

Upto1 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 @t
month months months years years Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EX54 Exchange rate contracts (204,766) (24,626) 9,359 - - (220,033)
FEED Interest rate contracts (3,057) (22,098) (91,009) (68,833) = (184,997)
k) Commodity contracts (350) - - - = (350)
Bizad Equity contracts - - (454) - - (454)
(208,173) (46,724) (82,104) (68,833) - (405,834)
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B R R PYRE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SRERSE @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
43 HREELEK (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(C) HEHNFEHZRITEES RS () (C)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities (Cont’d)
(b)  PTETAZHET (F) (b)  Derivative cash flows (Cont'd)
() R E A LS Y TAT A (48) (i) Derivatives settled on a net basis (Cont'd)
T5E
The Group
2011
_jE__ = E
—fEAR ={@A += 1IH —ERE AENE
Upto 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 e
month months months years years Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEAH Exchange rate contracts (247,251) (31, 008) (79,674) 23,837 - (334,096)
FEAEH Interest rate contracts (1,327) (10,1200 (107,266) (91,584) (5,482)  (215,779)
BmEH Commodity contracts (2,071) ( 1) - - - (2,222)
(250,649) (41,279) (186,940) (67,747) (5,482) (552,097)
ERAT
The Bank
2012
- =z
—fBAR =f8A +=f8A —E1% BENE
Upto1 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 @zt
month months months years years Total
BB BB BB BBTR BBTR BBTR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEH Exchange rate contracts (204,766) (24,626) 9,359 - - (220,033)
F=E&4H Interest rate contracts (313) (10,936) (52,284) (66,408) - (129,941)
HRAH Commodity contracts (257) - - - = (257)
(205,336) (35,562) (42,925) (66,408) - (350,231)
RBAT
The Bank
2011
_jE__ j— E
—fEAR =fEAR +=18A —Enf BENE
Upto1 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 @it
month months months years years Total
BETT BT BT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EX&H Exchange rate contracts (247,251) (31,008) (79,674) 23,837 - (334,09)
MEAH Interest rate contracts 16 (4,943) (73,663) (91,584) (5482) (175,656
BmAH Commodity contracts (1,928) - - - - (1,928)
(249,163) (35,951) (153,337) (67,747) (5,482) (511,680)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3  Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities (Cont’d)

(b) Derivative cash flows (Cont’d)
(i) Derivatives settled on a gross basis

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis
include OTC currency options, currency forwards, and OTC
equity options.

The tables below analyse the Group’s and the Bank's
derivative financial instruments as at 31 December that will
be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
tables are the gross contractual undiscounted cash flows for
all derivatives that are settled on a gross basis.

AEE
The Group
2012
—Z =F
— (8RR = +=@A —2RF
Up to 1 13 3-12 1-5 st
month months months years Total
BRI BETT BT T BRI BT T
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
[EXREH : Exchange rate contracts:
— i - Outflow (13,329,984) (4,144,315) (11,094,464) - (28,568,763)
—mA - Inflow 13,418,460 4,167,232 11,099,574 - 28,685,266
feiniEmE 4 Equity contracts:
— i - Outflow (97) - = - (97)
—mA — Inflow 97 - - - 97
FC3se Total outflow (13,330,081) (4,144,315) (11,094,464) - (28,568,860)
HRA Total inflow 13,418,557 4,167,232 11,099,574 - 28,685,363
rEE
The Group
2011
-z —_=x
—fEAR ={&@A +=f@A —ERF
Upto1 1-3 3-12 1-5 st
month months months years Total
AETT BT AT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
EXEH : Exchange rate contracts:
— i - Outflow (11,417,779)  (1,925,850)  (4,816,609) - (18,160,238)
—-mA - Inflow 11,367,954 1,928,099 4,828,157 - 18,124,210
b ol Total outflow (11,417,779)  (1,925,850)  (4,816,609) - (18,160,238)
HRA Total inflow 11,367,954 1,928,099 4,828,157 - 18,124,210

www.nch.com.hk
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.3  Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities (Cont’d)

(b) Derivative cash flows (Cont’d)

(ii) IREEEEEEE Y TAET A () (ii) Derivatives settled on a gross basis (Cont'd)
ARAT
The Bank
2012
—= =z
—BAR =f@A +=@A —ZhF
Up to 1 1-3 3-12 1-5 st
month months months years Total
BETT  BETx  BEFx BT EETx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[EXREH : Exchange rate contracts:
— i - Outflow (9,709,942)  (3,245,098) (2,912,372) - (15,867,412)
— A - Inflow 9,786,503 3,266,395 2,905,657 - 15,958,555
17 i & 4 Equity contracts:
piogan - Outflow (97) - - = (97)
—mA ~ Inflow 97 - - - 97
b ol Total outflow (9,710,039) (3,245,098) (2,912,372) - (15,867,509)
MR Total inflow 9,786,600 3,266,395 2,905,657 - 15,958,652
RRTT
The Bank
2011
—= =z
—fEAR ={&@HA +=f@A —E0F \
Upto1 1-3 3-12 1-5 Bt
month months months years Total
BT BETT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERGH : Exchange rate contracts:
— i - Outflow (10,758,766)  (1,652,950) (621,855) - (13,033,571)
—RA — Inflow 10,710,899 1,654,478 624,204 ~ 12,989,581
b5 ] Total outflow (10,758,766)  (1,652,950) (621,855) - (13,033,571)
FER DN Total inflow 10,710,899 1,654,478 624,204 - 12,989,581
(c) BREBEXIIER () Off-balance sheet items

B R

EBRAEERRAEITHR2012F12A318 A K B &% IiE
EEEMEMMEZ RGBT E  EE408BABE
64,207,586,0007T (20114 : & #50,503,226,00070) M 7&
#27,481,060,0007T (20114 : & #31,434,914,0007T) °
I E FORIE ] R — FAIZEL

R EEMMTSEE

AE B MARIT 2 B ER & E A B 7 B & 782012412
A318 2 % %8 & 7 #23,861,509,0007C (20114F : /B ¥
17,568,921,0007T) N 7 #4,217,552,0007C (20114 : &
#4,271,928,0007T) * HEIBFH ThDR14F ©
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Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group’s and the Bank’s
off-balance sheet financial instruments as at 31 December
2012 that the Group and the Bank commits to extend
credit to customers and other facilities amounting
to HK$64,207,586,000 (2011: HK$50,503,226,000)
and HK$27,481,060,000 (2011: HK$31,434,914,000)
respectively. Those loan commitments can be drawn within
1 year.

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the
Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2012 amounting
to HK$23,861,509,000 (2011: HK$17,568,921,000) and
HK$4,217,552,000 (2011: HK$4,271,928,000) respectively
are maturing no later than 1 year.

www.ncb.com.hk
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LRBREREN

AR E7E20 126 BB IRITE (RTFIRIERR) S ER BB
feRRBIEERESL -

ARAEERBE _EBLEBNEE  (Q01FIRITE (B
AR)(ERT) BB B2012F 1 A1 HEEN - FHBPUNETEHF R
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it o AEBEREEHESRTEHERBRERENK -
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital Management

The major objective of the Group’s capital management is
to maximise total shareholders’ return while maintaining a
capital adequacy position in relation to the Group's overall
risk profile. The ALCO periodically reviews the Group's capital
structure and adjusts the capital mix where appropriate to
maintain an optimal balance among risk, return and capital
adequacy.

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework
of policies and controls on capital management to support
the development of the Group’s business and to meet the
statutory capital adequacy ratio. The ALCO monitors the
Group's capital adequacy. The Group has complied with
all the statutory capital standards of the HKMA for the
reported periods in respect of banking operation as further
elaborated below.

The Group has adopted the foundation internal ratings-
based (“FIRB”) approach to calculate the credit risk capital
charge for its non-securitisation exposures and internal
ratings-based (securitisation) approach to calculate the
credit risk capital charge for its securitisation exposures.
A small residual credit exposures was approved by HKMA
to be exempted from FIRB approach and remained under
standardised (credit risk) (“STC") approach.

From October 2012, the Group gained the approval from
the HKMA to adopt the internal models (“IMM") approach
to calculate general market risk capital charge for foreign
exchange and interest rate exposures and exclude its
structural FX positions arising from overseas branches and
Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited in the calculation
of the market risk capital charge. The Group continues to
adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM") approach
to calculate the market risk capital charge for remaining
exposures.

The Group continues to adopt standardised (operational
risk) (“STO") approach to calculate the minimum capital
requirement for operational risk in year 2012.

In response to the implementation of Basel Il Enhancements,
the Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules 2011 became
effective on 1 January 2012. The amendments were mainly
to revise the market risk framework and incorporate other
enhancements to the Basel Il framework. The Group has
calculated the capital charge according to the related
regulatory requirements.
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AN REESFEHEFEEARE  HEERBERZE
CEARKZEETIMNE - ERARBINEERE - RROEEK -
REREE - FEFR  EREREZHEEFHHEAT RN
MFE  EMBARREABRREARR - UREREE
BRARRIEFNERAT R ERBEERS EKaEBER -
PR L BB AR AR P e

MR EEEEAMRANEEFMNE - L TIIRHEER
TREEERLLE -

(A) BEXZELE

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital Management (Cont'd)

In view of the implementation of Basel lll requirements in
phase since 1 January 2013, the Group will follow the rules
stipulated in the Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules 2012
to calculate its CAR.

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital
adequacy assessment process (“ICAAP") to comply with
the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual
"Supervisory Review Process” in 2012. Based on the HKMA's
guidelines on Pillar Il, ICAAP has been initiated to assess
the extra capital needed to cover the material risks not
captured under Pillar I, and therefore minimum common
equity CAR, minimum core CAR and the minimum CAR are
determined. The Group considers this ICAAP process as an
on-going process for capital management and periodically
reviews and adjusts its capital structure in relation to the
overall risk profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up
annually and then submitted to the Board for approval after
endorsement of the ALCO. The plan is built up by assessing
the implications of various factors upon Capital adequacy
such as the business strategies, return on equity, risk
appetite, credit rating, as well as regulatory requirements.
Hence, the future capital requirement is determined and
capital sources are identified also. The plan is to ensure
the Group’s capital adequacy and achieve optimal capital
structure in order to align with our business development
needs and risk profile.

As a result of the change in the bases of regulatory capital
calculation, the amounts shown below are not directly

comparable.

(A) Capital adequacy ratio

2012 2011
BEART R HEE Capital adequacy ratio 15.89% 17.06%
ZOE AR & Core capital ratio 15.08% 16.42%

AR RIS (TR (AK) 88 RIESERREEH
BRI R& REH BARRTREISE 2 WB A KR
B HL 3 o

B RETERMEATRZEAER  WEEE 2/Hit
BRE181BMTE26 °
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The capital ratios are computed on the consolidated basis
that comprises the positions of the Bank and certain
subsidiaries specified by the HKMA for its regulatory
purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.

The differences between the basis of consolidation for

accounting and regulatory purposes are described in Note
26 to the Financial Statements on page 181.

www.ncb.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
4.4 Capital Management (Cont'd)
(B) Components of capital base after deductions

The consolidated capital base after deductions used in
the calculation of the above capital adequacy ratio as at
31 December and reported to the HKMA is analysed as follows:

2012 2011
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
LA Core capital:
£ R RN B AR AR AR Paid up ordinary share capital 700,000 700,000
e Reserves 19,217,120 17,334,150
B Profit and loss account 2,140,665 2,319,287
22,057,785 20,353,437
OB AR Z IR Deductions from core capital (29,786) (23,795)
ZER Core capital 22,027,999 20,329,642
P& A Supplementary capital:
FHAHEHBEEFEFZ A ERS Fair value gains arising from holdings of
available-for-sale securities 193,952 51,862
EHATAURAFEZ LA Fair value gains arising from holdings
BmzEBH QT EWE of securities designated at fair value through
profit or loss 20,569 10,768
BBEEEZEFOREER Collective loan impairment allowances 78,719 25,260
B Regulatory reserve 124,468 49,961
AR Surplus provisions 796,494 668,424
1,214,202 806,275
B I E 2 2 30, Deductions from supplementary capital (29,787) (23,795)
B & A Supplementary capital 1,184,415 782,480
MEERE RNEM4a%E Total capital base after deductions 23,212,414 21,112,122

THAGTEEARRELENGEEERAZMBRARRRE

Subsidiaries which are not included in the consolidation

181EM 26 - ZEHBRARZIRERAGHEAER T
DA

www.nch.com.hk

group for the calculation of capital adequacy ratios are
denoted in Note 26 to the Financial Statements on page
181. Investment costs in such subsidiaries are deducted from
the capital base.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.5 Fair values of financial assets and
liabilities

(A) Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time
based on relevant market information and information
about various financial instruments. The following methods
and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value
of each class of financial instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with banks and other financial institutions and
Trade bills

The maturities of these financial assets and liabilities are
within one year and the carrying value approximates fair
value.

Advances to customers, banks and other financial institutions

Substantially all the advances to customers, banks and other
financial institutions are on floating rate terms, bear interest
at prevailing market interest rates and their carrying value
approximates fair value.

Held-to-maturity securities

Fair value for held-to-maturity securities is based on
market prices or broker/dealer price quotations. Where this
information is not available, fair value has been estimated
using quoted market prices for securities with similar credit,
maturity and yield characteristics. Their carrying value
approximates fair value.

Loans and receivables

A discounted cash flow model is used based on a current
yield curve appropriate for the remaining term to maturity
and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within
one year from the balance sheet date and their carrying
value approximates fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Contd)

4.5 Fair values of financial assets and
liabilities (Cont'd)

(B) Financial instruments measured at fair value

The Group has an established governance structure and
controls framework to ensure that fair values are either
determined or validated by control units independent of
the front offices. Control units have overall responsibility for
independent verification of results and all other significant
fair value measurements. Significant valuation issues are
reported to senior management.

Financial instruments measured at fair value are classified
into following three levels:

- Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities, including
debt instruments issued by certain governments and
certain foreign exchange derivative contracts.

- Level 2: Valuation technique using inputs other
than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or
indirectly. This level includes the majority of the OTC
derivative contracts, debt securities with quote from
pricing services providers.

- Level 3: Valuation technique using inputs for the
asset or liability that is not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs). This level includes
equity investment with significant unobservable
components.

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer
guotations to determine the fair value of financial instruments
when unable to obtain the open market quotation in active
markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for
financial instruments held by the Group include bond prices,
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock
prices, volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others,
which are all observable and obtainable from open market.

There have been no significant transfers between level 1 and
2 during the year 2012 and 2011.
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4. LSRERBRERE #) 4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

45 SREENEEBNATEHE (&) 4.5 Fair values of financial assets and
liabilities (Cont'd)
(B) R FEFENSHTA () (B) Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont’d)
(i) AR =)0k 14 (i) Fair value hierarchy
AEE
The Group
2012
F—EBR F-ER EZEBR st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
SREE Financial assets
NFEZ{EF ABZE 2 Financial assets at fair value through
TRIEE profit or loss
— R MES — Trading securities
— BEIFEH — Debt securities - 4,272,358 - 4,272,358
— REBARFE - Financial assets designated
A WNi=E at fair value through profit
ZEREE or loss
— ERES — Debt securities - 852,802 - 852,802
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments 501,902 262,675 - 764,577
AR EES Available-for-sale securities
—EBES — Debt securities 1,468,168 36,836,547 - 38,304,715
— B ESH — Equity securities — — 56,146 56,146
EtWMERE Financial liabilities
AN EZ AR Financial liabilities at fair value
ZEemaE through profit or loss
- RHHEaE - Trading liabilities - 4,975,073 - 4,975,073
TAETmIA Derivative financial instruments 205,008 254,599 - 459,607
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. cEERERE @ 4.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
45 SREENEEBNATEHE (&) 4.5 Fair values of financial assets and
liabilities (Cont'd)
(B) R FEFENSHTA () (B) Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont’d)
(i) RT (BRI EGR (4E) (i) Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)
rEE
The Group
2011
F—ER FEBR FEZER HBET
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRMEE Financial assets
NEER{LEF AR Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss
—RSUEH - Trading securities
— EBES — Debt securities - 1,109,280 - 1,109,280
— REBARFE - Financial assets designated
B Et ABm 2 at fair value through profit
TREE or loss
— EBES — Debt securities - 1,131,435 5,046 1,136,481
TTESETA Derivative financial instruments 586,916 229,487 - 816,403
AR EES Available-for-sale securities
— & ES — Debt securities - 26,712,086 - 26,712,086
— B&17 & 5 - Equity securities - - 43,899 43,899
cHmasE Financial liabilities
N E#{LET AIBZE 2 Financial liabilities at fair value
eRAEE through profit or loss
—RXZMhaE — Trading liabilities - 1,077,896 - 1,077,896
PTHEEBMTA Derivative financial instruments 247,907 424,711 - 672,618
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(B) HURAFEFBHETHITA (&)

(0 DFENER (&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.5 Fair values of financial assets and

liabilities (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont’d)

Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)

RER1T
The Bank
2012
E—B E_BR E=ER et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BET T BET T BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
SRMEE Financial assets
NFEZ{EF ABZE 2 Financial assets at fair value through
TRIEE profit or loss
— R MES — Trading securities
— BEIFEH — Debt securities - 4,272,358 - 4,272,358
— REBARFE - Financial assets designated
B Et ABm 2 at fair value through
TREE profit or loss
— BGHES — Debt securities - 852,802 - 852,802
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments 501,902 147,801 - 649,703
Al EES Available-for-sale securities
— BEREH — Debt securities 1,468,168 30,631,082 - 32,099,250
— B ESH — Equity securities — — 56,146 56,146
tHas Financial liabilities
NFEEE{sT ABZE 2 Financial liabilities at fair value
CRIBE through profit or loss
= — Trading liabilities - 4,975,073 - 4,975,073
TAETmIA Derivative financial instruments 205,008 171,417 - 376,425
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4, SRIERERE (&) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
45 SREENEEBNATEHE (&) 4.5 Fair values of financial assets and
liabilities (Cont'd)
(B) R FEFENSHTA () (B) Financial instruments measured at fair value
(Cont’d)
(i) RT (BRI EGR (4E) (i) Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)
AERAT
The Bank
2011
F—ER FER F-ER a5t
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BEFIT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERMEE Financial assets
NEEZEHAIBE 2 Financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss
—RSUEH - Trading securities
— BEIFEH — Debt securities - 1,109,280 - 1,109,280
— REBARFE - Financial assets designated
B Et ABm 2 at fair value through
TREE profit or loss
— EBES - Debt securities - 1,131,435 5,046 1,136,481
A4S IT A Derivative financial instruments 586,916 162,232 - 749,148
AR EES Available-for-sale securities
— & ES — Debt securities - 23,525,676 - 23,525,676
— B&17 & 5 - Equity securities - - 43,899 43,899
cREE Financial liabilities
N EZ{EEABZE 2 Financial liabilities at fair value
SRaE through profit or loss
—RXZMhaE — Trading liabilities - 1,077,896 - 1,077,896
PTHEEBMTA Derivative financial instruments 247,907 366,725 - 614,632
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. ERERERE &)
45 LTHEENEENAFLE E)

(B) HURAFEFBHETHITA (&)

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.5 Fair values of financial assets and
liabilities (Cont'd)

(B) Financial instruments measured at fair value

(Cont'd)
(ii) E=ERIEH ) (i) Reconciliation of level 3 items
FEBRARRT
The Group and the Bank
2012
EREE
Financial assets
REHU
DEERE
FFABHEZ
CREE
Financial
assets A
designated at HEXRS
fair value Available-
through for-sale
profit or loss securities
BHES 10 & 5
Debt Equity
securities securities
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
7201291818 At 1 January 2012 5,046 43,899
Wz Gains
— Hth 2l - Other comprehensive income - 12,384
EH Sales (5,046) (137)
#2012F12A31H At 31 December 2012 = 56,146

R2012512 A3 1B ENEEREN
FFABEMKELE

Total gains for the year included in profit or loss
for assets held as at 31 December 2012
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4. ERERERE &)
45 LTHEENEENAFLE E)

(B) HURAFEFBHETHITA (&)

B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

4.5 Fair values of financial assets and
liabilities (Cont'd)

(B) Financial instruments measured at fair value

(Cont’d)
(i) E=ERAIER EE () (i) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)
REERARIT
The Group and the Bank
2011
EREE
Financial assets
RERA
RNEEZ L
STAB®EZ
Financial
assets I
designated at E&E 5
fair value Available-
through for-sale
profit or loss securities
EBES R 155
Debt Equity
securities securities
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
201141818 At 1 January 2011 19,312 34,915
e Gains
— 8% — Profit or loss 3,613 -
— Efh 2 E = - Other comprehensive income - 8,984
=H Sales (17,879) -
720114128318 At 31 December 2011 5,046 43,899
R2011F12A31BEFENEERER Total gains for the year included in profit or loss
FrABER NSRS for assets held as at 31 December 2011 3,613 -

RERNFABENRAEAERNFRFENECREERABE
EHE  BREEAESRITANEERSBHTE - 95l
SRR FERZEWRE]  [RE/URXFEE(FARREZ
SRMTAFKE (BR) | 3 DREERFRE] -

www.ncb.com.hk

Gains included in profit or loss for the year as well as gains
relating to financial assets and liabilities held as at year
end are presented in “Net trading gain”, “Net gain/(loss)
on financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss” or “Net charge of impairment allowances”
depending on the nature or the category of the related
financial instruments.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

5. FEAEWA

5. NET INTEREST INCOME

2012 2011
BT T BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
2 WA Interest income
TR R R E M S g B r 2E Due from banks and other financial institutions 2,329,108 1,605,671
BEFER Advances to customers 4,355,000 3,452,243
LETEHRE Listed investments 319,579 274,409
FETHRFRE Unlisted investments 680,723 446,792
Hib Others 26,046 23,908
7,710,456 5,803,023
FEXZH Interest expense
BN E M S TR E Due to banks and other financial institutions (601,733) (400,755)
BEER Deposits from customers (3,014,699) (2,015,621)
Hity Others (161,211) (101,906)
(3,777,643) (2,518,282)
FR2UWA Net interest income 3,932,813 3,284,741

HE2012F12A31HIEFE 2 B ABIEHE 18,079,000
JC (20114F : 1,264,00070) # A E AR EE KB HER T
BEREFESFREEEDF BUA (20114 : 36,000

Sl cm
~ o

FURFEEILFAEGZEREERSBREBENELE
MAFEHAZEZFBEWARFES SR ABE
7,653,870,0007T (20114 : A ¥5,749,266,0007T) K&
3,763,585,0007T (20114 : &#2,516,786,0007T) °

152  Aif @¥ 444 = NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT &3

Included within interest income is HK$8,079,000 (2011:
HK$1,264,000) of interest with respect to income recognised
on advances classified as impaired for the year ended
31 December 2012. No interest income accrued on impaired
investment in securities (2011: HK$36,000).

Included within interest income and interest expense
are HK$7,653,870,000 (2011: HK$5,749,266,000) and
HK$3,763,585,000 (2011: HK$2,516,786,000), for financial
assets and financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair
value through profit or loss respectively.
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6. FHRBERASWA

B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

6. NET FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BREBRASKA Fee and commission income
BEXEE Loan commissions 183,902 187,756
FEA LD Securities brokerage 164,207 210,891
EZEHEe Bills commissions 150,725 180,329
Rbx Insurance 77,018 71,781
WA ARTE Payment services 74,734 77,805
20 Funds distribution 72,126 47,279
RERE Safe deposit box 21,688 20,846
ERRER Credit card business 761 531
BEEEH Currency exchange 600 787
FHAh, Others 77,016 65,820
822,777 863,825
REERASIH Fee and commission expense
FEEL Securities brokerage (26,224) (37,601)
BERRTE Payment services (6,604) (6,755)
HAh Others (34,770) (29,283)
(67,598) (73,639)
FREERASKRA Net fee and commission income 755,179 790,186
HhRE Of which arise from
— EURAFEE L ABRZ — financial assets or financial liabilities not
CRIEENERAR at fair value through profit or loss
— R ERAS A — Fee and commission income 193,677 233,985
- REERASIH — Fee and commission expense (1,584) (749)
192,093 233,236
— ERERHMZ A — trust and other fiduciary activities
— RBEBRASHA — Fee and commission income 12,262 13,865
—BREELRASH - Fee and commission expense (1,183) (1,088)
11,079 12,777
7 ERZ WS 7. NET TRADING GAIN
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fles S (E51R) RE Net gain/(loss) from:
—INER G K& - foreign exchange and foreign
SNERZ B E @B exchange products 131,080 143,121
—f=TEA — interest rate instruments 16,136 (62,772)
147,216 80,349

www.ncb.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

8. HttxmMEEZFNE

8. NET GAIN ON OTHER FINANCIAL

ASSETS
2012 2011
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
AfEHEES 2 Net gain from disposal of
FER available-for-sale securities 11,839 53,559
Hit Others 4,762 221
16,601 53,780
9. HEEWRA 9. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2012 2011
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BHREREWA Dividend income from investment in securities
—JFEmREAHRE - unlisted investments 6,940 6,016
REMEZ S BIA Gross rental income from investment properties 40,881 33,873
B BRREME W Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties (2,066) (4,783)
Hitb Others 11,354 10,968
57,109 46,074
[(BEEEWMEZ L] BIEEE177,0007T (20114 « B Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment
111,00070) BRFAREEREME 2 BRLEH - properties” is HK$177,000 (2011: HK$111,000) of direct

operating expenses related to investment properties that

were not let during the year.

10. REEHFRHE 10. NET CHARGE OF IMPAIRMENT
ALLOWANCES
2012 2011
BET T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
EFER Advances to customers
(EIRRE Individually assessed
— WIRAEE — new allowances (155,261) (17,007)
— $ o] — releases 5,185 1,947
— Ug (el 2 85 BR 18 - recoveries 13,523 20,020
RERFHE B R EEEF Net (charge)/reversal of individually assessed
(Bst#),/#m| (HE24) loan impairment allowances (Note 24) (136,553) 4,960
e Collectively assessed
— MR - new allowances (260,395) (168,494)
REETEEFREEFHFEE Net charge of collectively assessed loan
(Miz%24) impairment allowances (Note 24) (260,395) (168,494)
B OB S B Net charge of loan impairment allowances (396,948) (163,534)
A HERS Available-for-sale securities
A S SR E Net charge of impairment allowances on
EEFERE available-for-sale securities
— &R FH L — Individually assessed - (725)
BEZIPAFES Held-to-maturity securities
BAEZIHABZHRE Net reversal of impairment allowances on
A F R held-to-maturity securities
— [ERIFTL (FHFE25) — Individually assessed (Note 25) = 2,953
REEEFERE Net charge of impairment allowances (396,948) (161,306)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

11. K& H 11. OPERATING EXPENSES
2012 2011
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
AFER (BEESHE) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
—FMREMER — salaries and other costs 904,165 830,380
— RIRECA - pension cost 109,887 91,340
1,014,052 921,720
FBERZES L Premises and equipment expenses
(TRIEFE) (excluding depreciation)
- RFEMS — rental of premises 211,026 188,465
— BB — information technology 111,466 108,269
— Hh - others 47,921 48,347
370,413 345,081
E (MisE28) Depreciation (Note 28) 166,939 115,441
2 G Auditor’s remuneration
— BRI — audit services 7,377 7,160
— FEBF RS - non-audit services 671 929
EESnBHEBEESR Lehman Brothers related products* (5,688) (447,661)
HEMagas Other operating expenses 392,533 342,167
1,946,297 1,284,837
* AEERE SKENEBIFRIE8)F5E AE%7,230,0007T - R * The net amount of HK$7,230,000 recovered by the Group from the

2012 RETHAE (20114 « ##454,296,0007T) °

12. REVHEHE DA VPERABZFNE 12.

underlying collateral of the Lehman Brothers minibonds was credited
to operating expenses in 2012 (2011: HK$454,296,000).

NET GAIN FROM DISPOSAL OF/
FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENTS ON
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
HEREME 2 FEE Net loss from disposal of investment properties - (316)
WEWERNFEARF Net gain from fair value adjustments on
Wz (FIEE27) investment properties (Note 27) 178,766 136,553
178,766 136,237
13. -3 | 22N = HBEE 13. NET LOSS FROM DISPOSAL/
HE S ERIR  BM R F R REVALUATION OF PROPERTIES,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
HEEEZE (BE),/ Net (loss)/gain from disposal of premises (995) 366
HEHEMWETFEEE 2 FEE Net loss from disposal of other fixed assets (3,894) (12,953)
EHEEZFEE (H5128) Net loss from revaluation of premises (Note 28) (1,738) (1,881)
(6,627) (14,468)

www.ncb.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

14. B 14. TAXATION
EAWRERNHEAKNOT ¢ Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
2012 2011
BT T BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REARIA Current tax
ERENEH Hong Kong profits tax
— FRETAFE — current year taxation 365,036 405,275
— EFEBERE — over-provision in prior years (7,942) (1,532)
357,094 403,743
AN T8 Overseas taxation 74,235 130,105
431,329 533,848
IEERLIEEE B (FFEE34) Deferred tax credit (Note 34) (11,516) (56,611)
419,813 477,237

BAENEHDERBEAFE A ERBEFNERKTE16.5%
(20114 : 16.5%) IR ER - BINEF 2 RFILRAFE
AT ERPUENR R EXBAERR 2RITHEAE

AEERVAENEENERRIE - EREFBFEHE
EOMEZEMNT

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation that
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

2012 2011

BET T BT

HK$’000 HK$'000

Fx %5 B v A Profit before taxation 2,759,771 2,926,195
EFE16.5% (20114 : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%

FTEMBIE (2011: 16.5%) 455,362 482,822
HBERHEREENTE Effect of different taxation rates in other countries 21,756 23,146
MmERRBZBA Income not subject to taxation (70,295) (47,833)
s ETAT R 2 S Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 13,482 13,773
RIERH S EE Tax losses not recognised 298 1,300
TR Over-provision in prior years (7,942) (1,532)
FINERTL Foreign withholding tax 7,152 5,561
ST AFIE Taxation charge 419,813 477,237
BB E Effective tax rate 15.21% 16.31%
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15. ARBITREREMLER

HE2012F12A31B EFE 2 ARBRITREEANIRIT R
F| A 78 #2,072,764,0007T (20114 : 7 #2,180,414,000
T0) - WEIMNARIRITZ B IEHEA ©

B FE R MR

Notes to the Financial Statements

15. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BANK

The profit of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2012
attributable to the equity holders of the Bank and dealt
with in the financial statements of the Bank amounted to
HK$2,072,764,000 (2011: HK$2,180,414,000).

16. KRE 16. DIVIDENDS
2012 2011
R wa =Tl @
Per share Total Per share Total
i BET T ot BT T
HK$ HK$°000 HK$ HK$'000
H R S Interim dividend 56 392,000 - _

R2012F6 75128 » EFCEERE2012F SR LT RLEE
56 A BIRR B - 485849 478 %5392,000,0007T ©

17. BEREBERIHAE

AEBELTAEBEE TN TEEBENREETEAEBRES KD
MNEZBERKAZIRFRRBE S BESE - BIEHE
RIKFTE REARNBERKASIZSAERBEEELRT
©25% MEXZEAERAREERAH Z5%E15%
TE (BT REZRBER) - EEAENI0F RS EE M
% EREAHEIEEIENI00% 2 BEIMHE - SN3FEEIFE
G EmE  ERIK - BAERK - XKREXTIEE IR
EERERERIPRIESER GRARERERIN) T - WE
30%%E90% Z B EHK -

BEZE BB IKHIFR2000F 12 B 1B EH - AEB R EF R
RABHREEHE & E 22 A AT IRERR KRR
EARAR  REEBEAAPRBEEAERBEEETES
BRAF - WWMEAREARNRITZEBEAL

H ZE20129F12A318 Lt F E - £ B 4 75 #318,0007T
(20114F = #9785 #400,0007T) 2 8 WAL 1E - B RIK
sHE| 2 A EE 4 BB 136,771,0007T (20114 + #)6#
36,382,0007T) © MASEMEESTE 2 HRABEAN A
7B #5,375,0007T (20114 : 497%5%4,581,0007T) °

www.nch.com.hk

On 12 June 2012, the Board declared an interim dividend
of HK$56 per ordinary share for 2012 amounting to
HK$392,000,000.

17. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

The principal defined contribution schemes for the Group’s
employees are ORSO scheme exempted under the MPF
Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF
Scheme. Under the ORSO scheme, employees make monthly
contributions to the ORSO scheme equal to 5% of their basic
salaries, while the employer makes monthly contributions
equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly basic
salaries, depending on years of service. The employees are
entitled to receive 100% of the employer’s contributions
upon termination of employment after completing 10 years
of service, or at a scale ranging from 30% to 90% for
employees who have completed between 3 to 9 years
of service, on conditions of retirement, early retirement,
permanent incapacity and ill-health or termination of
employment other than summary dismissal.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on
1 December 2000, the Group also participates in the BOC-
Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which the trustee
is BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is
BOCI-Prudential Manager, which are related parties of the
Bank.

The Group's total contributions made to the ORSO
scheme for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted
to approximately HK$36,771,000 (2011: approximately
HK$36,382,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions
of approximately HK$318,000 (2011: approximately
HK$400,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group contributed
approximately HK$5,375,000 (2011: approximately
HK$4,581,000) for the year ended 31 December 2012.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

18. RIRFEFE
(a) PREHBRBROEEE

RIRERT B MR D FEE TR E B IR EMR2002F7 8108
AAPIRES (TR M2 EREASERZRRIELRR -

RBEAEEEA2BARHBEPREE (R E5H#
EOEE - PREE (R E5gAUT2REGCHR
EBRBRERTHRREE (R EFRRENER
At - B RBEEERSRETREL (R EFSRTE
R B RREER G ESRER - REEIRPRES
(R EFeRENTARRZROEAERE  HESHT
FAREMBESRE - SR FIREE (ER) EFSRENKLR
HIE Az Al > AR R ARTTIE

B FEFE e ERBRERBEHRES (R B -
ARRBEINNOFARZEEEREREES %T“P%a
PAREXMNREE  ZREBATPREERRBERHHEHR
e AFEN %R TEZR10% - KPREE (BR) EFE
ERTRETNRSIKEEE - BRETNITEHEAZ
BB ITIE ©

LA ERF B E2012F W AR BT B RRE (2011F : £) -
RAEIERT B R D BT B9 02012F 7 BARA -

(b) AR R ERE

20027858 « FIREE (IZR) HEEZRAFFIEBVI)
RIELTHRBESESAETEERAEBEEAEBRTR
A% - RS A A SR (BVIEE A A $£5,615,200 P iR &
B (R MBEBBEITRD - AEBXENE BV BREE
E‘J%zsf53ﬁx2ﬂ/f§ﬂf&m§uEﬂﬁ@.m STEHECRI T EAR
2002F 11 A7H 2 BT T B THRARHEE -
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18. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
(a) Share Option Scheme and Sharesave Plan

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme and the
Sharesave Plan were approved and adopted by written
resolutions of all the shareholders of the BOCHK (Holdings)
dated 10 July 2002.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
participants with the opportunity to acquire proprietary
interests in the BOCHK (Holdings). The Board of BOCHK
(Holdings) may, in its absolute discretion, offer to grant
options under the Share Option Scheme to any person as
the Board of BOCHK (Holdings) may select. The subscription
price for the shares shall be determined on the date of grant
by the Board of BOCHK (Holdings) as an amount per share
calculated on the basis of established rules. An option may
be exercised in whole or in part at any time after the date
prescribed by the Board of BOCHK (Holdings) and from
time to time as specified in the offer and on or before
the termination date prescribed by the Board of BOCHK
(Holdings).

The purpose of the Sharesave Plan is to encourage broad-
based employee ownership of the shares of the BOCHK
(Holdings). The amount of the monthly contribution under
the savings contract to be made in connection with an
option shall be the amount which the relevant eligible
employee is willing to contribute, which amount shall not
be less than 1% and not more than 10% of the eligible
employee’s monthly salary as at the date of application or
such other maximum or minimum amounts as permitted by
the Board of BOCHK (Holdings). When an option is exercised
during an exercise period, it may be exercised in whole or
in part.

No options were granted pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme or the Sharesave Plan during the year 2012 (2011:
Nil). Both the Share Option Scheme and the Sharesave Plan
expired in July 2012.

(b) Pre-Listing Share Option Scheme

On 5 July 2002, several directors together with senior
management personnel of the Group were granted options
by BOC (BVI), the immediate holding company of the BOCHK
(Holdings), pursuant to a Pre-Listing Share Option Scheme
to purchase from BOC (BVI) an aggregate of 5,615,200
existing issued shares of the BOCHK (Holdings). The Group
has taken advantage of the transitional provisions set out in
paragraph 53 of HKFRS 2 under which the recognition and
measurement policies have not been applied to all options
granted to employees on or before 7 November 2002.

www.ncb.com.hk



18. RAREFE (@)
(b) LTHATREBRESSE (5)

HZE2012F12A318B R2011F12 A3 1B IE R EF B HE
U

B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

18. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)
(b) Pre-Listing Share Option Scheme (Cont'd)

Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 December
2012 and 2011 are disclosed as follows:

REESER
BEEEAR
MR RELT

Total number FHTEE

of share (BREH)

options to Average

directors exercise

and senior price (HK$

management per share)

R2012F181H At 1 January 2012 1,084,500 8.50

B FNVERE 2 R AE Less: Share Options lapsed during the year (1,084,500) 8.50
72012412 A31H At 31 December 2012 =
M20129F12 A31 B A 7716 2 RALHE Exercisable at 31 December 2012 -
BEERBAS
B R AR BT

Total number F91TEE

of share (FkER)

options to Average

directors exercise

and senior price (HK$

management per share)

M2011F1A1H At 1 January 2011 1,084,500 8.50
20114128318 At 31 December 2011 1,084,500
2011512 831 BAl47{E 2 SRRk 42 Exercisable at 31 December 2011 1,084,500

RIIERR 20125 K201 1 FRAREWITEE ©

RFUFEME L 2 REEZITERERERABES.S0T -
MmAES 2 BREBRBEE1.00TT - ZERBREAPREE
(R Bty B 2 PRFAI B B A MR 4F NS - B
TTEMRI0F - RPRES (BB BOMGBEBIMER
ZHFHEE ST BRE LETARRE SR L EAR
Ptk o ETATRBE BB RITEACR201267 4B #
R RITHEZBEREC 2 EPIERE ©

www.ncb.com.hk

No share options were exercised during the year 2012 and
2011.

The options granted under this scheme can be exercised at
HK$8.50 per share in respect of the option price of HK$1.00.
These options have a vesting period of four years from the
date on which dealings in the shares commenced on the
Stock Exchange with a valid exercise period of ten years. No
offer to grant any options under the Pre-Listing Share Option
Scheme will be made on or after the date on which dealings
in the shares commenced on the Stock Exchange. The valid
exercise period of Pre-Listing Share Option Scheme ended on
4 July 2012 and all the non-exercised share options under
this scheme have lapsed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

19. E5 - SEEBEABRTEAEMS

(a) ESHE

RERFASBRARTEES/ARITREEMNBRRRERZ
REme RERKARK 2 MESFBOT

19. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S AND KEY
PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the
directors of the Bank in respect of their services rendered for
the Bank and managing the subsidiaries within the Group
during the year are as follows:

2012 2011

BT T BT T

HK$'000 HK$'000

we Fees 6,515 4,681
H B2 Other emoluments 10,426 12,604
16,941 17,285

200278 - REIREBE () BEEZER QA FRBVIRIE
R 18(b)H) AT EFT M AN RITETESR TR
B - B RWFE18 - FRNWEERITHEZ SR - WL
MFErESWNeP U EDIFERZSREMEEDFE
iR IMER SR B R (20114F « f8) o

(b) CGS5TEREBEAEBRTEAESNHMH

BEEREH 2CG-5 (RENFTMHIREIES) AFEARE
EreREBABRTIZAEBNFHMFBENT -

In July 2002, options were granted to several directors of
the Bank by the immediate holding company of BOCHK
(Holdings), BOC (BVI), under the Pre-Listing Share Option
Scheme as set out in Note 18(b). Full details of the scheme
are stated in Note 18. During the year, no options were
exercised and no benefits arising from the granting of these
share options were included in the directors’ emoluments
disclosed above or recognised in the income statement
(2011: Nil).

(b) Remuneration for senior management and
Key Personnel under CG-5

Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration
System issued by the HKMA, details of the remuneration for
senior management and Key Personnel of the Group during
the year are as follows:

(i) FRE R 17 1957 Bl (i) Remuneration awarded during the year
2012
BREEAR TEAE
Senior management Key personnel
FIRE IR
Non- EE @ct Non- B @ct
deferred  Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BT BTz B¥Tx BT BTz BYTx
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(& 7E % B Fixed remuneration
e Cash 9,530 - 9,530 5,215 - 5,215
FENE BN Variable remuneration
BHe Cash 3,740 500 4,240 1,961 - 1,961
#a5 Total 13,270 500 13,770 7,176 - 7,176
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%

(b)

EX EEEBAEBRIEAEME
(#)

CGS5TEREBEAERTEAENFMN (&)

(i)  REARTHIFH (&)

B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

19. DIRECTORS’, S

ENIOR

MANAGEMENT’S AND KEY
PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

(b)

Key Personnel un

Remuneration for senior management and

der CG-5 (Cont'd)

(i) Remuneration awarded during the year (Cont’d)

2011
BREEAR TEAE
Senior management Key personnel
FHERE FHETE
Non- RE @t Non- BT st
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BT A%Tr  B%Tr A%t BT BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(& & Er N Fixed remuneration
Re Cash 9,968 - 9,968 5,142 - 5,142
FEE Variable remuneration
Re Cash 3,876 260 4,136 1,913 - 1,913
ey Total 13,844 260 14,104 7,055 - 7,055

WA & % Bl B 5% (Q01MF 1 78) 8 RE B A B k4A

(20114F 1 4%) EEAB -

The remuneration above includes 5 (2011: 7) members

of senior management and

4 (2011: 4) members of Key

Personnel.
(i) BAEFBHIEAEE (i)  Deferred remuneration outstanding
2012 2011
BREEAS TEAE EREBEAE FEAE
Senior Key Senior Key
management personnel  management personnel
BT T BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT B Deferred remuneration
ERE Vested 90 - _ _
5 Unvested 670 = 260 -
760 — 260 -
B1A1H At 1 January 260 - - _
RE-Si Awarded 500 - 260 -
M Paid out (90) - - _
R BT Reduced through performance
i HR B 1 adjustments - - _ _
124318 At 31 December 670 - 260 -

www.ncb.com.hk
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19. ES - SEEBABRTIEAEMSE
(#)

4
(b) CGS5TEREEAERTEAENHM (&)
(i)  BEEFEHAIEFE (&)

REBERE  ABNRERNSRERBAERTIEABDRE
ER(RROHIGIEES) % -

BREEAR  EFEHRTNENEEAR  AER
BB BREITHAENBIELE -

\MH.}

Do
CR:
fiB
o
=
R

TBAER  BAARBESSRBEARRAE HEARRESR
EXFE EAABREERRERGEE BEAXE  %H
BNBERTENAR  BRERXBAFNRBREANELE
B RHIE URYEAREREERYENBEELE
BIEA -

20. Eﬁiﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬂf&ﬁﬁﬂ%*ﬁﬂ@

19. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S AND KEY
PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

(b) Remuneration for senior management and
Key Personnel under CG-5 (Cont'd)

(ii) Deferred remuneration outstanding (Cont’d)

For the purpose of disclosure, senior management and Key
Personnel mentioned in this section are defined according
to the HKMA's Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System.

Senior management: The senior executives designated by
the Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide
strategy or material business lines, including Chief Executive
and Deputy General Managers.

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business
activities involve the assumption of material risk which may
have significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual
responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the
profit, including Head of material business line, Head of
Trading, as well as Head of risk control functions.

20. CASH AND BALANCES WITH
BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL

=} N
INSTITUTIONS
AER KRBT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BET T BT BT T BEET T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFRe Cash 651,229 590,818 383,218 363,802
FPRIBITH 8 Balances with central banks 13,139,030 10,554,122 35,306 517,779
TFHUERTT R E A Balances with banks and
S RBEN LS other financial institutions 13,263,797 16,400,091 13,026,968 17,195,853
EIRITRHE MR Placements with banks and
BE—EAR other financial institutions
B8 2 F BATE maturing within one month 13,734,264 16,449,302 8,313,216 8,864,144

40,788,320 43,994,333 = 21,758,708 26,941,578
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21. ATVESHABSILREE 21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
AEBRART
The Group and the Bank
RERUDFEEZL
TABRZEREE
Financial assets
RaMES designated at fair value @t
Trading securities through profit or loss Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
BETT BT BETT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BATEAR At fair value
EBES Debt securities
- REBLM - Listed in Hong Kong - - 264,125 247,900 264,125 247,900
— BN BT - Listed outside Hong Kong - - 508,696 518,359 508,696 518,359
- - 772,821 766,259 772,821 766,259
e il - Unlisted 4,272,358 1,109,280 79,981 370,222 4,352,339 1,479,502
fact Total 4,272,358 1,109,280 852,802 1,136,481 5,125,160 2,245,761

RNFESFABRZ EREERETEREZ BT

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
analysed by type of issuer as follows:

AEERARRIT
The Group and the Bank
2012 2011
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEHER Sovereigns 4,271,737 1,108,780
NEEAL Public sector entities* 621 500
HRAT R E S m Banks and other financial institutions = 293,869
NalhE Corporate entities 852,802 842,612
5,125,160 2,245,761
* BREERTEZEFABEZSREEB621,0007T (20114 : & * Included financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of

#500,0007T) % (RTTE (BAR) RA) ARBATRRE EL -

AFERCHAESZ SHAEAFAMT :

HK$621,000 (2011: HK$500,000) which are eligible to be classified
as public sector entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
analysed as follows:

AEERAFRIT

The Group and the Bank

2012 2011

BET T BB T T

HK$'000 HK$’000

B Treasury bills 4,271,737 1,108,780
Hih AP EE L ABRZZ Other financial assets at fair value through

SREE profit or loss 853,423 1,136,981

5,125,160 2,245,761

www.ncb.com.hk
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22. {TEE£®mIA

REBMFTZTFIER - FX - Emm MO EEAENITES
BTEANREEEMEREIEZMA

EHINER HRIENARKFE - AHERFINE AR

S RAE TR TARSRROES - BHOER
RTREH - FIE (METHREIHFR) RBAMUE
BT MA (R XS FIRIEH) - 1 5L 5 A 4

Oh ZERGEFBAE -

SMNEHE IR ENE S (HET) RES (BE7) RE|E
AERFE—FHEBBSIAKR -—ERHAROENEREE (R
) B (RAHE) —EHENSRMTAMNERN (M
FEAGE) W—RIHE - ZEBIIMNEMMKE R - HENET
TBETRD-—ENHER - AREHESNESEEFIE
BIMBRERK I E ©

AEEZTESRTARY DR NBEREATERD
NT&R - EERBRAZHESRIANALN EEAOH
HERTTREEABRAZATARSE METERT
BZ&H/ 2B A0BBEARAT —ARFEEEABERA
PR AT EEEXBENSLER - B2 BATHEK
Fg BRI S RERE AT R FE - Biftb 78RR
AEBEMEEOERRBRITISER - BEATESRTA
BRGFERNESR mENE ESBERIB D ERE
REVKE) - TESRTANGBENEEEHRITERN (BE)
A (BE) WFE  SEFETRETRBMARKRD
KE o

AEBETHEIRSATEERRSZNEIEBENRARER
1 - AREMENMBEHES REREMENITEERR
HUTERBRAKENSRERRERBERRAE
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group enters into the following exchange rate, interest
rate, commodity and equity related derivative financial
instrument contracts for trading and risk management
purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and
sell foreign currency on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result
in an exchange of currencies, interest rates (for example,
fixed rate for floating rate), or a combination of all these
(for example, cross-currency interest rate swaps). Except for
certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal
takes place.

Foreign currency options are contractual agreements under
which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the
right, but not the obligation, either to buy (a call option)
or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a set
period, a specific amount of the financial instrument at a
predetermined price. In consideration for the assumption of
foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the seller receives
a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated
over-the-counter (“OTC") between the Group and its
counterparty.

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative
financial instruments held by the Group are set out in the
following tables. The contract/notional amounts of these
instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding
at the balance sheet dates and certain of them provide a
basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised
on the consolidated balance sheet. However, they do
not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows
involved or the current fair values of the instruments and,
therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or
market risks. The derivative financial instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result
of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, market interest
rates, metal prices or equity prices relative to their terms.
The aggregate fair values of derivative financial instruments
assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time
to time.

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded
or OTC) mainly for customer business. The Group strictly
follows risk management policies in providing derivative
products to our customers and in trading of derivative
products in the interbank market.

www.ncb.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of
the banking book. A derivative instrument must be included
in the approved product list before any transactions for that
instrument can be made. Every derivative transaction must
be input into the relevant system for settlement, mark to
market revaluation, reporting and control.

The following tables summarise the contract/notional
amounts of each class of derivative financial instrument as
at 31 December:

AEE
The Group
2012
FRHEHRA
#HhEEE
Not qualified
EE  for hedge st
Trading accounting Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
[EREH Exchange rate contracts
B ER Nz 3= HR Spot and forwards 23,183,476 - 23,183,476
2 23 Swaps 19,932,539 - 19,932,539
YINFE 35 55 A4 Foreign currency options
— B AHARE — Options purchased 29,589 - 29,589
— 5 EARE — Options written 29,589 - 29,589
43,175,193 - 43,175,193
FEEH Interest rate contracts
2 A Swaps 35,851,341 720,082 36,571,423
HmAad Commodity contracts 142,395 - 142,395
RS L Equity contracts 47,104 = 47,104
HEME4 Other contracts 4,496 - 4,496
ast Total 79,220,529 720,082 79,940,611

TRERAEMEE BREAGRITE (HE) KA &
Ko BORBRBETATERAEPEEER - BEEEUR
TEAESKRERARNSRITA-HEENTESRIA -

www.nch.com.hk
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Not qualified for hedge accounting: derivative transactions
which do not qualify as hedges for accounting purposes but
are managed in conjunction with the financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss are separately
disclosed in compliance with the requirements set out in the
Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
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22. fTEES®WMIHE % 22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
REE
The Group
2011
NFEERA
g shA
Not qualified
BE for hedge st
Trading accounting Total
BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[EREH Exchange rate contracts
BIEA R i AR Spot and forwards 38,126,849 - 38,126,849
= Hy Swaps 12,343,293 - 12,343,293
YINGEE 3F 5 BAHE Foreign currency options
— B — Options purchased 17,165 - 17,165
— I — Options written 17,165 - 17,165
50,504,472 - 50,504,472
T &= A 4 Interest rate contracts
= B8R Swaps 28,510,868 721,698 29,232,566
EERA Y Commodity contracts 305,772 _ 305,772
H A4 Other contracts 5,705 _ 5,705
45T Total 79,326,817 721,698 80,048,515

166 S$ 7% 4645 = NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT 3§ www.ncb.com.hk
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

AERIT
The Bank
2012
TREERA
HHgTHE
Not qualified
BEE for hedge st
Trading  accounting Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
[ERAEH Exchange rate contracts
BIHA M 3= HR Spot and forwards 16,092,063 - 16,092,063
5 B Swaps 14,574,798 - 14,574,798
SN AT 5 BT Foreign currency option
— B AR — Options purchased 29,589 - 29,589
— B HARE — Options written 29,589 - 29,589
30,726,039 - 30,726,039
FEEH Interest rate contracts
12 B Swaps 2,133,652 720,082 2,853,734
Ema# Commodity contracts 92,496 - 92,496
M= S 4 Equity contracts 9,636 - 9,636
HEfad Other contracts 4,496 = 4,496
Bz Total 32,966,319 720,082 33,686,401
RERAT
The Bank
2011
TREHA
g
Not qualified
BE for hedge “ast
Trading accounting Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERA 4 Exchange rate contracts
BNHA R i HR Spot and forwards 34,075,862 - 34,075,862
=5 Swaps 11,267,612 - 11,267,612
HINFE 3% 5 HRdEE Foreign currency option
— BEAHE — Options purchased 17,165 - 17,165
— B — Options written 17,165 - 17,165
45,377,804 - 45,377,804
FEREHL Interest rate contracts
=5 Swaps 4,617,366 721,698 5,339,064
B Commodity contracts 254,696 - 254,696
a4 Other contracts 5,705 _ 5,705
Bt Total 50,255,571 721,698 50,977,269

www.ncb.com.hk
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22. fTEES®WMIHE %

THREMEETESRMTAMNI2A31TBZATE -

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

The following tables summarise the fair values of each class
of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

iS4
The Group
2012
APEEE ATEERE
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
FHERA THEHRA
HhEE Eabil-
Not Not
qualified qualified
BEE  for hedge @t BEE  for hedge @5t
Trading  accounting Total Trading  accounting Total
BETT BETT BT T BET T BET T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fERA %) Exchange rate contracts
BVER R = AR Spot and forwards 565,560 - 565,560 (255,436) - (255,436)
2 HA Swaps 142,451 - 142,451 (22,390) - (22,390)
GINE 22 5 B A Foreign currency option
— B AHE — Options purchased 130 - 130 - - -
— EHEE — Options written - - - (130) - (130)
708,141 - 708,141 (277,956) - (277,956)
T A& 4 Interest rate contracts
2 HA Swaps 53,255 - 53,255 (108,691) (72,348) (181,039)
EECEES) Commodity contracts 2,967 - 2,967 (399) - (399)
iR E L Equity contracts 213 - 213 (213) = (213)
Hiba4) Other contracts 1 - 1 - - -
FEE Total 764,577 - 764,577 (387,259) (72,348) (459,607)

168  H1if @ 4Af = NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT &3

www.ncb.com.hk



22. fTEES®WMIHE %

B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

A%E
The Group
2011
ATEEE ATEER
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
T HEERA AEARHA
Hhers g s
Not Not
qualified qualified
BEE  for hedge @t EE  for hedge Bt
Trading  accounting Total Trading  accounting Total
BT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EREH Exchange rate contracts
BIVHA M2 3= B Spot and forwards 760,384 - 760,384 (400,191) - (400,191)
2 A7 Swaps 10,841 - 10,841 (57,385) - (57,385)
HNE R 5 B RE Foreign currency option
— B AH#E - Options purchased 72 - 72 - - -
— B — Options written - - - (72) - (72)
711,297 - 771,297 (457,648) - (457,648)
MEEH Interest rate contracts
2 87 Swaps 40,998 - 40,998 (120,847) (91,464) (212,311)
Emad Commodity contracts 4,095 - 4,095 (2,659) - (2,659)
Hih&# Other contracts 13 - 13 - - -
FEES Total 816,403 - 816,403 (581,154) (91,464) (672,618)

www.ncb.com.hk
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22. fTESBMTE (o) 22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
KRBT
The Bank
2012
ATERE ATEAR
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
FRERA FRERA
etk D= 7
Not Not
qualified qualified
BE  for hedge @t EE  for hedge @t
Trading  accounting Total Trading  accounting Total

BRTR ik R BETR BETR ERTR BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

EXREA Exchange rate contracts
BIVHA M2 3= B Spot and forwards 530,800 - 530,800 (230,900) - (230,900)
o H Swaps 115,895 - 115,895 (17,301) - (17,301)
HNE R 5 B RE Foreign currency option
— B AH#E - Options purchased 130 - 130 - - -
— B — Options written - - - (130) - (130)
646,825 - 646,825 (248,331) - (248,331)
MEEH Interest rate contracts
i Swaps - - - (55.436)  (72,348)  (127,784)
Emad Commodity contracts 2,824 = 2,824 (257) = (257)
& =& 4 Equity contracts 53 = 53 (53) - (53)
HEMEL Other contracts 1 = 1 - - _
4Bzt Total 649,703 - 649,703 (304,077) (72,348) (376,425)
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)

ART
The Bank
2011
AEEEE NHEERE
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
AHERA THEHRA
gk g A
Not Not
qualified qualified
BEE  for hedge @t E¥E  for hedge Bt
Trading  accounting Total Trading  accounting Total
BETT BETT BT BB BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERAL Exchange rate contracts
B HR R 3= HA Spot and forwards 733,599 - 733,599 (385,008) - (385,008)
=5 Swaps 10,360 - 10,360 (54,288) - (54,288)
HNE X 5 B AE Foreign currency option
— B AH#E - Options purchased 72 - 72 - - -
— = HARE — Options written - - - (72) - (72)
744,031 - 744,031 (439,368) - (439,368)
FEEL Interest rate contracts
=1 Swaps 1,740 - 1,740 (81,872) (91,464) (173,336)
EmaH Commodity contracts 3,364 - 3,364 (1,928) - (1,928)
HEhE L Other contracts 13 - 13 - - -
it Total 749,148 - 749,148 (523,168) (91,464)  (614,632)

BatTESRTAZEERRMERERDT

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above derivative
financial instruments are as follows:

AEE AERAT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BT T BT T BEETTT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EEREL) Exchange rate contracts
REA Forwards 174,157 619,563 80,560 566,541
=5 Swaps 77,605 25,906 54,064 22,902
FIEEH Interest rate contracts
=5 Swaps 31,045 21,507 2,548 4,150
B Commodity contracts 2,809 - = -
R E L Equity contracts 1,173 - - -
4Bzt Total 286,789 666,976 137,172 593,593

SERBMNESEIRE (RITE (BA) RAD HE - ZH
BEXSGHF2ERARERAOZHREHAR

TEEBMTAZATENEERRMEREL LA AENE
BFRGEGRAYE -

www.ncb.com.hk

The credit risk weighted amounts are calculated in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. The amounts
are dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the
maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

There is no effect of valid bilateral netting agreement on
the fair values or the credit risk weighted amounts of the
derivative financial instruments.
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23. EXKRHEMERIE

23. ADVANCES AND OTHER

ACCOUNTS
rEE AERAT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EAER Personal loans and advances 22,002,049 20,863,287 15,651,764 16,318,123
NGI= N Corporate loans and advances 109,151,060 98,980,942 69,411,566 67,917,818
ZEEH* Advances to customers* 131,153,109 119,844,229 85,063,330 84,235,941
ERUREER Loan impairment allowances
— A RS — Individually assessed (220,593) (87,615) (58,444) (11,652)
— RBAE T — Collectively assessed (969,449) (705,132) (591,183) (428,451)
129,963,067 119,051,482 84,413,703 83,795,838
E5F% Trade bills 8,069,618 13,318,487 5,504,118 10,819,714
BITREME REE Advances to banks and other
B financial institutions - 544,256 - 544,256
w@et Total 138,032,685 132,914,225 89,917,821 95,159,808

R2012F 128318 » AEERARITEFERBEEF
B 7B#522,723,0007T (20114 : 7##533,810,0007T) M
#£303,115,0007T (20114F : #%308,728,0007T) °

P2012F12 A31H N2011F12 8318 - ANEE K ARIEITH
ESEBEMBITREMS @EE 2 BRI EEREAETOR
B2 -

* NEBEBEATLEF B HHB%65,256,992,0005T (20114 « B #
61,458,683,0007T) & % 7L & F B 5 #1 & /& #£27,860,495,0007T
(20114 : #%34,285,493,0007T) - NRITBEEATLEF EFEE
62,941,947,0007T (20114 : #¥58,979,430,0007T) RETLEFE
A B120,197,752,0007T (20114 : 5#523,881,658,0007T)

172 A F¥ 444 = NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT &3

As at 31 December 2012, advances to customers of the Group
and the Bank included accrued interest of HK$522,723,000
(2011: HK$533,810,000) and HK$303,115,000 (2011:
HK$308,728,000) respectively.

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, no impairment allowance
was made in respect of trade bills and advances to banks and
other financial institutions.

* Included advances to customers of the Group denominated in HK
dollars of HK$65,256,992,000 (2011: HK$61,458,683,000) and US
dollars equivalent to HK$27,860,495,000 (2011: HK$34,285,493,000).
Included advances to customers of the Bank denominated in HK dollars
of HK$62,941,947,000 (2011: HK$58,979,430,000) and US dollars
equivalent to HK$20,197,752,000 (2011: HK$23,881,658,000).

www.ncb.com.hk
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24. BEHHEEE 24. LOAN IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES
rEE AERAT
The Group The Bank
2012
218 B3 AE
Individual assessment
BA AT et fBA NG FoEy
Personal Corporate Total  Personal Corporate Total
BETT E¥Trz AB¥Tx #B%Tx BT E¥Trn
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7201291818 At 1 January 2012 4,566 83,049 87,615 2,698 8,954 11,652
RIS KBS/ Charged/(credited) to
(#ME) income statement 2,979 133,574 136,553 (2,377) 54,043 51,666
FRMEZ Loans written off during
R EE the year as uncollectible (38) (9,796) (9,834) = (9,456) (9,456)
W Bl 2 s BRI Recoveries 1,071 12,452 13,523 471 5,728 6,199
PR ELEE Unwind of discount on
[o] #% impairment allowances (377) (7,702) (8,079) - (1,606) (1,606)
N =5 Exchange difference 104 711 815 (4) (7) (11)
72012912A31H At 31 December 2012 8,305 212,288 220,593 788 57,656 58,444
rEE AERAT
The Group The Bank
2012
REATHE
Collective assessment
BA | st fBA NG FoEy
Personal Corporate Total  Personal Corporate Total
BETT AE¥Trz B¥Tx B¥%Tx BT  EBE¥Trn
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201291 A18 At 1 January 2012 42,177 662,955 705,132 6,901 421,550 428,451
PR RBHE Charged/(credited) to
(#ME) income statement 4,979 255,416 260,395 (505) 163,217 162,712
[EH =% Exchange difference 45 3,877 3,922 - 20 20
201249 12A31H At 31 December 2012 47,201 922,248 969,449 6,396 584,787 591,183

www.nch.com.hk
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24. EFUREZEE »)

24. LOAN IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES

(Cont'd)
AEHE ARIRTT
The Group The Bank
2011
RAE IR
Individual assessment
BA NG et A NG| st
Personal ~ Corporate Total Personal  Corporate Total
BEFT B%Tr  BETx BBt AT BETx
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2011451 A1H At 1 January 2011 2,189 103,100 105,289 859 11,588 12,447
RikzE (BR),/ (Credited)/charged to
e income statement (2,044) (2,916) (4,960) (1,865) 7,228 5,363
F M2 AU Loans written off during
BR the year as uncollectible - (33,697) (33,697) - (10,806) (10,806)
Yo Bl B 3H AR IR Recoveries 4,506 15,513 20,019 3,771 1,598 5,369
FHREEE Unwind of discount on
[o] #% impairment allowances (365) (899) (1,264) (67) (652) (719)
VEH =% Exchange difference 280 1,948 2,228 - (2) (2)
M2011%12A31H At 31 December 2011 4,566 83,049 87,615 2,698 8,954 11,652
AEE ARIRTT
The Group The Bank
2011
AR
Collective assessment
BA NG| et fEA NG| st
Personal  Corporate Total Personal  Corporate Total
BT B%Tr  BETr BBt AT BET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201151818 At 1 January 2011 6,575 521,735 528,310 5,565 337,253 342,818
N EE Charged to income statement 35,332 133,162 168,494 1,336 84,046 85,382
EHZER Exchange difference 270 8,058 8,328 - 251 251
M2011%12A31H At 31 December 2011 42,177 662,955 705,132 6,901 421,550 428,451
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Notes to the Financial Statements

25. HBERKRE 25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES
KEME ARIT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
B¥TT BT B¥TT BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(a) AHHEES (a) Available-for-sale securities
EF%ES  HWAFMEAE  Debt securities, at fair value
—-REBLT ~ Listed in Hong Kong 3,125,220 1,402,102 3,125,220 1,402,102
—RgINETH ~ Listed outside Hong Kong 5,363,706 4,487,726 5,363,706 4,487,726
8,488,926 5,889,828 8,488,926 5,889,828
—3LEm — Unlisted 29,815,789 20,822,258 23,610,324 17,635,848
38,304,715 26,712,086 32,099,250 23,525,676
MefhB% - wAFEAE  Equity securities, at fair value
—Jtm - Unlisted 56,146 43,899 56,146 43,899
38,360,861 26,755,985 32,155,396 23,569,575
(b) HEZIHAESF (b) Held-to-maturity securities
ET o RE AN Listed, at amortised cost
— g ETH - outside Hong Kong - 121,596 - 121,596
JELT - REERAAR  Unlisted, at amortised cost 1,471,526 1,429,104 586,825 448,941
1,471,526 1,550,700 586,825 570,537
(c) B R KT () Loans and receivables
SEETH - B AAR  Unlisted, at amortised cost 1,157,262 1,875,919 1,157,262 1,875,919
et Total 40,989,649 30,182,604 33,899,483 26,016,031
BAEZRIHAZ Market value of listed
tHEETE held-to-maturity securities = 118,147 = 118,147

www.ncb.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

25. BERE )

ERREBRBITHBZ OB

25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (Cont'd)

Investment in securities is analysed by type of issuer as

follows:
rEE
The Group
2012
AftHE BEZE
ok EHI A &EH BEXK
Available- Held-to- i A EN
for-sale maturity Loans and T
securities securities  receivables Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
-t Sovereigns 14,408,938 884,701 - 15,293,639
NV Public sector entities* 506,992 - - 506,992
SFRIT N EM S REE Banks and other financial institutions 16,454,503 465,639 - 16,920,142
naElhE Corporate entities 6,990,428 121,186 1,157,262 8,268,876
38,360,861 1,471,526 1,157,262 40,989,649
rEH
The Group
2011
"H,\Hj’% BEZE
&2 F|HBH EH BR K
Available- Held-to- JE U R
for-sale maturity Loans and HEt
securities securities receivables Total
BET T BET T BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHES Sovereigns 10,439,564 980,163 - 11,419,727
NE B Public sector entities* 175,915 - - 175,915
RITREH M R Banks and other financial institutions 11,344,638 330,025 1,875,919 13,550,582
NAEE Corporate entities 4,795,868 240,512 - 5,036,380
26,755,985 1,550,700 1,875,919 30,182,604
* B & At E#E 5B 506,992,000 (20114 : 6 B * Included available-for-sale securities of HK$506,992,000 (2011:

175,915,0007T) 7 (RT3 (A7) #A) NRBAI AR E B

HK$175,915,000) which are eligible to be classified as public sector

entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (Cont'd)

ARERAT
The Bank
2012
AHHE BEZE
HH BH A &S BERR
Available- Held-to- R
for-sale maturity Loans and it
securities securities receivables Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ELERE Sovereigns 9,953,382 - - 9,953,382
Nk Public sector entities** 506,992 - - 506,992
RITREM S B E Banks and other financial institutions 16,454,503 465,639 - 16,920,142
NEIE Corporate entities 5,240,519 121,186 1,157,262 6,518,967
32,155,396 586,825 1,157,262 33,899,483
AIRAT
The Bank
2011
A E BEZE
BH ZIHIE EH BR K
Available- Held-to- MR
for-sale maturity Loans and HEt
securities securities receivables Total
BEFIT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ELER Sovereigns 7,990,028 - - 7,990,028
N VA Public sector entities** 175,915 - - 175,915
RITNEM S REE Banks and other financial institutions 11,344,638 330,025 1,875,919 13,550,582
NI Corporate entities 4,058,994 240,512 - 4,299,506
23,569,575 570,537 1,875,919 26,016,031
o B IE E ] B F F B %506,992,0000T (20114 & # *x Included available-for-sale securities of HK$506,992,000 (2011:

175,915,0007T) 1E (RT3 (BAR) A1) AR AAE B

www.ncb.com.hk

HK$175,915,000) which are eligible to be classified as public sector

entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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25. BERE )
BEWE Y SHERNT

25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (Cont'd)

The movements in investment in securities are summarised

as follows:
S 3
The Group
2012
AfHE BEZE
BH EHA®ES BRR
Available- Held-to- e
for-sale maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables
BET T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
201251 A1H At 1 January 2012 26,755,985 1,550,700 1,875,919
0 Additions 127,753,821 2,086,927 1,367,099
RE - BRI Disposals, redemptions and maturity (116,673,519)  (2,200,797)  (2,143,510)
By Amortisation 50,460 7,575 14,195
NFEEE Change in fair value 328,116 - -
ME N ZEFE Exchange difference 145,998 27,121 43,559
#2012%12A31H At 31 December 2012 38,360,861 1,471,526 1,157,262
r5E
The Group
2011
A E HEE
E5H IHAES R R
Available- Held-to- JE WK
for-sale maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables
BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201141 A1H At 1 January 2011 23,743,216 2,382,575 1,054,646
Byl Additions 182,365,290 3,281,486 3,405,538
BRE - EE R Disposals, redemptions and maturity (179,542,115) (4,106,159) (2,476,506)
Bty Amortisation 21,518 (3,004) 31,489
NFEEE Change in fair value 3,249 - -
EEEFEE (F3E10) Net reversal of impairment allowances (Note 10) - 2,953 -
EHEE Exchange difference 164,827 (7,151) (139,248)
20114128318 At 31 December 2011 26,755,985 1,550,700 1,875,919
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Notes to the Financial Statements

25. WERE (&) 25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (Contd)
KERAT
The Bank
2012
AEHE BEZ
BH BHHFES BRK
Available- Held-to- FEWRR
for-sale maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables
BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201241 A1E At 1 January 2012 23,569,575 570,537 1,875,919
# Additions 122,537,850 1,762,996 1,367,099
RE - EO &S Disposals, redemptions and maturity (114,406,071) (1,765,360) (2,143,510)
g Amortisation (2,221) (232) 14,195
NEEEL Change in fair value 340,360 - -
[EH =5 Exchange difference 115,903 18,884 43,559
72012412 A31H At 31 December 2012 32,155,396 586,825 1,157,262
RIFTT
The Bank
2011
AEEE BREZE
E5 FH B ES 6795
Available- Held-to- FE IR
for-sale maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables
BETE  BETR  BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201141718 At 1 January 2011 22,321,695 2,382,575 1,054,646
0 Additions 179,167,233 1,027,097 3,405,538
BE - Bl &S Disposals, redemptions and maturity (177,987,097) (2,810,311) (2,476,506)
By Amortisation (13,063) (24,252) 31,489
NHEE Change in fair value (18,200) - -
B EE TR Net reversal of impairment allowances - 2,953 -
EH =5 Exchange difference 99,007 (7,525) (139,248)
2011412 A31H At 31 December 2011 23,569,575 570,537 1,875,919

www.ncb.com.hk
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25. BERE )

25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (Cont'd)

AL EREEEIHAZEYENT Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities are analysed
as follows:
rEH
The Group
AHHERS BEZIHERS
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity
securities securities
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BET T BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E%5 Treasury bills 13,385,213 10,214,915 884,701 980,163
BB 2 FRE Certificates of deposit held 5,569,963 1,350,789 464,743 225,695
Hith Others 19,405,685 15,190,281 122,082 344,842
38,360,861 26,755,985 1,471,526 1,550,700
AT
The Bank
AHHERS BFEZEMAHES
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity
securities securities

2012 2011 2012 2011
BETT BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
E% Treasury bills 8,929,657 7,765,378 - -
RE 2 FRE Certificates of deposit held 5,569,963 1,350,789 464,743 225,695
H Others 17,655,776 14,453,408 122,082 344,842
32,155,396 23,569,575 586,825 570,537

AHEERBAERNRES 2 REERESHMMT

The movements in impairment allowances on available-
for-sale and held-to-maturity securities are summarised as
follows:

AEBRAERT
The Group and the Bank
AHHERS BFEZRHAHES
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity
securities securities

2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BB T BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
®1A18 At 1 January - - - 3,303
RS RS/ (BRE) Charged/(credited) to income statement = 725 = (2,953)
RE Disposals - (725) - (350)
R12A318 At 31 December - - - _
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Notes to the Financial Statements

26. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

RERIT
The Bank
2012 2011
BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000
JEETRRD - TR AE AR Unlisted shares, at cost 8,171,067 5,222,682

R2012F 128318 » RRFTZWEB AR 2500 -

The following is

December 2012:

a list of subsidiaries of the Bank as at 31

RRITHERELS
AR &L BRTREHAZRE Equity interest
Place of Particulars of issued held by the Bank
ARER incorporation/ and paid up ordinary HERE TEEK
Name operation share capital Directly Principal activities
BAEERIT (RE) BRAA F HMER 100% BITERB
AR #6,500,000,00075
Nanyang Commercial Bank The People’s Registered capital Banking business
(China), Limited Republic of China RMB6,500,000,000
MABERITERERAF" Eit 300,000 &k 100% {EFER%
BREEEEI0T
Nanyang Commercial Bank Hong Kong 300,000 shares of Trustee services
Trustee Limited* HK$10 each
BAmEEERERAR* 0 30,500k 100% BRERE
BREEB®1007T
Kwong Li Nam Investment Hong Kong 30,500 shares of Investment agency
Agency Limited* HK$100 each
BFBERT (RBA) BRAF* BB S00E Rk 100% RIEARH
SRmERSI00T
Nanyang Commercial Bank Hong Kong 500 shares of Nominee services

(Nominees) Limited*

HK$100 each

[

INERAMMBRREERMAE & RTARRLEMNAREETELGE
BEAFZRENGFARBRA - ARITEEZSEREENMERRRE (RITE
(EA) BRI AER A AR - EETEIESE - MEABAIZR G ER#
TiRe > BRI ERDATB SRS KIE (FX IR 18ARTR

ik o

www.ncb.com.hk

Remarks:

Name of subsidiaries which are not included in the consolidation group for
regulatory purposes in respect of capital adequacy is marked with * in the
above table. The Bank and its subsidiaries specified by the HKMA form the

basis of consolidation for its regulatory purposes in accordance with the

Banking (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated

in accordance with the accounting standards issued by the HKICPA pursuant

to section 18A of the Professional Accountants Ordinance.
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27. REWE

27. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

rEE AERAT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BETT BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
B1A1H At 1 January 847,948 618,263 802,260 579,940
7E Additions - 13,105 - 13,105
HE Disposals - (6,208) - -
ATEYE Fair value gains 178,766 136,553 177,410 135,195
EFORES (ER) Reclassification from properties,
mE - BMRBE plant and equipment
(KizE28) (Note 28) - 84 461 - 74,020
&5 =% Exchange difference 369 1,774 - -
MW12A31H At 31 December 1,027,083 847,948 979,670 802,260

BREME 2 FHRERBEOFGIMBEITOT -

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based

on the remaining terms of the leases as follows:

rEH RERIT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BETT BET T BET T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
EEEREE Held in Hong Kong
REIFEA) (BiB504F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 884,150 732,050 884,150 732,050
R ERFE A On medium-term lease
(10FEE50%) (10 - 50 years) 95,520 70,210 95,520 70,210
EEINER Held outside Hong Kong
REFY) (B850 ) On long-term lease (over 50 years) = 1,728 = -
HHIFE A On medium-term lease
(10 E50%F) (10 - 50 years) 47,413 43,960 - -
1,027,083 847,948 979,670 802,260

MR2012F12A318 " JIREEBBRAZREME » ThK
BEUEHIEME - AFBETHEREEBEREERAT
MR2012F12A31AUNAFEAEEMET  EHEMEE - A
TEEETEETEE 2HHEE BEEHFEAEE A NGHE
AIEAFRATENS  BERFRAZEATEREEEZ
HET&% -

182  Aif @ 4if = NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT &4

As at 31 December 2012, investment properties are included
in the balance sheets at valuation carried out at 31 December
2012 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm
of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited. The fair value represents the estimated
amount at which the asset should be exchanged on the date
of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in
an arm'’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein
the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

28. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

rEE
The Group
BEBE
RERERE
Equipment,
EE fixtures and et
Premises fittings Total
B¥TT B¥TT B¥TT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201291 A1 B ZREHE Net book value at 1 January 2012 4,231,342 352,069 4,583,411
weE Additions 306,817 122,702 429,519
HE Disposals (5,887) (4,504) (10,391)
EAR Revaluation 1,386,559 - 1,386,559
FEME (MF11) Depreciation for the year (Note 11) (73,522) (93,417) (166,939)
[EH =5 Exchange difference 1,486 1,350 2,836
R2012%F 128318 2 REFE Net book value at 31 December 2012 5,846,795 378,200 6,224,995
R2012912A31H At 31 December 2012
AR E Cost or valuation 5,846,795 764,461 6,611,256
ZFHTE Accumulated depreciation = (386,261) (386,261)
2012912 A31 B ZREFE Net book value at 31 December 2012 5,846,795 378,200 6,224,995
20111 1B ZREFE Net book value at 1 January 2011 3,196,912 242,468 3,439,380
bih Additions 21,416 177,135 198,551
e Disposals (67,242) (13,079) (80,321)
EXR Revaluation 1,211,838 - 1,211,838
FEWE (ME11) Depreciation for the year (Note 11) (55,383) (60,058) (115,441)
EFDEEEREYE (M5527)  Reclassification to investment properties
(Note 27) (84,461) - (84,461)
JEH =5 Exchange difference 8,262 5,603 13,865
R011E12A31B 2 REFE Net book value at 31 December 2011 4,231,342 352,069 4,583,411
20119128318 At 31 December 2011
AR E Cost or valuation 4,231,342 663,934 4,895,276
ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation - (311,865) (311,865)
201112831 B ZREFE Net book value at 31 December 2011 4,231,342 352,069 4,583,411
AR 7 RANESEES T - The analysis of cost or valuation
of the above assets is as follows:
A2012F12A31H At 31 December 2012
B AME At cost - 764,461 764,461
RiLE At valuation 5,846,795 - 5,846,795
5,846,795 764,461 6,611,256
20114128318 At 31 December 2011
BAKAE At cost - 663,934 663,934
Z{hE At valuation 4,231,342 - 4,231,342
4,231,342 663,934 4,895,276

www.ncb.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

28. W¥ - BHEBERE @) 28. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)
AT
The Bank
®iE - BE
Rk ERE
Equipment,
REE fixtures and Foy
Premises fittings Total
BYTT BYTT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1201261 A1H ZBREFE Net book value at 1 January 2012 4,038,737 81,513 4,120,250
weE Additions 27,031 21,368 48,399
e Disposals - (483) (483)
ELr Revaluation 1,379,172 - 1,379,172
FEFE Depreciation for the year (63,035) (23,140) (86,175)
(B =5 Exchange difference - (2) (2)
2012612 A31B 2 REHE Net book value at 31 December 2012 5,381,905 79,256 5,461,161
20126127318 At 31 December 2012
KA B Cost or valuation 5,381,905 266,767 5,648,672
ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation = (187,511) (187,511)
P2012F 12831 B 2 REFE Net book value at 31 December 2012 5,381,905 79,256 5,461,161
P20 E1 1B 2 REFE Net book value at 1 January 2011 3,015,655 86,355 3,102,010
#eE Additions 14,961 18,791 33,752
HE Disposals (67,242) (13) (67,255)
Big Revaluation 1,195,735 - 1,195,735
FEFE Depreciation for the year (46,352) (23,620) (69,972)
B BEEEREME (H527)  Reclassification to investment properties
(Note 27) (74,020) - (74,020)
201112831 B ZREFE Net book value at 31 December 2011 4,038,737 81,513 4,120,250
#2011F12A31H At 31 December 2011
AR E Cost or valuation 4,038,737 261,479 4,300,216
ZitineE Accumulated depreciation - (179,966) (179,966)
P2011E 128318 Z2EEEE Net book value at 31 December 2011 4,038,737 81,513 4,120,250
FHEERABESEESH LT+ The analysis of cost or valuation
of the above assets is as follows:
201212 A31H At 31 December 2012
ZRAE At cost - 266,767 266,767
RIGE At valuation 5,381,905 - 5,381,905
5,381,905 266,767 5,648,672
20114124318 At 31 December 2011
R ANE At cost - 261,479 261,479
RIGE At valuation 4,038,737 - 4,038,737
4,038,737 261,479 4,300,216
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Notes to the Financial Statements

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)

The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the
remaining terms of the leases as follows:

28. W > BEMKRRE ) 28.

FEZEEERBAORGHRSFTMOT :

i AERAT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BB BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEERE Held in Hong Kong
REMAL (BiB505) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 4,009,054 2,788,280 4,009,054 2,788,280
FEFEA (10FE509F) On medium-term lease (10 - 50 years) 1,371,270 1,248,943 1,371,270 1,248,943
EEINER Held outside Hong Kong
REFY (BiB50F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) - 37,432 _ _
AL (1052504 ) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 446,070 141,821 1,581 1,514
RHALY (D10F) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 20,401 14,866 _ _
5,846,795 4,231,342 5,381,905 4,038,737

M2012F12A8318 " JIREEBBERAZEE » KBS
VEHNEME-—AFRAeNGHFEREEBRERARR
202 12A3TBU AT EREEMET I EXMAE - A F
EEETEETES ZHHEE  BFEFEEREFWNMEEBD
BAFRATEMNE  BEKFREZBERATEREEZA
e

RELRZEHEER  AKRERARITZFEGEZSHOR
AEBEANRITZEEEGEFHBRBERERDT

As at 31 December 2012, premises are included in the
balance sheets at valuation carried out at 31 December
2012 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm
of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited. The fair value represents the estimated
amount at which the asset should be exchanged on the date
of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in
an arm'’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein
the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and
without compulsion.

As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes
in value of the Group’s and the Bank's premises were
recognised in the Group’s and the Bank's premises
revaluation reserve and the income statement as follows:

rEH AERIT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BETT BEF T BET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EnEEERREEZ Increase in valuation credited to
HLEE premises revaluation reserve 1,388,296 1,213,719 1,379,172 1,195,288
Pz A (B),/#EB 2  (Decrease)increase in valuation
B CaE),/1BiE (debited)/credited to income statement (1,738) (1,881) = 447
1,386,558 1,211,838 1,379,172 1,195,735

www.nch.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

28. W > BEMKRRE )

K2012F 128318 - BEREERKAEHR R & MR
BEEBIE  AEEBRARTZEAEABRRAZEEREF
B JE &8 1528,943,0007T (20114 : 5#226,859,0007T)
K2 75#:217,003,0007T (20114 : ##193,243,0007T) ©

28. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2012, the net book value of

premises that would have been included in the Group’s

and Bank’s balance sheets had the assets been carried

at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment

losses was HK$528,943,000 (2011: HK$226,859,000) and
HK$217,003,000 (2011:HK$193,243,000) respectively.

29. HiEE 29. OTHER ASSETS
rEE AERIT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BETT BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e EE Repossessed assets 17,792 942 16,842 -
JEUWERITB M FE B F Accounts receivable and prepayments 1,424,506 818,535 1,050,826 652,284
1,442,298 819,477 1,067,668 652,284
30. DNF¥EZTABHZzeRERE 30. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
AEBRABRT
The Group and the Bank
2012 2011
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RE5EBE Trading liabilities
—INEESZENESFEE - Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and Notes 4,975,073 1,077,896

201212 A3TBW R ARTEAUAFEZLT ABERZZE
BEE (20114  #) -

As at 31 December 2012, there are no financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss (2011: Nil).
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31. BEFERRYEFES
(@) EFEX

B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

31. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING

(a) Deposits from customers

i 3 RAT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BETT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R HEREMER Current, savings and other deposit
(NEEAER) accounts (per balance sheets) 185,533,717 174,469,468 128,178,500 124,747,402
D Analysed by:
BIEATF SR R SRTE K Demand deposits and current accounts
VNG — corporate 14,545,822 11,847,789 7,188,715 6,328,499
—@AA - personal 2,433,335 1,628,352 2,111,554 1,450,028
16,979,157 13,476,141 9,300,269 7,778,527
CELEEA Savings deposits
— 1A — corporate 16,078,426 14,590,706 14,368,581 13,158,043
—fAA - personal 33,772,779 28,599,476 32,504,466 27,788,030
49,851,205 43,190,182 46,873,047 40,946,073
EH - BERBATER Time, call and notice deposits
AT _ corporate 58,500,903 65,148,525 33,244,808 40,556,901
— @A - personal 60,202,452 52,654,620 38,760,376 35,465,901
118,703,355 117,803,145 72,005,184 76,022,802
185,533,717 174,469,468 128,178,500 124,747,402

(b) EHEE

JBINEIEFREE T
MR2012F12A8318 - AEBUBHDAREFTENEEFR
4 #£ 7% %1,390,910,0007T (20114 © 7 #2,073,358,000
TT) REREAEINEEFREZHHATA -

REAWRE EBE N 2 W R E BN SR AR (2011
FE) e

32. HMBRERERE

(b) Hedge accounting
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

As at 31 December 2012, a proportion of the Group’s RMB-
denominated deposits from customers of HK$1,390,910,000
(2011: HK$2,073,358,000) are designated as a hedging
instrument to hedge against the net investments in foreign
operations.

There are no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised
in the income statement during the year (2011: Nil).

32. OTHER ACCOUNTS AND

PROVISIONS
rEE AERT

The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BET T BT BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HAh FETBRIE Other accounts payable 9,937,324 8,334,637 2,132,197 2,711,207
Rt Provisions 61,661 62,033 52,710 56,269
9,998,985 8,396,670 2,184,907 2,767,476

www.ncb.com.hk
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33. CIEHEE

HE2012F128318 AEBRAXBITCEBEH AL
4,234,713,0007C (20114 : & #872,412,00070) & M 17
BRFRRERGUNEEE 2 EEFERIT - 1o A&
B LAESE AR 2 818 58 1348,822,0007T (20114
B#617,973,000L) - AEE R ARITAERILEZAEGE N
B BES BB KA,643,771,0007T (20114 « B
1,495,704,0007C) K& #4,239,175,0007T (20114F : B
8T3,977,0007_z) R T RGEES] R IAJHREEES] A
HIAR ©

34, EHEFIIE
EEHERREE S G ERE 125 [FHER ] HE - %4
EEEBEEREEENSRENETEME 2 T2

REIFERE -

33. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

As at 31 December 2012, liabilities of the Group and
the Bank both amounting to HK$4,234,713,000 (2011:
HK$872,412,000) were secured by assets deposited with
central depositories to facilitate settlement operations.
In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to
HK$348,822,000 (2011: HK$617,973,000) were secured
by debt securities. The amount of assets pledged by
the Group and the Bank to secure these liabilities was
HK$4,643,771,000 (2011: HK$1,495,704,000) and
HK$4,239,175,000 (2011: HK$873,977,000) included in
“Trading securities” and “Available-for-sale securities”.

34. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

BEBBRANZELENE (BE)/ ABTFEHS  UERHE The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
TEEAZEFHINT : recorded in the balance sheets, and the movements during
the year are as follows:
s 3]
The Group
2012
MEFE At R
%58 HER
Accelerated EEEMR HEERE Other
tax Property B8  Impairment  temporary @zt
depreciation  revaluation Losses  allowances differences Total
BETT BETT BETR BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201217818 At 1 January 2012 18,231 674,564 - (146,369) (21,747) 524,679
PEERZ R/ (BR) Charged/(credited) to income
(FrsE14) statement (Note 14) 4,079 3,912 (297) (18,532) (678) (11,516)
ETAM2ENE Charged to other
comprehensive income - 218,290 - - 47,000 265,290
EHER Exchange difference (2) 320 - (194) 76 200
M20126 124318 At 31 December 2012 22,308 897,086 (297) (165,095) 24,651 778,653
T5%E
The Group
2011
MERFTE HinEes
Gk =S
Accelerated REEM AEERE Other
tax Property BB Impairment temporary @it
depreciation revaluation Losses allowances differences Total
BEFT BB BBTT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2011F1 518 At 1 January 2011 12,554 495,653 - (94,197) 6,844 420,854
PMUERATH /(ERE)  Charged/(credited) to income
(Hi5E14) statement (Note 14) 5,717 4,594 - (50,220) (16,702) (56,611)
fgi /(&) Charged/(credited) to other
Ht2EE comprehensive income - 172,968 - - (11,131) 161,837
BN EH Exchange difference (40) 1,349 - (1,952) (758) (1,401)
R2011E12 4318 At 31 December 2011 18,231 674,564 N (146,369) (21,747) 524,679
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34. EEHE (@) 34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Contd)
KREAT
The Bank
2012
MEHTE HiE
B HER
Accelerated BEEf REERE Other
tax Property Impairment temporary @zt
depreciation  revaluation allowances differences Total
BT T BT T BETT BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
#2012%81 818 At 1 January 2012 18,430 625,811 (70,503) (1,101) 572,637
RIS EATR /(ER) Charged/(credited) to income
statement 4,079 - (27,126) 1,035 (22,012)
B EM2ERE Charged to other
comprehensive income - 217,913 - 50,297 268,210
EREHR Exchange difference = - (6) - (6)
72012%12H31H8 At 31 December 2012 22,509 843,724 (97,635) 50,231 818,829
NG
The Bank
2011
MEIHE Hin g
gk =%
Accelerated FESME AEEE Other
tax Property Impairment temporary ety
depreciation revaluation allowances differences Total
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2011E1A1R At 1 January 2011 13,487 457,065 (55,937) 22,370 436,985
PR AT/ (BE) Charged/(credited) to income
statement 4,943 (288) (14,536) (6,977) (16,858)
g2,/ (&%) Charged/(credited) to other
Hit2HE comprehensive income - 169,034 - (16,494) 152,540
bE N ZTE Exchange difference - - (30) - (30)
R20115F12H318 At 31 December 2011 18,430 625,811 (70,503) (1,101) 572,637

www.ncb.com.hk
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34, EIEFIE (@)
EEFERNTSBRANESERBERIES EEY  ME
TERIBS R F— BB - RIASERE A MECRHIBEE
SRR B EEARKN - T EESERBENIEY S
W DI AEEE

34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Contd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual
entity basis when there is a legal right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxation relates to the same authority. The following
amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown
in the balance sheets:

AEM AERAT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BT BT T BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
EIETRIBEE Deferred tax assets (49,727) (57,714) (662) (656)
EEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 828,380 582,393 819,491 573,293
778,653 524,679 818,829 572,637
AEMR ARERIT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BET T BT T BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
EEFIEEE Deferred tax assets to be recovered
(#B3B121E A& Uk mE) after more than twelve months (73,889) (40,052) (662) (656)
ELEHRIEAE Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
(BB 121E8 A2 1+F) after more than twelve months 778,149 583,494 769,260 574,394
704,260 543,442 768,598 573,738

REER  AEBERANBITNBREE TIRMAKEREL
RIBEEZMIEEEAEEEAL617,0007T (20114 : B
5,314,0007T) i #4,483,0007T (20114F : 5,198,000) °
B AREE R ARITEERESRAOABSEAB134,000
JC (20114 : B ¥116,00070) & £ (20114 « &) - A&
B RANRITRAFTRIEERN AR A K4,483,0007T
(20114 : 5,198,000) °

As at 31 December 2012, the Group and the Bank have
not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
amounting to HK$4,617,000 (2011: HK$5,314,000) and
HK$4,483,000 (2011: HK$5,198,000) which is considered
unlikely to be utilised. Of the amount, HK$134,000 (2011:
HK$116,000) for the Group and Nil (2011: Nil) for the
Bank have no expiry date and HK$4,483,000 (2011:
HK$5,198,000) for the Group and the Bank is scheduled to
expire within five years.

35. K&K 35. SHARE CAPITAL
2012 2011
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
JEIE Authorised:
7,000,000 & EEEE 100t 2 E @K 7,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$100 each 700,000 700,000
EEITRER Issued and fully paid:
7,000,000/ T AR EE S # 1007T 2 & AR 7,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$100 each 700,000 700,000
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36. f#f&

REBREARTZAFEREFORFRSBREDIBFERD 5
HNEITEL0EZ A RS H R IEREBX -

37. ZERETREBRWE

36. RESERVES

B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

The Group’s and the Bank's reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity and statement
of changes in equity respectively on pages 37 to 40 of the

financial statements.

37. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT

(a) RERFERBALERE Y (R, HA (@) Reconciliation of operating profit to
¥R operating cash (outflow)/inflow before
taxation
2012 2011
BT T BT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
a=pivil Operating profit 2,587,632 2,804,426
e Depreciation 166,939 115,441
B E R Net charge of impairment allowances 396,948 161,306
Hr IR R B ZE 4 (o] 8 Unwind of discount on impairment allowances (8,079) (1,264)
s 2 ER (kIR E ) Advances written off net of recoveries 3,689 (13,678)
[REVEA A #BB31E A 2 7R TT & Change in balances with banks and
Hith & R B4 R # 8 other financial institutions with
original maturity over three months (482,176) (6,004,508)
[REIEAE EBB3MEA 2 A R1T R Change in placements with banks and
Hib& s 2 TEFER & other financial institutions with
original maturity over three months 5,102,436 (13,708,025)
NEEE b ABRZ Change in financial assets at
TRIEECEH fair value through profit or loss (2,410,450) (420,471)
PTESmIAZEE) Change in derivative financial instruments (161,185) 68,663
ERRHEMERE 2 &) Change in advances and other accounts (5,515,755) (8,923,197)
BHEREZEH Change in investment in securities (14,544,859) (722,651)
HEi&EEEE) Change in other assets (622,821) 349,775
RITREM S BB TR R Change in deposits and balances from
itk FE banks and other financial institutions (7,804,217) 9,291,599
NFEZ{LTAEBRZZ Change in financial liabilities at
CRIBECEE fair value through profit or loss 3,897,177 (107,479)
BEEFRZEE Change in deposits from customers 11,064,249 33,132,563
HEBRTE N EH 2 EE) Change in other accounts and provisions 1,602,315 2,023,343
PEREE) 7 2 Effect of changes in exchange rates 18,043 (535,667)
BEAGEEEE 2 G, RA Operating cash (outflow)/inflow before taxation (6,710,114) 17,510,176
KEXEB7BeRERBIE Cash flows from operating activities included:
— B F B — Interest received 7,616,520 5,003,691
— B A - Interest paid (3,506,002) (1,853,550)
— BUAZ B - Dividend received 6,940 6,016
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37. ZEHEREERME 37. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT (Cont'd)
(b) BERZEABLEELZEEIN (b) Ana_lysis of the balances of cash and cash
equivalents
2012 2011
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
EFReRREBEAEIBANL Cash and balances with banks and
TFHUERTT R E b & B A 45 5 other financial institutions with
original maturity within three months 28,267,206 31,955,395
[REVEFATE3ME A N2 FEIRTT K Placements with banks and other financial
Hth & Bl < 7 BF W institutions with original maturity
within three months 2,621,986 3,380,186
JREEABE3ME AN E5 Treasury bills with original maturity
within three months 2,812,021 6,396,448
33,701,213 41,732,029

EROMOEERERSTACIERE @ LBRBFRAMAAELE
HIERT °

HAEBERAERE

SRBERAETSEERERZANBBRREERR
REEgAmT

38.

The basis and presentation of the above analyses have been
refined and the comparative amounts have been revised
accordingly.

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of
each significant class of contingent liability and commitment
and the aggregate credit risk weighted amount:

rEE AERAT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BET T BT T BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEEEEARER Direct credit substitutes 12,758,884 7,190,596 306,569 319,899
HZ5EMosABE  Transaction-related contingencies 2,614,550 1,683,929 502,009 442,879
BESHERzHAREE Trade-related contingencies 8,488,076 8,694,396 3,408,974 3,509,150
FHEELRBAMNERE  Commitments that are unconditionally
i =P cancellable without prior notice 57,032,568 43,938,343 22,160,355 26,872,836
E e Other commitments with an original
REHB A maturity of
—1EHUT — up to one year 2,212,197 1,486,232 1,521,088 1,004,859
—1FUE — over one year 4,962,820 5,078,651 3,799,617 3,557,219
88,069,095 68,072,147 31,698,612 35,706,842
EE R NESEE Credit risk weighted amount 14,156,562 9,276,672 3,274,903 3,193,805

EERBRMESRBRRE (RITE (BAX) RAD FTHE - ZH
BEISHFZEARERANIHRSHAER -
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#1:$ 7% 441 = NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT Ei

The credit risk weighted amount is calculated in accordance
with the Banking (Capital) Rules. The amount is dependent
upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
characteristics of each type of contract.
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AEERABITROGM S RE D BEY BARELENT -
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39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group and the Bank have the following outstanding
capital commitments not provided for in the financial
statements:

rEE ARERAT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BT T BT BET T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
EHERELERREE  Authorised and contracted for
but not provided for 8,688 12,106 3,777 5,179
DHEBREL Authorised but not contracted for 212 3,255 - 3,255
8,900 15,361 3,777 8,434

A EBERARREBND REBAZ BB R RAKE
ZBFRIETRZAE -

40. HEHERE
() AEEEREAA

RETAIBEZLLHERLN  TIIRARERARITRE
BFRMEEAEMAXNZRERS :

The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments
to purchase computer equipment and software, and to
renovate the Group’s premises.

40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(@) The Group as lessee

The Group and the Bank have commitments to make
the following future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases:

rEE AERAT
The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
B¥TT BT BYTT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
T REF Land and buildings
— TiEB@ 14 - not later than one year 223,950 177,452 48,784 40,356
—1F A EESFR - later than one year but not
later than five years 653,918 468,675 59,874 39,806
— 5% — later than five years 420,901 244,365 9,482 320
1,298,769 890,492 118,140 80,482
H o AdE Other commitments
— TiBB1F - not later than one year 184 56 - -
—1FUAEEFA — later than one year but not
later than five years 22 65 - -
1,298,975 890,613 118,140 80,482

www.ncb.com.hk
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40. REHEHRE &)

(b) ZAEEE[/HEA

RETAIBEZELEHEEAL  THAAEERARITEE
BERAEHNZAKRERBEZ RERKAS

40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Cont'd)
(b) The Group as lessor

The Group and the Bank have contracted with tenants for
the following future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases:

rEE AERAT

The Group The Bank
2012 2011 2012 2011
BYTT BT BYTT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

T MAEF Land and buildings
— TEBR1F - not later than one year 33,100 39,977 26,488 33,418
—1FAEEFA — later than one year but

not later than five years 25,637 32,416 20,133 19,215
58,737 72,393 46,621 52,633

ZK%@LM«**%Eiaﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁ%%(Fﬁ?zﬂ %EE\E,HH
BERIFE3IF - BOKK - REREERIRES

R2012%F  AEEBRAWA Z B8R AEEK 112,000
TC(2011F : ) - NETEEEABARAZH AR S
(20114F « ) o

41. iR
AEMBMTEYSEARBIATIEHOZERRRME - %
EERRRERAEMNEEREIHAEM -

ol

HREFRAANKE A HARAELA NI ITEAZF
RS ROBEIA MU AREZERERRREFEREKR
B e
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The Group leases its investment properties (Note 27) under
operating lease arrangements, with leases typically for a
period from 1 to 3 years. The terms of the leases generally
require the tenants to pay security deposits.

In year 2012, total contingent rents was recognised as
income for the Group is HK$112,000 (2011: Nil). No
contingent rents was recognised as income for the Bank
(2011: Nil).

41. LITIGATION

The Group is currently being served a number of claims and
counterclaims by various independent parties. These claims
and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial
activities of the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and
counterclaims because the directors believe that the Group
has meritorious defences against the claimants or the
amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be
material.

www.ncb.com.hk



42, DHEHE

(a) REESE

AEBEBFDANETENE  HRAEAART  CZR
7 MEEBREE -

FERTEBNEXBIRBHGRAEZENRITRG - @
ARITEBZEMRBEATP - MEERTEBRIIRGIE
BAAEF - ZERMEXBR KRTHEEE  BERAFREEAR
SEMEX  RBED - MEMINEMO - BHEXBKELIE
BEASBENREZBNES  SHEMAXBREH‘ES - W&
YR (B A R TT AN (R S ER1T RS AR A0 IR M 17 BUE B PR ERS #9
B  BUERBR L HNEER ST EREENRESER
EBREHEE - A KE2INMEXHRSER S8R
LEBHRzBNEZRS  BREEEABRERMITRRRE
B zHNEE (MEZ TAINERMEXBNERE R
HEERBEMLE) -

REBRRBRAKENFEMEMS IR EMMERNRE - HRME
AASENYE  BEbEXBRE\EZZERE L TROMSER
AREEBRXNER BASENBERR —fmE (PE)
ZEREEENERENAERANEREREZR 28
ERUEEDRA

[Hip ] AEEHEMEERTZEEAHEASEREEEA G
MEEARERNIRAE

—EARBRHOBALRSE  TEEREEERBRZEBRD
HH -EREEER  SRESEEEHRD -

www.nch.com.hk
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42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING
(a) By operating segment
The Group divides its business into four major segments,

Personal Banking, Corporate Banking, Treasury and
Investment.

Both Personal Banking business and Corporate Banking
business provide general banking services. Personal Banking
serves individual customers while Corporate Banking deals
with non-individual customers. The Treasury segment is
responsible for managing the capital, liquidity, and the
interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group
in addition to proprietary trades. It provides funds to other
business segments and receives funds from deposit taking
activities of Personal Banking and Corporate Banking. These
inter-segment funding is charged according to the internal
funds transfer pricing mechanism of the Group. The assets
and liabilities of Treasury have not been adjusted to reflect
the effect of inter-segment borrowing and lending (i.e. the
profit and loss information in relation to Treasury is not
comparable to the assets and liabilities information about
Treasury).

Investment includes bank premises and equipment used by
supporting units. Charges are paid to this segment from
other business segments based on market rates per square
foot for their occupation of the Group’s premises. The
exchange difference arising from capital of our subsidiary,
Nanyang Commercial Bank (China), Limited, which is
recognised in its income statement, is also included in this
class.

"Others” refers to other group operations and mainly
comprises of items related to the Group as a whole and
totally independent of the other four business segments.

Revenues and expenses of any business segment mainly
include items directly attributable to the segment. For
management overheads, allocations are made on reasonable
bases.
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42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)

(a) ;;Mgﬁ;g (zﬁ) (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
150
The Group
2012
BARST  LEBF
Personal  Corporate  EHEEH RE -4 Nt ABHES G&
Banking Banking  Treasury Investment Others  Subtotal Eliminations  Consolidated
AeTr  AMTn  A¥TR  B%Tn  B8Tn AETn AMTn B¥Tn
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EREUA/(ZH) Net interest income/(expense)
-4k - external (784,960) 2,336,718 2,381,051 4 - 3932813 - 3932813
- BER - inter-segment 1,589,823  (319,320) (1,270,503) - - - - -
804,863 2,017,398 1,110,548 4 - 3932813 - 3932813
BREERESUA /() Net fee and commission income/(expense) 310,863 426,546 20,806 108 (3,144) 755,179 - 755,179
EQ S/ (BR) Net trading gain/(loss) 21,5713 93,693 62,931 (37,646) 665 147,216 - 147,216
AEAUNATERTABEZ  Net gain on finandial instruments designated
SRTIAFUE at fair value through profit or loss = - 21,959 - - 21,959 - 21,959
EteREE FiE Net gain on other financial assets - 4,762 11,376 463 - 16,601 - 16,601
HimEA Other operating income 2 4 - 143,487 11,311 154,841 (97,732) 57,109
EHFEEREN2FSEWA  Net operating income before
impairment allowances 1143301 2,542,440 1,227,620 106,416 8,832 5,028,609 (97,732) 4,930,877
BEEETEE Net charge of impairment allowances (7,958)  (388,990) - - - (396,948) - (396,948)
FEEUA Net operating income 113536 213450 12760 106416 8832 4630661 (173D 453,90
mEgh Operating expenses (637,703  (903926) (392859  (15,125)  (34416) (2084029)  9%72  (1,946,297)
BERT /(BB Operating profit/(loss) 497,640 1,249,524 834,761 31,291 (25,584) 2,587,632 - 2,587,632
SENERE /DTEEEZ  Netgain from disposal offfar value
B adjustments on investment properties > = > 178,766 - 178,766 - 178,766
HE/EfE  #HR Net loss from disposalirevaluation
FEFEE of properties, plant and equipment - - - (6,627) - (6,627) - (6,627)
BREAER /(58 Profit/(loss) before taxation 497,640 1,249,524 834,761 203,430 (25,584) 2,759,771 - 27591
BE Assets
NIEE Segment assets 23,673,053 116,089,179 104,531,029 7,329,689 130,488 251,753,438 - 251,753,438
g Liabilities
NHaE Segment liabilities 98,868,912 96,141,906 25,747,324 6,813 1,375,262 222,140,217 - 222,140,217
EtEH Other information
BRESH Capital expenditure - - - 429,519 - 429,519 - 429,519
ik Depreciation 25,037 40,495 24,059 13,522 3,826 166,939 - 166,939
EHEH Amortisation of securities - - 72,230 - - 72,230 - 72,230
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B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)

(a) IREEIE (&) (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
bis= |
The Group
2011
BASfT  LEBRA
Personal  Corporate  BTEEE %A it N ARER 7a
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations ~ Consoldated
BT A%t ABTn A%Tr  BEfr  BETn BETn BT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
ERBUA/(X) Net interest income/(expense)
— 4R - external (274306) 1837500 1,721,507 4 36 3,284,741 - 3,284,741
-EEEk - inter-segment 760,116 (82,130 (677,986) - - - - -
485810 1755370 1,04351 4 3% 384741 - 3284741
ERBEBRESNA/(XH)  Net fee and commission incomel{expense) 35,659 453,130 22,490 1422 (2515 790,186 - 715018
EQHINE /(BR) Net trading gain/(loss) 48,286 79,419 (10,484) (37,174) 302 80,349 - 80,349
REBUATER:T ABHZ  Net loss on financial instruments designated
SRTEFEE at fair value through profit or loss - - (4,561) - - (4,561) - (4,561)
EfAREEZS (BE)/ Y Net (loss)/gain on other financial assets 1) 498 53,559 - - 53,780 - 53,780
HpEEWA Other operating income 2,837 935 4 122,39 11,868 138,038 (91,964) 46,074
EREEERNZFEERA  Net operating income before
impairment allowances 852,315 2,289352 1,104,529 86,646 9,691 4342533 (91,964) 4,250,569
HEERE (BE)/ O Net (charge)/reversal of impairment allowances (33,288)  (130,246) 2,228 - - (161,306) - (161,306)
FEEHA Net operating income 819,027 2,159,106 1,106,757 86,046 9691 4181227 (91,964) 4,089,263
S Operating expenses (606,129) (851,873) (270,882) (57,467) 409,550 (1,376,801) 91,964 (1,284,837
Y] Operating profit 22898 1307233 835875 29,179 419241 2,804,426 - 2804426
REMELE /DTERZ  Net gain from disposal offfair value
Al adjustments on investment properties - - - 136237 - 136237 - 136237
HE/BitNE Bk Net gain/{loss) from disposal/revaluation
REsENE /(BR) of properties, plant and equipment - 2% - (14,492) - (14,468) - (14,468)
B AER Profit before taxation 212898 1307257 835875 150,924 419241 2,926,195 - 2,926,195
&E Assets
HHEE Segment assets 22,429,651 112,100,397 99,468,390 5,498,528 134,490 239,631,456 - 239,631,456
& Liabilities
AHEfE Segment liabilities 85,905,585 96,627,683 29,648,616 5741 1,307,635 213,495,260 - 213,495,260
2t Other information
BRMRH Capital expenditure - - - 211,65 - 11,65 - 2116%
it Depreciation 17,150 26,48 12,359 54,649 4,801 115,441 - 115441
FHEH Amortisation of securities - - 50,003 - - 50,003 - 50,003
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42. DEHE 4 42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(a) BEEDE (zﬁ) (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
x5
The Bank
2012
BARST  LEBF
Personal  Corporate  EHEEH RE -4 Nt ABHES G&
Banking Banking  Treasury Investment Others  Subtotal Eliminations  Consolidated
E8Tn  BMTr  BETR  EMTn BMTr B¥Tn AMTn BETR
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBUA/(X) Net interest income/(expense)
-4 - external (208,250) 1,611,789 1,228,375 - - 2631914 - 2631914
-BER - inter-segment 728,065  (346,646)  (381,419) - - - - -
519815 1265143 846,95 - - 263191 - 263191
FREERESUWA /() Nt fee and commission incomel(expense) 308506 324,958 (3.959) - (3.144) 626,361 - 626361
FealhE/(BR) Net trading gain/(loss) 22,403 64,552 (17,980) 23 665 69,663 - 69,663
REBNATER L ABRZ  Net gain on finandial instruments designated
SRTERNE at fair value through profit or loss = - 21,959 = - 21,959 - 21,959
EhEREE TR Net gain on other financial assets - = 10,431 463 - 10,894 - 10,894
EpEEHA Other operating income 2 4 - 1424 668 142,935 (97,732) 45,203
REAEEEN 2FLERA  Net operating income before
impairment allowances 850,726 1,654,694 857,407 142,710 (1,811) 3,503,726 (97,732) 3,405,994
HEEEZED /(%G Net reversalficharge) of impairment allowances 2881 (217,259) - - - (214378) - (214378)
FEEUA Net operating income 853607 1437435 857407 142,710 (1811) 3289348 (97.732) 3,191,616
BET Operating expenses (464,281)  (376,984)  (66,388)  (63,035)  (34417) (1,005,105) 9,132 (907,373)
ﬁ“m /| Eﬂﬁ Operating profit/(loss) 389,326 1,060,451 791,019 79,675 (36,228) 2,284,243 - 284283
REMELE /DT Net gain from disposal offfair value
FhE adjustments on investment properties = - = 177,410 = 177,410 - 177,410
HE/BENE - BIR Net loss from disposal/revaluation
SEEER of properties, plant and equipment - - - (78) - (78) - (78)
RERER /(B8R Profit/(loss) before taxation 389,326 1,060,451 791,019 257,007 (36,228) 2,461,575 - 2,461,575
£ Assets
PHEE Segment assets 17,076,378 74,273,858 62,575,473 14,668,294 16,522 168,610,525 - 168,610,525
af Liabilities
PHEE Segment liabilities 75,385,609 54,988,673 9,320,769 6,179 1,074,259 140,775,549 - 140,775,549
HthEH Other information
EAfEi Capital expenditure - = - 48,399 - 48,399 - 48,399
ik Depreciation 1,232 6,704 1378 63,035 3,826 86,175 - 86,175
FHEY Amortisation of securities - - 1,742 - - 1,742 - 1742

198

#1978 7% 4644 = NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT 3§

www.ncb.com.hk



B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

42. 9EHRE @) 42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(a) BEESE (5 (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
A5
The Bank
2011
BASfT LEBA
Personal  Corporate  BTEEE %A it Nt AREHE o
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
BT A%t ABTn A%t BEfr  BETrn BETn BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERBUA/(X) Net interest income/(expense)
— 4R - external (53414) 1,182,910 1,013,413 - 36 2,142,945 - 2,142,945
- gk - inter-segment 387,731 (28.945)  (358,786) - - - - -
BT 113965 654627 - % 210,95 - 21495
FREERESKA/(H)  Net fee and commission income/expense) 311060 366902 (3469) - 51 671978 - 671978
EQHINE /(BR) Net trading gain/(loss) 45,690 61,599 (40.611) 47 302 67,027 - 67,027
REBUATER:T ABHZ  Net loss on financial instruments designated
SRIESER at fair value through profit or loss - - (4,561) - - (4,561) - (4,561)
EMSREELE (HE)/UE Net (loss)igain on other financial assets Q7 - 53,559 - - 53,282 - 53,282
HtpEEWA Other operating income 1 8 4 120,253 8,819 129,155 (91,964) 37,191
EREEERNZFEERA  Net operating income before
impairment allowances 690,791 1,582,544 659,549 120,300 6,642 3,059,826 (91,964) 2,967,862
HEERERE /(&) Net reversalficharge) of impairment allowances 529 (91,274) 2,228 - - (88,517) - (88,517)
FEEHA Net operating income 691,320 1,491,270 661,777 120,300 6,642 2971309 (91,964) 2,879,345
S Operating expenses (476,635) (376,049) (18,327) (46,352) 410,179 (507,184) 91,964 (415,220)
TR Operating profit 214,685 1,115,221 643,450 73,948 416,821 2,464,125 - 2,464,125
REMELE /DTERZ  Net gain from disposal offfair value
Al adjustments on investment properties - - - 135,195 - 135,195 - 135,195
HE/BitNE Bk Net gain from disposalrevaluation of
REL TR properties, plant and equipment - U - 800 - 824 - 824
B Profit before taxation 214685 1115245 643450 200943 416821 2,600,144 - 2,600,144
BE Assets
HHEE Segment assets 17,689,047 78,851,759 57,424,489 10,189,232 16,387 164,170,914 - 164,170,914
i Liabilities
AHEfE Segment liabilities 67,271,814 60,222,651 10,965,474 5,001 991,441 139,456,381 - 139,456,381
EfER Other information
BRES Capital expenditure - - - 46,857 - 46,857 - 46,857
nE Depreciation 11,59 5,875 1375 46,353 4773 69,972 - 69,972
THRER Amortisation of securities - - (5,826) - - (5,826) - (5,826)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

42. DEHRE ®)
(b) ZHEEEHZS
DTARERENBATMNESL LM HE - B AET
TER AKIEEERREE NS EERE Y HITREN

ok

42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(b) By geographical area

The following information is presented based on the principal
places of operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of
the Bank, on the locations of the branches responsible for

reporting the res

ults or booking the assets:

EH
The Group
2012 2011
REURE REURE
EERIZ B2
FREIRA FEEWA
Net Net
operating operating
income BR B AT A income BT A& A
before Profit before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowance taxation allowance taxation
BETT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
b Hong Kong 3,367,514 2,445,061 2,948,054 2,596,262
B i Mainland China 1,525,417 300,124 1,277,528 323,544
EAh Others 37,946 14,586 24,987 6,389
B Total 4,930,877 2,759,771 4,250,569 2,926,195
rEE
The Group
2012
BAREE
AL
Contingent
HEE FS=Ri FRBEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B8 Hong Kong 156,910,130 139,227,486 6,436,888 31,329,350
B i Mainland China 93,205,859 82,827,479 811,262 56,538,445
EHih Others 1,637,449 85,252 4,276 201,300
B Total 251,753,438 222,140,217 7,252,426 88,069,095
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(b) WEEHRBS (F)

B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(b) By geographical area (Cont'd)

rEE
The Group
2011
SREE
FAE
Contingent
WEE BeE FnBEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets  commitments
BT BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B8 Hong Kong 152,179,720 135,290,810 4,921,445 34,853,375
=elE b Mainland China 85,846,677 76,703,039 509,695 33,057,759
Hih Others 1,605,059 1,501,411 1,065 161,013
B3 Total 239,631,456 213,495,260 5,432,205 68,072,147
KERAT
The Bank
2012 2011
REURE REURE
EHATZ EHERZ
REERA FE A
Net Net
operating operating
income BR% A0 A income BT A& A
before Profit before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowance taxation allowance taxation
BET T BETT BT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 3,367,411 2,446,562 2,947,940 2,598,966
AR A Mainland China 637 428 (5,065) (5,211)
Hih Others 37,946 14,585 24,987 6,389
A&t Total 3,405,994 2,461,575 2,967,862 2,600,144
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42. DEBE @)
(b) BHEEHES (&)

42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(b) By geographical area (Cont'd)

BT
The Bank

2012
BAREE
AL
Contingent
HEE FR=Ri FRBEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 165,444,466 139,328,070 6,436,888 31,422,083
B A Mainland China 1,528,610 1,362,227 - 75,229
=) Others 1,637,449 85,252 4,276 201,300
&% Total 168,610,525 140,775,549 6,441,164 31,698,612

ANIRTT

The Bank

2011
HAREE
FAHE
Contingent
WEE BafE FmBEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets  commitments
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 159,876,420 135,431,198 4,921,445 34,934,712
PR At Mainland China 2,689,435 2,523,772 - 611,117
Hih Others 1,605,059 1,501,411 1,065 161,013
A&t Total 164,170,914 139,456,381 4,922,510 35,706,842

43. EERSABEER

RIBEEFABRFURHIF161BIRHMRTE - MARREFTRSRRE
SREZEFFBOT

43. LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND

OFFICERS

Particulars of advances made to directors and officers of the
Bank pursuant to section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance are as follows:

2012 2011
BET T BB
HK$’000 HK$'000
REREREEZEBR 558 Aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding at year end - 30
RERNKEBRBBUL G RSB Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding during the year 30 59
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44, FECEHEALIRS

FEARENMEESRBBTEEERSREEAT ([F
&J) CE2EBEWBARIPRESREEREME AR ([E

&) RESCHEAIEHEZ 2 PRIBTRARES - HAKE
EJTT il o

(a) BRBAARBLAFAEFZEMIATNETHRS

BRAWHBEEEH
REBZHREBZES - ESRFPREB 2 EEERLA -
NERENZEMBAR  MPREREIEESKEERE
EBNBEABERT

PE LA RGBS -

AEBELFERTRZELEETRITIMNEGERRS -
BREER  EFREREETS -

(b) HEBUT#HE - REHEE  WEEBREGRSA
EHERNRS
hEARANBEEBRAEBTRLESHAREEEIES
A g AR B R BB BB RS - IREE - (T8
ﬁ%%&ﬁi\ﬁﬂlﬁi HEBERIMEEGAEEMER - K

SEE-RAXGREBTEE - RERE  HERERE
’rlﬂﬁ%?%ﬂﬁﬁi‘fZFaﬁ ETHERIBITREHRS -

BURHEEETRRNTIIFE
- B8 - RHEBREFRMEIER

- RITRIZE 2 AR AERR -

- E BE-
ZfE%

- RESMNE - ERRABRIRE R

BIHLEO R EME ARG BT

- REGEERSE &
- BEAREE TBITA BERPBRE-
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44. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of
the PRC Government through China Investment Corporation
(“CIC"), its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin
Investment Ltd. (“Central Huijin”), BOC and BOCHK in which
Central Huijin has controlling equity interests.

(@) Transactions with the parent companies
and the other companies controlled by
the parent companies

General information of the parent companies:

The Group is controlled by BOCHK. Central Huijin is the
controlling entity of BOCHK, and it is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CIC which is a wholly state-owned company
engaging in foreign currency investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other
entities in the PRC.

The Group enters into banking and other transactions with
these entities in the normal course of business which include
loans, investment securities and money market transactions.

(b) Transactions with government
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
state controlled entities

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council
of the PRC Government through CIC and Central Huijin,
which also directly and indirectly controls a significant
number of entities through its government authorities,
agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities. The
Group enters into banking transactions with government
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled
entities in the normal course of business at commercial
terms.

These transactions include, but are not limited to, the
following:

- lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and
deposit taking;

- inter-bank balance taking and placing;

- sales, purchase, underwriting and redemption of
bonds issued by other state controlled entities;

- rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and
investment related services;

- provision of fiduciary activities; and

- purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunication
and postage services.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

44, FTEEBEALTRSE @) 44. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Contd)
() HEMEBREAITELIEZEEBRSEERETZX (c) Summary of transactions entered into
SRE during the ordinary course of business

with other related parties

BEAREFEHMAMEATERKBEEATRIMELEY The aggregate income/expenses and balances arising from

BN T REESER T -

related party transactions with other related parties of the
Group are summarised as follows:

2012 2011
Hth Htb
BEEAL BFHEEAL
Other Other
related related
parties parties
BT T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000
We=mRIEE - Income statement items:
F B U A Interest income 9,672 7,701
FEZH Interest expense (85,450) (62,493)
BEfRBER EHRBRAS Insurance premium paid/insurance commission
CF#) received (net) 6,083 6,420
BN, TR & B Administrative services fees paid/payable (16,641) (15,433)
Bl EREE Rental fees received/receivable 19,842 18,178
ot/ ENEERLAE CF58) Securities brokerage commission paid/payable (net) (14,321) (19,583)
Bt EAES Rental paid/payable (295) (295)
BRESHERS Funds selling commission received 7,215 7,409
HAths Other expense (11,747) (3,121)
HEMAelA Other commission income 3,782 3,648
HEtmBERREET T Other fees and commission expense (4,628) (2,879)
i B A Dividend income 5,215 4,504
FR MW Net trading gains (171) (278)
EEBAMEXRIER - Balance sheet items:
EFRE RERITR Cash and balances with banks and
Hth & B B0 45 4 other financial institutions 1,717 282,778
PESMTAEE Derivative financial instruments assets = 1,348
ERREAMIRE Advances and other accounts = 1,346,438
BEKRE Investment in securities 53,472 41,490
Hih &&= Other assets 112,349 45,034
RITREM S BILE 2 TR AR Deposits and balances of banks and
other financial institutions (10,715) (792,681)
ZEEFER Deposits from customers (8,218,014) (7,776,861)
HAabBRTE R Other accounts and provisions (800) (80,834)
PTESBTAAR Derivative financial instruments liabilities (53) -
204  H1if A% 44 = NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2012 ANNUAL REPORT %3 www.nch.com.hk
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(d) EESEAER

IZREABERERLEERARRERE N MAEEKE
Z EEREEEEEBIAL BREFLSEEREA
B - ARBELREXBTERITIERBARFARAELR
HERREERE - RAFREF AKEULA EAR

TREBRARZIESEARXEBEBEALETERX
X5 e

FTESBAEBEHEZ12A3BLEFEZEHHBOT

B R R AL

Notes to the Financial Statements

44. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(d) Key management personnel

Key management are those persons having authority and
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the
activities of the Group, directly or indirectly, including
directors and senior management. The Group accepts
deposits from and grants loans and credit facilities to key
management personnel in the ordinary course of business.
During both the current and prior years, no material
transaction was conducted with key management personnel
of the Bank, its holding companies and parties related to
them.

The key management compensation for the year ended
31 December is detailed as follows:

2012 2011

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

R HMEEE TER] Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 31,079 30,435
BIREF Post-employment benefits 1,597 1,625
32,676 32,060

(e) EMBRRNEER

R2012F 128318 ARTEHEEKBEFRZ —MREE
GFETRIEENEWR L EMHE QT RBAED B AL
#470,919,0007T (20114F : %2, 591,868,0007T) M & #E
112,555,0007T (20114F : B#¥157,243,0007T) °

www.ncb.com.hk

(e) Balances with subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2012, the aggregate sums of amounts
due from subsidiaries and amounts due to subsidiaries of the
Bank arising from transactions entered into during the normal
course of business at commercial terms are HK$470,919,000
(2011: HK$2,591,868,000) and HK$112,555,000 (2011:
HK$157,243,000) respectively.
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45. E¥E
THRIEFAEERS FEERSREBEARTASY
BHNERRE - TEBEERWE [RTKERGINEDR
HE RIS T AR o

45. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

The following is a summary of the major foreign currency
exposures arising from trading, non-trading and structural
positions and is prepared with reference to the Completion
Instructions for the prudential return “Foreign Currency
Position of an Authorized Institution” issued by the HKMA.

2012

BETTEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

Het s S st

Other Total

EY AR foreign foreign

US Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

BE8E Spot assets 44,970,705 92,007,219 11,863,812 148,841,736
BERE Spot liabilities (40,978,415)  (86,860,201)  (10,193,513) (138,032,129)
REHEA Forward purchases 19,309,220 13,322,971 5,522,921 38,155,112
B Forward sales (21,527,013)  (18,970,467)  (7,093,398)  (47,590,878)
/() 858 Net long/(short) position 1,774,497 (500,478) 99,822 1,373,841
REBIEARTE Net structural position 321,028 7,885,528 - 8,206,556

2011
BETTEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

H by SN BT

Other Total

E AR foreign foreign

US Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

BEEE Spot assets 52,900,757 84,893,540 8,772,053 146,566,350
BEEBRE Spot liabilities (44,991,277)  (81,818,133)  (10,331,691) (137,141,101)
RHEA Forward purchases 17,708,212 17,690,399 6,192,677 41,591,288
BUEL Forward sales (24,785,848)  (20,970,120) (4,637,216)  (50,393,184)

/() 858 Net long/(short) position 831,844 (204,314) 4,177) 623,353

EEIEARTE Net structural position 315,414 4,712,402 - 5,027,816
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46. EEERE
BEBEEANBREEIIIET Y B REAR T HEHH -
WEEBRZSYFHRERT AEARRES - —BHS B
MEK T BRAFEEREBEATRR  KEBELHETY
WINPT ETAEBATNES AR - eRREaaR
BB E - (AR EE10%H I 2 B ES I R
BT
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Notes to the Financial Statements

46. CROSS-BORDER CLAIMS

The information on cross-border claims discloses exposures
to foreign counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and
is derived according to the location of the counterparties
after taking into account any transfer of risk. In general,
such transfer of risk takes place if the claims are guaranteed
by a party in a country which is different from that of the
counterparty, or if the claims are on an overseas branch of
a bank whose head office is located in another country.
Only regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate
cross-border claims are analysed by geographical areas and
disclosed as follows:

2012
DNEEN*
8877 Public sector Hith wst
Banks entities* Others Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
T - TEEES Asia, other than Hong Kong
— FEAH - Mainland China 26,367,246 559,646 29,262,032 56,188,924
—Hi - Others 11,466,066 1,468,168 1,307,642 14,241,876
37,833,312 2,027,814 30,569,674 70,430,800
2011
NEEAL*
#8417  Public sector Htt wmE
Banks entities* Others Total
BET T BET T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T - TEEES Asia, other than Hong Kong
— PEAH — Mainland China 32,081,508 309,716 31,847,007 64,238,231
—Hf - Others 8,475,580 - 3,011,115 11,486,695
40,557,088 309,716 34,858,122 75,724,926
* T TEREEERBEGRITE (BAR) R AR ARLEN * None of cross-border claims on Asia, other than Hong Kong is eligible
(20114 : #&) » to be classified as public sector entities under the Banking (Capital)

www.ncb.com.hk

Rules. (2011: Nil)
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47. FER1THY AR A b L B AR IR

HIERTXSGUFONWABRRAZEZOM 2R ER
BRBERMIIZHBRR RERRBR ZERIADHE o IRK
FT R ARERTT R B A B A B2 AR A AE

47. NON-BANK MAINLAND CHINA
EXPOSURES

The analysis of non-bank Mainland China exposures is based
on the categories of non-bank counterparties and the type
of direct exposures with reference to the HKMA return for
non-bank Mainland China exposures, which includes the
Mainland China exposures extended by the Bank and its
subsidiary in Mainland China.

2012
1B BIFEAE 2
EEEERAN EESERHD AEEE
i L B AR I i L B AR I Individually
On-balance  Off-balance 2 e AR assessed
sheet sheet Total  impairment
exposure exposure exposure allowances
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A B A b i Mainland China entities 28,859,693 1,393,186 30,252,879 -
R EIRANA B % Companies and individuals outside
EARRERNEE Mainland China where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland China 4,022,501 2,238,762 6,261,263 486
H A IERITH P E Other non-bank Mainland China
At 2 B exposures 7,054,825 153,127 7,207,952 22,108
39,937,019 3,785,075 43,722,094 22,594
RITRHHB AT Exposures incurred by the
[ B A4 Bank’s mainland subsidiary 52,903,227 21,938,024 74,841,251 162,149
2011
& RIFHE 2
EERBLRA BEABRN FEEE
) A R B B bR A Individually
On-balance Off-balance E g R assessed
sheet sheet Total impairment
exposure exposure exposure allowances
BT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR A 3 Mainland China entities 25,002,607 2,922,553 27,925,160 -
FBIRINA B R Companies and individuals outside
EARREANREE Mainland China where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland China 3,604,449 934,627 4,539,076 2,414
HAIERITA P E Other non-bank Mainland China
Pt R A exposures 9,386,122 432,238 9,818,360 1,843
37,993,178 4,289,418 42,282,596 4,257
RITRHH B AR 2 Exposures incurred by the
BRI Bank’s mainland subsidiary 39,466,478 15,136,892 54,603,370 75,963

FA ERASHONELEEERES  LRBEFEMBREHN

DI o

During the year, the basis of the above analyses has been
refined and the comparative amounts have been reclassified

accordingly.
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48. RARERDT
EARANAABRBBTEREBRELAR A2 H
MEBARRRESREARECAA ((Ee)) RESHA
R 2 R ERIT R REE - HAEMBTES -

49. HMBBMRZAE

R BHREN2013F3 18 AL ERTEBBRAZATM -

www.ncb.com.hk
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Notes to the Financial Statements

48. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council
of the PRC Government through CIC, its wholly-owned
subsidiary Central Huijin, BOC and BOCHK in which Central
Huijin has controlling equity interests.

49. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 18 March 2013.
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